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- The details form

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Your Board of Directors hereby subrits the report of the business and operations of your Company ‘
(the Company’ or ‘DEE Development Engineers Limited), along with the Audited Stand-alone &
Consolidated Financial Statements, for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. '

EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN

GT-9: is encloéed- as

' .12.2020
_nd Secretarial

DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTORS' j

Mr. Krishah Lalit Bansal, Chairrnan & Managing Director, Mr. Atul Krishan Bansal, Non-Executive
Director, Mrs. Ashima Bansal, Whole-time Director and Mrs, Shikha Bansal, Whole-time Director
are related to each other and four of ther are Shareholdérs of the Company and holds 50.51%,
1.87%, 6.61% and 0.00063% respectively as on 31.03.2021. Mr. Neeraj Bharadwaj and 'Mr..
Samyak Daga were nomihated by First Carlyle Ventures Ill., nomination of Mr. Bhansali was

I
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withdrawn .and Mr. Samyak Daga was ‘nominated on tf:ue Bbard as nominee Director w.e.f
16.07. 2020 Mr. Ajay Kimar Marchanda and Mr Satish Kumar are Independent Directors havmg
no pecuniary relatlonshlp with the Company except 1he|r 5|tt|ng fee. -

DIRECTOR QESPONSEBELITY STATEMENT |

Pursuant to the provisions of Sectlon 134(5) of the Compames Act 2013, your Directors do hereby

mdependent Directors and members of Management. The Independent Director met once in a
Financial year on 22.06.2021. ’

. The Board mandate annual mesting attended exclusively by the inclep‘endent Directors. At stich

meeting, the Independent Director discuss, among other matters, the performance ofthe Company _
and risk faced by it, the ﬂow of tnformatton to the Board, competition, strateigy ieadership strengths .




and weaknesses, governance compllance Board movements, human resource matters and
performance of the members of the Board, including the Chairman.

The Independent Directors have submitted the declaratlon of independence, as requlred pursuant
to section 149(7) of the Compames Act, 2013 stating that they meet the cntena of independenoe

- _as provided in sub section ().

., BOARD COMMITTEES"

The members of {

-1 0-2020 27—1 0~2020

prises of four members. M

The constltutlon of the
201 3

The internal auditor presents to the committee, observatlons and recommendations arising out of

“internal audits and also on issues having an impact on the control system and compliance. The
Chief Financial Officer and Intemal Auditor are permanent invitees and attend meetlngs of the .

committee. The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the cornmlttee




Nomination and Reniuneratio'n Committee (NRC) -

The committee comprised three members, all are Non-Executive Directors. Mr. Ajay Kumar

Marchanda Chairman of the Commlttee. Mr. Satish Kumar Independent Director and Mr. Atul
 Krishan Bansal, Non-Executive Director are the members bf the committee: Due to untimely death

of Mr. Atul Krishan Bansal, he automatically ceased as member of Nomination and remurieration

committee. The committee met twice during the FY21 on 22.06.2020 and 30.12.2021.

The broad terms of reference of the‘tom
Evaluate the ‘perf

during FY21 on 22(
enclosed as Annexure: |

CéR activities is

The broad terms of reference of this commit
e Forrnulate and recommend to the Board a CSR policy whzch shall indicate the actlvities to
' ‘be undertaken by the Company as specified under Schedule Vil;

) Reoommend the amount of expendlture to be incurred on CSR aCtIVltleS
. Momtor the CSR policy of the company from time to time; '
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_* Any other matter that may be referred by tne Board from time to time or as may be
neoeseary for compliance with the Companiee Act, 2013 or rules made therennder-er any
other statutory laws of India. - I:

- s

b

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS COMMITTEE ,

The Independent Director's Committee presently comprises of two members Mr. Ajay Kumar

Marchanda, as Chairman of the Committee and Mr Satish Kumar, is the members of the_
Committee. The Commlttee meefin gn FY21:0n.22.06. 2020 in compllance with .

the Schedule IV of the Co

* Loan provided to Malwa Power Private Limited (WOS) of INR 84?.1 0'Lakhs at rate
of interest of 10.00% p.a. Repayment of Loan by WOS during the year was. INR"
- 1301.86 Lakhs. MPPL has served interest of INR 49.58 Lakhs during the year
Total loan outstanding as on 31.03.2021 was INR 240.27 Lakhs.
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« " The Company Kas provided Corporate Guarantee of INR 900.00 lakhs to Malwa
Power Private Limited (WOS) towards avaiting of banking facilities from Bank of
India (SME Branch, Fandabad) (to the extent loan outstanding). Corporate
Guarantee outstanding as on 31 .03. 2020 was INR102? 08 Lakhs.

¢ Loan provided to DEE Piping Systems (Thailand) Co., lelted during the year of

' {INR 982.44 Lakhs at rate of interest 10.00% p.a. No repayment was made by WOS
dunng the year. Total mterest outstandlng as on 31.03.2021 was 448.51 Lakhs,

021 wasiiNR 5796 25 Lakhs. The interest

dia Private Limited. The C
NR 2464.59 lakhs to Indus

"RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactio

el on arm's Iength basis and
were in the ordinary course of bus

_ no matenally -significant related party
transactnons made by the cornpany with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other

designated Ppersons which may had a potent_lal conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

All related party transactions were placed before the Audit Committee for approval Approval of
. the Audit Committee was obtained on a regular basis for the transactions which aware of a

. foreseen and repetitive nature. The transactions entered into pursuant to the ap_pro\(al so granted
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and a-statement giving details of all refated party transactions were- placed before the Audit
Committee for their approval on a quarterly basis. s

The details of Related Party Transactions in the prescribed form AOC-2 is enclosed as Annexure-
no- o ' |

STATEMENT OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

a) Financial Performance .

The financial perforr-na‘

Amount { in INR ll'ak"hs
Standalon _

As per Indian Steel Association (ISA)T grow by 7. 2% in 2019-20 and 2020-21.
Huge scope for growth is offered by India’s comparatwely low per capita steel consumption and -
the expected rise in consumption due to increased infrastructure oonstructlon and the thriving

4

automoblle and railways sectors.

The global markets on the back of Iarge stimulus packages have recorded a healthy revwal both
in production and._consump’aon of steel. Although much of the credit goes to China {which alone
accounted for a global share of almost 56%), the fact that other economies of the world have also '
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“between rural and

" started picking up in the second half of CY20 is encouraging. During CY20, according to the IMF

estimates, while the world GDP is likely to have contracted by- 3.3%, global -steel consumption
declined only by about 0.2%. IMF predicts Global Reai GDP to grow by about 6% in CY21 (mainly
on account of Idwer base effect of CY20) and stabilize at around 4.4% in CY22. Accordingly, the
World Steel Association estimates global steel demand to increase by around 5.8% in CY21 and
further by around 2 7% in CY22, .

Aocordlng to Allied Mark

Zpiping spools market size

V supply are key
concemns for Indla s cg’

. TRANSFER TO RESERVES |

. As per policy of the Company, entire profit has been transferred to Reserves.

B DiviDEND

Ensuring intemal requirement of fund, your Directors propose no dividend for the FY21.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE:_',.

EARNINGS AND QUTGO

The details of conservatlon of energy and technology absorption undertaken by the Company and
the foreign exchange earnings and outgo along with the information in accordance with the
provisions of Section 134 of the Companles Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 is as under: -

Oonsorvation of Efiei
S starte,g pilot project

ttoners and llghtmgs both in ofﬁ

.«E.

\§ an aust

Cornba_ny hasihyeste__d & doctmern for " tion o) sceived fromfto
outsiders. This help usito ow risk-ofinfection loyeeswh yreceived documents

- Apart from this Company has upgrade its document management system by purchasing M file

software. This software helps’ to store departmental data wrthout consummg more space and

- provide unbreachable security to confidential documents. M Files assure company against loss of
- data as happened earlier due to hard disk crash. ’
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o queign Exchange Earning & Outgo
" This item is similar to that in financial statements. '

l RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has formulated its own Risk Management Policy approved by Board of Directors.
The Risk Management Policy has a strong internal control system and a risk manageméht
framework- for _monitorihg and,.a) )
Company. The objective:t
business objecti
constantly_jd ‘

sactions cand associated practices of the

gppor_‘t achievement of -
g significant focus on

4 K

' COMPLIANCE FOR PROVISIONS RELATED TO SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN

B AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTICN, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

R

The various. recognitions.
and it's KMP(s):

Awards [ Ce rtificte Desriptio‘n

Memento for timely execution of projects and high-quality products

IHI, one of the biggest EPC of Japan has awarded DEE Certification of Appreciation & ]

. HSE Award: Valmet, one of the biggest developer and supplier of technologies,
2 ‘automation systems and services for the pulp, paper and energy industries has

awarded DEE Certification of Appreciation & Memento for Best Practice in HSE.
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IR -Indla 'S one of the blggest CFO Leadershlp & Flnance platform Mr Gaurav Narang, VP
3 | &Group CFQ, DEE Piping Systems. have been awarded CFO Leadershlp Award
-+ | recognizing his achlevements in the field of finance .

DEE Plplng Systems recelved its Flrst National Award for Englneerlng Exports from '
' EEPC.

Mr K.L. Bansal was invited on GE's Steam Power Supphers Day to Speak on "Future of
Thennal Power i in India" .

_ Mr. K.L. Bansal shared the Dias mth Hon ble Sh. Kaptan Singh Solankl Governor of
6 | Haryana state, Sh. Vipul Ge Cabinet Minister, Govt. of Haryana and Sh. Mool '
. Chand Sharma, anised by Paryas welfare soclety

\ Your. Con"ipan_y oonsecutiv_elfy for the 5% year has sustained the c’r‘edii rating, ‘_reted- by fC’ARE’
"Ratings’, CARE A- for Long Term. -Loaﬁs‘ & CARE A2 for Short Term Loans. With this continued A -

Category rating, the company not only showcaseéd its consistent growth among the other rnajor‘

" Indian oorporates but also reduoe |ts ﬁnanmal costs.
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MALWA POWER PRIVATE LIMITED (Wholly Owned Subsldiary)

During the year, the plant runs with optimum PLF i.e 82.82%. With the increase in revenue, the
Company has increased its PAT from INR 343.42 Lakhs to INR 443.96 Lakhs.

During the opening of the current year.D ay: of INR 6525.03 Lakhs. A further loan of INR
947.10 Lakhs was given by.DE 1861 akhs was re-paid. Interest at
a rate of 10% per anni ‘ ; X
outstanding as o

mited Capex. The Thailai

100, respectively,

Both are funded from 7 Tree of USD 2 Million

which reduced to USD 0.65 m

i

DEE Fabricom LLC, UAE (Jointly Controlled Entity)
The Company has closed its operation due to non-availability of major customers in the region.

DEE Fabricom India Private Limited

During the year, the tumnover of the Company increased double fold from INR 7.98 Crores to INR
15.87 Crores. The Company has executed 126 Section during the year.
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During the opening of the current year DEE has loan of INR 696.46 Lakhs. A further loan of INR
841.50 Lakhs was given by DEE during the year and INR 375 Lakhs was re-paid. Interest at a rate
of 10% per annum on the -daily outstanding balance amounted to INR 101.97 Lakhs. Current
outstanding as on 31 March 2020 was 1162.96 Lakhs.

The Working capital facility and Term..
Gopal Das Bhawan, 28, BarakF
guaranteed by your Cg
2021 was INR 224;

oing projects to said Atul

tment, gge will contin g
ame term cond:tlons

i) iy retirement by
rotation, bein -appointment, she will
continue to a VI Wi ms & conditions.,

if) Due to untimely d sati:Non-executive Director, he

iv) Mrs. Shikha Bansal has jomed the Company as Whole-time Director of the Company w.e.f
01.12.2020. Mrs. Bansal is taking care for the administration Dept. of the Company.

Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal, Chairman & Managing Director, Mrs. Shikha Bansal, Whole-time Director,
Mrs. Ashima Bansal, Whole-time Director, Mr. Gaurav Narang, Chief Financial Officer and Mr.




', Meetlng.

§ COST AUDITORS & COST AUDIT REPORT

il

":Ranjan Kumar Sarangi, Cdmpany Se'éretary were designated as Key Manageriai Personnel in
' pursuance of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013.

CSR EXPENDITURE ELIGIBLE FOR SPENDING Di_JFx’.iNG 2020-21.

On 22.01.2021 the Company has incorporated its own Section 8 wholly-owned Subsidiary in the
' Iovmg memory of its deceased CEQ & Whole-tlme Director Mr. Atul Krishan Bansal. The Company
has decided to.spend its entire.G ge ! Bansal Foundation only. The
Company has spent Rs«{ Jirectly:: ) '_ee_ to Atul Krishan Bansal’
Foundation for sper ) : ccid activities as giveniin ..

Affairs, the appointment of Tatu_

The Company has made and maintain cost accounts'_and records as. specified by the Central
Gd\rgrnment under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013,
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Pursuant to section 148 of the Cd‘rriﬁé'ﬁies Act, 2013, 'the ﬁo'eird of Dire'dtors on recommendation
- of the Audit Committee appomted M/s JSN & Co, Cost Accountants, M-11, Shastri Nagar, near
inderlok Metro Station, Delh|-1 10052 for the Financial Year 2021-22 and has recommended their
remuneration to the shar_eholders for their ratification at the ensuung_ Annual General Meeting. The

. Cost Auditors’ Report for the financial year 2020-21 does not contain any qualification, reservation

of adverse remark.

Your company has (eceivéd i
- Auditors for conducting; 4 [, 2021-22 along with a

certificate confirring i fiad that they are free from
om the Cost Auditors
Y.

" DETAILS IN'RESPECT OF #RAubS REPORTED BY AUDlTORS'UNDER sSUB SECTio"N'
(12) OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO _HE'
CENTRAL GOVERNME : :

During the year, no such
than those which are reportable to

(12) of Section 143 other

3 GOING CONCERNS - [

There was ho orders passed by Régu[ators, Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status- |

_ and Corhpany’s operations in future.




INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has adequate internal financial control vis-a-vis the size of the Company. The
Internal Control Systems are regularly being reviewed by the Company’s Internal Auditors with a
view to evaluate the efficacy and adequacy of Internal Control Systems in the Company, its
compliance with operating systeins, accounting p}&qedures and policies at all locations of the
' SZaTe § erly andzwherever required, are modified/

ove the Board closely

Nature
of Duties

Shikha
Bansal

time

 Director |

Malwa
Power Pwvt.
Lid.

DEE
Developm
ent
Engineers
Ltd.

HUMAN RESOURCES

HR practices of your Company aim to enhance the capability of the organization through creating
performance and result drivén culture, employee value proposition and supporting operations
throdgh effective systems and processes. HR Department of your_Coinpany has conducted
multiple fraining programs as and when required by employees to involve more and more




employees. The Company continued to invest in creating progressive human resources practioés
to create value for its customers, stakeholders and investors.

Your Directors place on record. their appreciation for the continuing support extended during the
year by the Company’s customer, business __§§§ciates, supplier, bankers, investors, government




Pursuant to Section'92(3) of the ComniaAa, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies {Mcmqgemem & Administration ) Rules, 2014,
! EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
on the financial year ended on 31/03/2021

_ " As
EGISTRATION & OTHER D

Annexlmell
FORM NO. MGT 9

i |CIN ]U74I4OI-IR1988PL(3030225
ii_|Registration Date - March 21, 1988
iii._ |Name of the Company DEE Development Engmeers Llrnlted

Category/Sub-category of thie" Company

Company Lumted by Shar&eﬂndmn Non-Govt. Cornpames_

Address of the Registered office & contact
details

House No 1255, Seotor-l_tl Faridabad, Haryana—lZlﬂl]Z

¢ Telephone (with STD Code} : _ +91-127-5248345
Fax Number : : +91-127-5248314 .
Email Address : |ranjank sarangi@despiping.com
Website, if any: www.deepiping com '
vi |Whether listed company. N.A
~ |Nameand Address and contact detail of the Registrar & Transfer Agents ( RTA ), i any:-
< |Name IMAS Services Limited ] '
Vi Addres_s ) T-34,2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-z New Delhl-l 10010
Telephone - _ {#91-01 1-26387281 82,83
Fax Number . N.A - :
" |Email Address " lwww.masserv.com

.1 |Malwa Power Private Limited U40107HR2002PTC067195 Whole-owned | 4, 287)
- . . Subsidiary,

Whole-owned :

2 |DEE Piping Systems (Thailand) Co., Lid 0105557148913 Subsidiary 100 287)
. Jointly .

3 |DEE Fabricom LLC, UAE 355400 Controlled 49 26)

.. . . _ _ Eintity
4 [DEE Fabricom India Private Limited . U28990HR2018PTC076325 w;‘f;:;gi‘f“‘r:d | 100 2(87)
' ' Whole-owned | '
s | acul Keishan Bansal Foundation U85300DL202.]N.PL3.76061 Subsidiary 100 287)
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n) Indivicua¥ HUE

. 0 Ary Oabers.

|G- Skares beld by Custadlun for GDR3 & ADRY
| Grund Totat tA+B4C)

IV.  SHARE BOLDING PATTERN (Gquity Skice Capital Breakap s perciatags of Tetal Equlty)

L Calegory-wise Share Helding

Leniat

1) Todian

1) Cenleal Giowt

AL

100811

Sub-setal (AN1):|

TEEr

ug,s_n-

{2 Forvipn

a) NRI - Individualf

- b) Otter - Individialr
) Bodies Corp. .

Al Banks /1

Su
Tedal sharehglding of Prarsater (A) = (AC1) +

1493811

{5 Fublic Sharboiing

1. Tasiltutlens

a) Miuhisl Fands

1) Boanka / FT

<) Uemlal(iwll

Stale G 5

£} Venture Capital Furds

It lmsusance Compainiss

Flls
li} Foreign Vi L Fonds.

50.81 387

D]

i) Onbers {specifv)

Sub-total (B}1):-

2. Nen-Inatiwticas

o) Bodies Corp.

1) Indian

it} Overseas

i} Individuot shareloders hekding nominal
shane capitdl uplo Rs { laky

holding nominal

#
share capital im excess of By 1 kikh

<) Oikers i)
Sub-tolal 2= -

[Tatal Fublic Shareholding (BY-(B)(DY* (B}2)
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Ehares of e ll
wmpady

1
2
3 [Mrs, Ashina Bansal SR0000 1)
4 |Mms, Skikla Bonsal 100 (1]
5 M. Cham Agaroal {2 LY
4§  |DDE Piping Componenls Priveie Linitod 1493811 1%
< TOTAL 14585084 8% %% 0%
iif Champe in Premeoters” Sharebolding { plessa specify, if there i nb change) .
1__ M. Krishon Lalk Bansa .4 1]
032021
—
2 |Mr. Ashima Bansal 361 01-04-2020]
| - 351 31:0320%1
1 .
|3 |Mr.a\h|l Krishon Latit Barsal L¥¥E 0104-2020
: L7 3105-20%1

4 |M5 Shikhy Bangot

5 i Cham il

6__IDDE Py i Limined
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Stareholding Pattesn of top ke Shapeboliters fother thaw Divectors, Py and Holders of GDRs andd ADSsj

31032021

01-4-2020

125 1033021
]
. ot ] 837
£33
hdr. Rishabh Chingalia HY
: 31

T

. Kriskon Lail Basal 50,33 01-04:2020
152 S031% FTETET] ToETET W37
ME, Abyl Kishan Baneal 393326 1% D010
293326 147% 3003021 793316 187%
Wirs. Ashis Bansal 50000 EI3TA [IES )
. 250000 3.61% 3033051 3300 YT
Mz Manizh Tine [Fi3 (A $101300 - )
1278 0.01% 31033021 V) Boi%
Me Shankar Namyaman Madhova Meson 12744 _ Do 01042020
; T oiw IR FEE) w05%
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INDERTEDNESS

Tadebiedoess of ibe Company imclwding ioseroay o

) Principal Amoont 19,606.43 1,831.86 -
i) Tserest dog bt mol patd - - -
[ ot due 5156 - .
. Total (Idi+ill) 18,664.3% 1,833.86 .
|Champe [n Lodiciricducss dnring Vhe fimancial year 5 I-I m“‘ deposits Unpecured
~ Additon ' - - —
i LI ErTR S
177380 81158
at the oo of the fi tuding dep
i 1585176 102228 :
1) buerest dos bt mol paid - - -
i) Interesl aocnued bl not 3.7 - -
Total (i) SR04 IV ES] =




REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERITAL PERSONNEL

REMUNERATION TO M4GIW DIRECTOR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS AND/OR MANAGER:

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in - - -
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 :

1 () Value of perquisites ws 17(2) Income-tax - - .
Act, 1961 ’
(<) Profits in lien of salary under section - - -
17(3) Income= tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option - - -

3 |S\irea1 Eultv = - -
Commission - -

47 |-_as % of profit ] . - - -
—others, speoify ) — - - -

5 Others. please specify - - -
Total {A) - 23286668 | - $1,00.000 12,00,000 328,856,668 |
Ceiling as pet the Act 3,84.64,000 | 96,16,000 D616.000{  5.76.96.000 |

* Whole-time Director w.e.f. 01/12/2020
REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:

Farticudars of Rermaacration

Fee for attending Board committee
mectings

Commission -

Otie ease specify -

Fee for attending board commitiee - -
2 meetings .
Commission i - - -
Others. please specify . - - -
i Total (2) - - -
- Total (1+2) 275,000 3.25,000 6,00.000
Total Managerial Remuneration 2.75.000 3,285,000 6,00,000
Overall Ceiling as per the Act - - =
* ceased on 161172020

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

1

M Rinjan K, )
13,35.774

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) oﬁhc lmume-tax
Act, 1961 :

(b) Value ofperquisités ws 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

|(c) Profits in Tieu of salaty under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

Stock Option
|Sweat -gguity

Commission

- as % of profit

- __others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total




VIEE. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT! COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

\ w— ” iy y ; o
g g . Betails of Pena
A Seetion of fhe 't N

. T Compan Briel i . Punishment. ,-\Etrlzeri_t}-'. .
. ) - Deseription Compounding leey FCLT COHRT
Ll ;. _inkposect . -
- A. COMPANY
Penalty [1] NA . NA NA A
Punishment - 1] NA NA NA NA
Compounding g HA NA NA NA
B. DIRECTORS
0 NA NA NA NA
Punishynent 0 NA NA NA ; NA
Ci 1i 0 NA NA NA ) NA
: C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
[1] NA NA NA NA
Punishment 0 NA NA NA NA
Compoundin; ] NA HA NA NA
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Ampexore IT )
DEE Development Engincers Limited
Regd. Office : House No 1255, Sector-14, Faridabad, Haryana-121002
CIN : UT140HR1998PLCOMI22S
FORM NO. AOC.2

Ferm for disch of particulars of contracis elmredinmbyﬂ:ecn-punywlﬂlmlnl.odpﬂ'ﬁuufermdmiumiﬂn(llol'manlssoltheCompmM.wﬂmdudbgurumamslen
transettions ender third provise therets,

[Pl_rmnt 1o clawse (b} of sub-section (3) of seetion 134 of the Act tod Rube 3(2) of the Cnnplu'iu (Accoumds) Rules, 2014]

of oniracts o ot s o7 irangi 15 Bl

(0 [A a ary wil au of N

() [Natore of ; f joms . NA

16} | Ducation of the: f armng / i NA

(djsdmmsufﬂnwmwmmlsu NA
transaetions including the value, if any

(¢ [Pustfcaion. for enering isio such coaracts o A ’
arangs menms oF tansadtions, i

{f) | Date(s) of approval by the Board NA

| (@) [Amount paid as advances, ifany: MNA
- |Date on which the special meolution was passed in|

L] Gmrall&lecmsasrequwdumerﬁmww&om NA

section 148.

arls ar Aerenoyment e lansactions W Cni's Lm0

@ |Name(s} of the rclaed party and nalure of]
! L8 Lretasonsti
) — ] Rs 1249 Labhs RP—
[b)lNawreol’ " ; IRampdes.Ol,Gllldtls _ |sueommsns as2lans  (SabolGondsRe 1AL ] e of aw M
whon of e ? ; ! ' [T i Tad ket place| Transactions had taken phace durlng | Trazsactions had taken place during the Transactions had taken place during the,
] . - dwring the peried (st Apsil, 2020 wfthe period 15t April, 202010 315t wﬁﬁlﬂﬁpﬁﬂ,mﬂwﬂﬂh‘ﬂ,ml period Lt Apeil, 2020 %0 3 13t Mar, 2021
315t Mo, 2031 1 -

[Salient tzrms of #ie conlracis or arangements of o i | . . i B .
111 joas inchuding the vatve, if oay: General Ti [ iﬂeneni Business Transactions |Gcneml Business Transactions
(0 [Datets) ot approva by e Boac ieany: In st Booed Mecting of heyear [ Within 90 dags of tanscoion [#sin 90 dags of ranseaion [sin 90 daysof wamscaton
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Annexure -l -

The Annual Report on CSR Activities

1. Brief outline on CSR Pollcy of the Cornpany Refer CSR Policy attached
2. Composition of CSR Committee

Designation /

Sl No. | Name of Diractor Number of Number of
' Nature of meetings of CSR | meetings of CSR
Directorship Committee held | Committee
during the year attended during
the year.
1. Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal ' Chairman and 2 2
Managing
Director
2. Mr. Ajay Kumar Marchanda Independent 2 p
Director
3. Mr. Atul Krishan Bansal Non-executive 2 0
(deceased on 16.11.2020) | Director
3. Providé the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projécts

approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: www.deepiping.com
Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3}

of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Soctal responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, if applicable
{attach the report); N.A
betails of the amount available for set off In pursuance of sub-rule (3} of rule 7 of the

Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rul_es, 2014 and amount required for set off
for the financial year, if any: N.A

Amount available for set-off from{Amount required to be set-off

Sl. No.- 'Financia_l Year 1
: preceding financial years {in Rs) for the financial year, if any (in
) -
1
2
3

Total

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 3810.87 Lakhs

7.

-a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per séction 135(5): Rs. 76.21 Lakhs




"

b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years. NIL

c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: N.A

d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7h-7¢). Rs, 76.21 Lakhs

8. )
a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Amount Unspent (in INR Lakhs)
Total Amount '
Spent for the | Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Financial Year.| unspent CSR Account as per |under Schedule VIl as per second proviso to
section 135(6). section 135(5).
Amount. Date of- Name of the Amount, Date of
’ transfer, Fund transfer.
33.71 directly N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
and 42.51
through own
WOS (as on
| balance sheet
date)
b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financlal year: N.A
W @ (ela| o |e@|o]e® (10) (a1)
Sl.| Name of | tem | Local | Location [Project|Amoun|Amou|Amount| Mode of Mode of
[Nol the from | area | ofthe [duratio] t nt transferrrlmplementat] Implementati
.| Project. [the list|{Yes/N| project. | n. Jallocat|spent{ edto |ion- Direct | on- Through
of a). ed for | in the |Unspent| (Yes/No). |Implementing
activiti the |curren CSR Agency
esin _ |project] t [Account '
Schedy stat| Distel (in Rs.).lﬁnanci for'the Naml CSR
le Vil e. | ct al Year| project e [Registrati
to the {in | asper on
Act. ‘Rs.}. | Section number.
135(6)
{in Rs.).
1, |Promotion| Yes | Palwal | On | 6,50 | 6.50 Yes - |NA} NA
of going
Education
2.| Reducing Yes | Palwal On | 024 | 0.24 Yes NA| NA
Child going
mortality




Beti Yes | Palwal | On | 5.33 | 5.33 - Yes NA} NA
Bachao going -
Beti |
Padhao |
Rural Yes | Palwal | On |1262|1262| - Yes NA| NA
Developm going ’
ent
Projects
.| Social- Yes | Palwal | On 0,55 | 0.55 - “Yes  |N.A| NA
| Business going -
Project .
.|Eradicatin Yes |Palwalaind] On | 3.45 | 3.45 . - Yes NA| NA
g extreme| Faridabad | going
hunger .
and
poverty
Atul Yes | Palwal | On { 5.50 | 5.50 - No Yes| Applied
Krishan and | going | for -
Bansal |Faridabad] -
Foundatio '
n{awos| .
formed
for this
purpose)
Atul Yes | Palwal [ On {42.50|42.52 - No Yes | Applied
Krishan and ‘[going| . | for
Bansal . |Faridabad]
Foundatio I
n {(a WOS
formed
for this
purpose)
Total
. ¢) - Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
Rs. 76.21 Lakhs ‘
(1) (2) B | @ {5) {6) {7} (8}
Sk No. Item |Local| Lecation of |[Amountl Modeof - Mode of
: from the| area | the project. | spent [implementation| implementation -
list of for the Through




a

10

activities| (Yes/ project - Direct Impleméntiug

Name -
of the in No). {inRs.).] (Yes/No). agency.
schedule
Project , .
Vil to the| State.|District. Name.| CSR.
Act. |registration
' number,
1.
2.
3.

Total

d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: N.A-+

e} Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: N.A

f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 76.21 Lakhs
g) Excess amount for set off, if any. N.A

Sl No., Particular L Amount {in INR Lakhs})
() [rwo percent of average riet profit of the company as 76.21
er section 135(5)
(i) ' [Total amount spent for the Financial Year 76.21
“(iii) [Excess-amount spent for the financial year [{il}-(i)] 0
(iv) [surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes. 0
or activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 0
ears [{iii)-{iv))

9. a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Rs. 107.98 Lakhs*

Sk. No.| Preceding | Amount [Amount spent|/Amount transferred to any] Amount

Financial Yeartransferred to in the fund speéified under remaining
Unspent CSR | reporting |Schedule Vil as per section| to be spent
1 . Account |Financial Year 135(6), if any. in
under section|  (in Rs.). - succeeding
135 (6) (in Rs.) . [Mame of| Amount| Date of | financial

the Fund] {in Rs). [transfer. years.)(in
Rs.




L
T

®

1. 2019-2020 - : 114.29 - - - 107.98
(accrued till
3_1.03.2020)

Total

b} Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the precedmg financial year(s):
N.A '

wm|la(le| @ [ |n]| @ | o

Sl No. | Project Name off Financial | Project Total | Amount [Cumulative; Status of
D. the Yearin [duration] amount |spenton| amount [the project
Project.| which the lallocated| the spent at -
project was for the project inf the end of [Completed
commenced. project | the [ reporting [/Ongoing.

{in Rs.). [reporting| Financial

Financial| Year. (in
Year(in| Rs.)
Rs).

Total

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created
or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: N.A
(a} Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s}.
{b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. _
{c} Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc,

. {d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or aoquured {including compléte address and

location of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s}, if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per section 135(5). N.A

sd/- Sd/- sd/-
K.L. Bansal K.L. Bansal Gaurav Narang
{CMD} - {Chairman CSR Committee) {CFO)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Annexures to the Board's Report
Annexure-1
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITY.
1. Brief outline of CSR Poliéy, activities to be undertaken and the web-link to the CSR‘
Policy & activities. ,

The CSR policies of the Company covers following broad areas. Going forwards, various
projects witl be implemented under these categories. Since the Company is located at
rural area, the CS5R Committee of the Board is optimistic to fulfill its obligations to the
satisfaction of real beneficiaries. Main headings under which CSR activities of the
Company will be carried are as under; ' '

a. eradicating extreme hunger and poverty
’'b. Promotion of éducation.
¢. Promoting gender equality and empowering women.
d. Reducing child mortality and improving maternal health and combating human
" immunodeficiency virus, acquired immune deficiency syndrome, malaria and
other diseases. , ’ -
e. ensuring environmental sustainability
f. employment enhancing vocational skills
g. Social business - projects in Infrastructure Support - construction, repair,
extension etc. : _ :
. h. contribution to the Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund or any other fund set

up by the Central Government or the State Governments for socio-econemic
development and relief and funds for the welfare of the Scheduled Castes, the
Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women

i. Rural Development Projects '

j. Swachh Bharat Scheme

k., Beti Bachao Beti Padhao

2. Compesitioﬁ of CSR Commitiee i5:

SL [ Name of Committee Member | Designation
No g i : _
1 Mr. Ajay Kumar Marchanda ' Chairman
- B {Independent Director)
2 Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal Member :
3 Mr..Atul K Bansal {deceased on 16.11.2020) | Member

Average Net Profit of the Company for tast Three financial Years: Rs. 3810.87 Lakh
Prescribed CSR Expenditure: 2% of Average Net Profit computed to Rs. 76.21 Lakh
Henceforth, the Company has decided to undertake all its CSR activities though Atul
Krishan Bansal Foundation, a Section.8 Company registered in remembrance of Late
Mr. Atul Krishan Bansal, the only son of Mr. Krishan Lalit Bansal, Chairman of the

Company.

SO




Power

6. Projects undertaken by the Company are in and around the villages where Works of
the Company is situated. The Company has transferred Rs. 42.50 Lakhs which was
outstanding in respect of its ongoing Rural Development Projects to the aforesaid
Foundation. ' -

7. Detail of Financial Spend during the Financial Year

a. Total Amount to be spent during the financial Year: Rs. 76.21 Lakh

b. Amount Spend under CSR: Rs. 33.71 Lakhs

-c. Amount set off with excess spending in FY 20: NIL

d. Amount unspent (as on balance Sheet date): NIL*

e. Manner in which amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:;

112 3 4 5 6 7 8

S {CSR Sector in which | Project or | Amou | Amount Cumulati | Amount

L | Project |[the project is|Program |nt spent  on | ve spent

N | of covered (1) Local |Outla | Project or | Expendit | directly

0 | activity . Area |y Program | ure upto |or
identifie (2) Other | (Budg | (1) Direct | the through
d . et) Expens | reportin |the

Specif | Proje es g period | implemen
y the|ct or|(2) Overh ting
State | Progr eads agency
N or am
" Distric | wise
t in
. which
the
progra
m was
under

_ taken

1 | Promotio | Rural Education Village Rs. Direct Rs. 06.05 | Directly
n of Jatola and | 06.05 | Expenses | Lakh
Education | Tatarpur | Lakh

& Prithla
and area
near to
power

_ Plant :

2 | Reducing {Fully . equipped | Palwal Rs. Direct Rs. 0.24 | Through
Child Mobile Medical | and 0.24 | Expenses | Lakh Prayas
mortality | Vans and Donation | Faridabad | Lakh Social

to Prayas Social Welfare
: Welfare Society : ____| Society

3 | Beti Contribution  to | Village Rs. Direct Rs. 05.33 | Directly -
Bachao BPL category Girl's [ Jatola & | 05.33 [Expenses | Lakh
Beti birthday, Tatarpur | Lakh
Padhao education & |of Piping

marriage unit and
area near




; Plant
Rural Expenditure  on | Village Rs. Direct Rs. 12.62 | Directly
Developm | Inverter and Road | Jatola and | 12.62 | Expenses | Lakh ‘
ent Barriers and Road | Tatarpur, | Lakh - ‘
Projects | Cleanliness, Prithla of
- - Bustbin Piping
) L unit _
Social Sponsorship to | Village Rs. Direct Rs. 00.55 | Directly
Business | sports player and | near to| 00.55 {Expenses | Lakh
-Project | Sports club Piping Lakh
' Plant _
 Eradicati | Grant/donation/fi | Donation | Rs. Indirect Rs. 03.45 | Through
ng nancial | to Anchal | 03.45 |Expenses | Lakh Anchal
- extreme | assistance/sponsor | Chhaiya Lakh Chhailya
hunger | ship to reputed | Education Education
] and NGOs of the|and -| and
poverty | Society/locality Rehabilita - ‘Rehabilita
B doing/involve  in | tion- tion
upliftment of the | society society
standard of the
society & poverty
| alleviation -
| Atul Implementing All Rs. | Direct Rs. 5.50 | Direct
Krishan Agency Ongoing 5.50 | Expenses |Lacs
Bansal - -Projects | Lacs :
Foundati of Parent
on ; i Company T i )
Atut Implementing All Rs. Direct Rs. 42.51 | Direct
Krishan Agency Ongoing 42.50 | Expenses | Lacs
Bansal o Projects | Lacs
Foundati of Parent
on Company,

8. The Company- has spent two percent of average net profit of the company for last
three financial year or par{ thereof :

compliance with the objective of the Company and Company policy.

For DEE Development Engineers Limited

(Krishan Lalit Bansal) .
(CSR Commiittee Chairman)

9, It is hereby stated that the implementatlon and monitoring of CSR policy is m
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Annexure to the Directors’ Report

Form MNo.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the CompaniesAct,2013and ruleNo.9 of the Companies {Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members,

M/5 Dee Development Engineers Limited,
1255, Sector-14, Faridabad,

Haryana, India,

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by M/S Dee Development Engineers Limited CIN
No.U74140HR1988PLC0O30225(hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided me reasonable basls for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutary compliances and expressing my
opinion therean,

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit I hereby report that in my opinion the
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March 2021('the Audit period”) ,
complied with the statutory provisions listed here under and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on the 31st March 2021 , according to the provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013(the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the rules made there under { not applicable to
the Company during the Audit period);

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act.1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’) (not applicable to the Company during the Audit period):-

(a)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeavers) Regulations, 2011; :

ABHA NANDA
FCS.
C.P No 10915

Udinwp. - F 0032732.A 000599923
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(b)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,1992;
(c)The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements)Regulations, 2009

(d)The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(e)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Rég'ulmans,
2009; and

(h)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

vi) | have relied on the representations made by the Company and its officers for systems and mechanism
formed by the Company under the following heads;

1) Factories Act, 1948

2] Industrial Disputes Act, 1947

3) Labour Laws and other Allied Laws

4) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

5] Water (Prevention and Contrel) Act, 1974 and the rules made there under

6) Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and the rules made there under

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
)] Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India .

{ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange(s)
{ not applicable to the Company during the Audit period).

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

ABHA NANDA
FC.S
C.P No 10915

WDIN Np. - FODA2FAA00059992]
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I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the compaosition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. Adequate
notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, and agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All the decisions of the Board Meetings were carried through by majority and it was informed that there were
nd dissenting views of the members and hence not captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that

On review of compliance mechanism established by the Company and on the basis of the Compliance
Certificate(s) issued by the Company Secretary and taken on record by the Board of Directors at their Meeting(s),
we are of the opinion that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

As informed, the Company has responded appropriately to notices received from various statutory/ regulatory
authorities including initiating actions for corrective measures, wherever found necessary.

Place :Gurugram Abha Nanda
Date: [§© SQFr 202) FCS No.3272 CPN0:10915
UDIN F003272A000599923
NANDA
FC.5

CP No.10815
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of DEE Development Engineers Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of DELE Development Engineers
Limited (“the Company™). which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2021. the Statement of Profit
and Loss including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income. the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and notes to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements. including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs). as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilitics under those Standards
are further described in the ~Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the “Code of
Ethics™ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder.
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the note 37 of standalone Ind AS financial statements, which explains the uncertainties
and the management’s assessments of financial impact related to CoVID-19 Pandemic situation, for which
a definitive assessment of the impact in subsequent period is dependent on future economic developments
and circumstance as they evolve.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

5.R. Batlibo! & Co. LLP, a Limited Liabllity Partnesship with LLP ldentity No. AAB-4294
Regd, Office : 22, Camac Streal, Blogk ‘B, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Chartered Accountants

Our opinion on the standalone ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. our responsibility is (o read the
other information and. in doing so. consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. I, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS linancial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safcguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent: and the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls. that were
operating effeetively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable. matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends (o liquidate the
Company or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so,

Fhose Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions ol users taken on the basis of these
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identily and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as
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fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act. we are also responsible
[or expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and.
based on the audit evidence obtained., whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to modity
our opinion. Our conelusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However. future events or conditions may cause the Company (o ccase 1o continue as a going
coneern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlyving transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable. related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

-2

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order. 2016 (“the Order™). issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act. we give in the
“Annexure 1™ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and cxplanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books:

(¢) The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and lLoss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income. the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:

(d) In our opinion. the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:
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(e)

()

(h)

The matter described in Emphasis of Matter - paragraph above. in our opinion, may have an adverse
elTect on the functioning of the Company:

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terins of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness ol such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 27 to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the vear ended March 31. 2021 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act:

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014. as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 30 to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foresecable losses:

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 3010031/E300005

per Amit Yadav

Partner

Membership Number: 501753
UDIN: 21501753AAAAEGOY98

Place of Signature: Faridabad
Date: September 20, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements™ of our report of even date

Re: DEE Development Engincers Limited (‘the Company®)

(1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

(b)

(i)

(iif) (a)

(iv)

(v)

(c)

(b)

(c)

and situation of lixed assets.

All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a
regular programme of verification which, in our opinion. is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties included in fixed assets are pledged with the banks and not available with
the Company. The same has not been independently confirmed by the bank and hence we are unable
to comment on the same,

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals except
for regular consumables in nature of stores, spares and packing material. which have not been
verified during or at the end of the year. Discrepancies noted on physical verification of inventories
were not material, and have been properly dealt with in the books of account. Inventories lying with
third parties have been confirmed by them as at March 31, 2021 and no material discrepancies were
noticed in respect of such confirmations.

The Company has granted loan to companies covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Companies Act. 2013. Loan granted to two of wholly owned subsidiary i.e DEE Piping
Systems (Thailand) Co. Ltd and Dee Fabricom India Private Limited is repayable on Demand. In
our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions
of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company's interest.

The Company has granted loans to companies covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Companies Act. 2013. The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has
been stipulated for the loans granted and the repayment/receipts are regular, except for loan granted
to wholly owned subsidiary, DEE Piping Systems (Thailand) Co. Ltd and Dee Fabricom India
Private Limited that is re-payable on demand. We are informed that the company has not demanded
repayment of such loan during the year, and thus, there has been no default on the part of the parties
to whom the money has been lent.

There are no amounts of loans granted to companies. firms or other parties listed in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act. 2013 which are overdue for more than ninety
days.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to directors including entities in which
they are interested and in respect of loans and advances given, investments made and, guarantees,
and securities given have been complied with by the company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly. the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.
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(vi)

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act. 2013, related to the manufacture of Pre-fabricated piping equipment’s and fittings.
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund. employees’ state insurance. income-tax, sales-

tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and
other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases.

(vii) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in

respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax , service tax. sales-tax, customs
duty. excise duty. value added tax. goods and service tax. cess and other material statutory dues
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(vii) (¢) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, service

(viii)

(ix)

tax, duty of custom. excise duty, value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

(Rs in Lacs)

S.No | Name of Nature of Dues Amount Deposit | Period to | Forum where
Statute Amount | which the | dispute is
amount pending
- = relates
1 The Central | Wrong availment of 32.86 Nil 2002-03 | Punjab and
Lixcise Act exemption and notification Haryana High
of excise duty for the Court,
| clearances of goods | Chandigarh
2 The Finance | Service tax liability on 6.50 Nil 2014-15 | CESTAT,
Act 1994 reimbursement of expenses Chandigarh
3 Income Tax | Demand relating to Fringe 1.03 Nil 2009-10 | Assessing
Act 1961 Benefit Tax Officer
4 Income Tax | Tax including interest on 160.02 Nil 2017-18 | Assistant
Act 1961 disallowance of expenses Commissioner
and transfer pricing of Income Tax
o | adjustments - o |
5 Income Tax | Disallowance related to 6.18 Nil 2018-19 | Commissioner
Act 1961 employee contribution and 2019- | of Income Tax
deposited after duc date 20 (Appeals)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution. bank or
government or dues to debenture holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has utilized the monies raised by term loans for the purposes for which they were raised.
Further, according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments.
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(x)

(x1)

(xii)

(xiii)

(x1v)

{xv)

{xvi)

Based upon the audit procedures perforimed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud / material fraud on the company
by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management. the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion. the Company is not a nidhi company, Therefore. the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. as required
by the applicable accounting standards

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet. the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence. reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and. not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management. the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to
in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAL lirg Registration Number: 301003E/E:300005

peramit Yaday

Partner

Membership Number: 501753
UDIN: 21501 753AAAAEGG998

Place of Signature: Faridabad

Date: September 20. 2021
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DEE DEVELOPMENT ENGINEERS
LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements of
DEL Development Engineers Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the Company lor the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over [inancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("1CAI™). These
responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct ol its business, including
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls. both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these standalone Ind AS
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and
evaluating the design and operating elfectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement. including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these standalone Ind AS
[inancial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements
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includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain te the maintenance of records that. in reasonable
detail. accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use. or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
stalements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

Because ol the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls.
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements to
future periods are subject 1o the risk that the internal financial control with reference 1o standalone Ind AS
linancial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion. the Company has. in all material respects. adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal linancial controls with reference to standalone
Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the [CAL

For S.R. Batliboi & COQO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Finm Beeistration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Amit Yadav

Partner

Membership Number: 501753
UDIN: 21501753AAAALG6998

Place of Signature: Faridabad
Date: September 20, 2021
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date
For 8. R, Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAL FirmyRegistration Mumber: 301003E/E300005

per iyt Yaday
Pariner

Membership No: 501753

Place : Fiowy EM

Date 20’0“][2@1!‘

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021 (Amt in INR Lacs)
. Asat Asat
Particulars : Notes 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
ASSETS
(1} Non-current asscts Bic
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 21,(1?_2.;6-] 2227790
(b) Capital work-in-progress - 3 144,24 1R8.02
(c) Imangible assets 3(a) 220.06, 221.27
(d) Rightofusc assets 36 229.72 “ONTe
-(e) Tnvestment in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity 4 571202 | 571102
(f) Financial assets
(i) Loans 5(R) 7,033.85 6,282 38
ity Others 5(12) 840.73 518.75
() Other non-current assets 6 249,92 199.06
Total non-current assets 35,503.71 3549435
{2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 7 16,613.87 2251501
(b) Financial assels
{1) Trade receivables 5(A) 18,066.01 17,752.33
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 5(C) 373.12 43.32
(iii) Loans 5(B) 247.07 -
(iv) Others 5(D) 2,900.60 327515
(c) Other current assets 6 3,076.55 277534
Total current assets 41,277.22 46,361.15
Total Assets 76,750,493 81,855.50
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 8 1,569.27 1,569.27
(b) Other equily 9 47,855.58 45.621.10
Total equity 49,424.88 47,190.37
LIABILITIES
(1) Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 10{A) 809.37 784,85
(i) Other 1 199.77 79.43
(b) Deferred tax liabilities {net) 15(C) 2,123.44 288241
(c) Provisions 12 935,34 T72.69
() Other non-current liabilities 14 93.15 174.26
Taotal non-current lizhilitics 3.321.07 3,993.64
{2} Current linbilitics
A (a) Tinancial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 106(B) 15,002.98 19,069.41
(i1) Trade payables
- total outstanding due of micro and small enterprises 16 238,24 52.40
- total outstanding due of other than micro and small enterprises 16 6,317.94 6,047.74
{it1) Other I 1,199.36 916.56
(b) Liabilities for current tax {net) 13 - 236.39
(c) Provisions 12 126.42 160.68
(d)  Other current Habilities 14 1.150.07 4.188.31
Total current liabilities 24,035.01 30,671.49
Total Equity and Liabilities 76,780.93 81,855.50
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
DEE Development Engineers Limited

K.L. Bansal

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN No. 1125121

Ranjai@irangi
Company Secrelary
FCS-8604

Place : Faridabad

Date : September 20, 2021

Ashima Bansal
Diirestor
DIN No. 01928449

Gauvﬂv Narang
ChielFinancial Otneer



DEE Development Enginecrs Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Amtin INR Lacs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Farsilery e 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
I Revenue from operations 17 41.144.78 61.969.09
11 Other income 18 1,627.90  1,838.53
I Total Income (1-+11) 42,772.68 63,807.62
IV Expenses
Cost of material consumed 19 18,126.88 36,9091
Purchases of stock in trade 38.83 1,008.09
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and work-in-progress 20 3,480.25 (975.72)
Employee benefit expenses 24 4,990.98 3,944.63
Depreciation and amortization expense 22 2,212.55 2,092.11
Finance costs 24 1,935.53 2,990.57
Other expenses 23 9.884.63 11,874.11
Total expenses (1V) 40,669.65 59.843.40
¥V Profit before tax (ITI-IV) 2,103.03 3,964.22
VI Tax expense:
{1) Current tax 671.08 1,315.80
(2)  Adjustment related to earlier years (12.85) -
(3) Deferred tax (credit)/ charge (766.83) (108.44)
VIL  Profit for the year (V-VI) 2.211.63 2,756.86
VIIL  Other comprehensive income 25
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss;
Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans 30.72 (81.53)
Income tax effect (7.87) 2849
Net Comprehensive gain/(loss) 22,85 (53.04)
IX  Total comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (VII+VIIT) 2,234.48 2,703.82
Earnings per equity share nominal value of shares INR 10 each 2%
(Previous year INR 10 each):
- Basic earnings per share 14.09 17.23
- Diluted earnings per share 14.09 17.23
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S, R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Ahit Yaday
Partner
Membership No: 501753

Place : Q&J‘G&&Mo
Date - QD[ oa”},o)_’

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
DEE Development Engineers Limited

K.L. Bansal
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN No, 01125121

RanjanSarangi
Company Secretary
FCS-8604

Place : Faridabad
Date : September 20, 202

Ashima Bansal
Director
DIN No. 01928449

Gaurav Narang
Chigf Financial Officer
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Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Amtin INR Lacs)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

A, Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before income tax

Adjustments to recancile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense

Loss on sale/ discard of fixed assets (net)

Finance costs

Amartization of deferred revenue on advance received from MNRE
Amortization of deferred revenue obligation

Impairment of Investments in Joint Venture

Unrealized gain/loss on foreign exchange (net)

Provision for doubtful debts and advance

Sundry balances written off

Finance income

Operating profit before working capital changes

Waorking capital adjustments:

Change in trade receivables

Change in inventories

Change in current/non-current financial assets
Change i other current/non-current assets
Change in trade payables

Change in provisions

Change in current/non-current financial Habilities
Change in other current/non-current liabilities
Cash generated/(used in) from operations

Direct tax pad
Net eash (outflow)/ inflow from operating activities

Cash flow from investing nctivities

Purchase of property, plant & equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment
Loans given to related party

Loan repayment from related party

Investment in wholly owned subsidiary company
Investments in bank deposits

Proceeds from redemption/ maturity of bank deposits
Interest received

Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowing

Interest paid

Principle repayment of lease liabilities

Interest Paid on lease liabilitics

Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from financing activities

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents A+B+C)

Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents

Notes:

1

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the *Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard-7, "St

2,103.03 3,964.22
221255 2,092.11
7.98 42727
1,935.53 2,990,57
(5.70) (7.64)
(53.58) (60.07)
: 85.48
(342.07) (325.64)
. 65.39
217 2371
(705.42) (793.41)
5,154.49 8,076.99
(88.30) 5,080.33
590114 2,719.87
(4.16) 92,67
(58191) 1,656.73
454,90 (3.101.74)
(11.61) 78.53
(246.92) (165.00)
(3.065.58) (5.717.31)
7,512.03 8,721.07
(637.43) (1,564.40)
6,874.60 7,156.67
(879.27) (1,579.20)
596 2749
(2.671.05) (5.767.69)
1,676.86 3,233.54
(1.00) (200.00)
(1,587.19) (1,296.63)
1,680.52 2,118.46
769.07 83228
(1,006.10) (2.631.75)
1,203.79 421,68
(4,756.56) (3,672.60)
(1,935.57) (2,684.81)
(31.25) (15.51)
(19.11) (10.99)
(5,538.70) (5,962.26)
329.80 (1,437.34)
43.32 1,480.66
373.12 43.32

atement of Cash Flows"



DEE ﬁevelopment Engincers Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Amt in INR Lacs)
Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 3.88 5.78
Balance with banks 309.24 37.54
Total 373.12 43.32

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Finp Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per it Yadav
Partner
Membership No: 501753

Place : eyt (ﬂﬂ’g""’P

Date : 2.0 gq| 203

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
DEE Development Engineers Limited

IK.L. Bansal Ashima Bansal
Chairman & Managing Director Director

DIN No. 01125121 DIN No. 01928449
Ranjan $arangi Gaursv Narang
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
FCS-8604

Place : Faridabad
Date ; September 20, 2021



DEE Development Engineers Limited
Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2021

{Amt in INR Lacs)

A. Equity share capital:

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully Equity Shares

paid ’ No, in lacs INR lacs

At 31 March 2019 156.93 1,569.27
Increase/ (decrease) during the year = 5
At 31 March 2020 156.93 1,569.27
Increase/ (decrease) during the year - -
At 31 March 2021 156.93 1,569,27

. Drther cquity

Reserves and Surplus

Particulars Securilics Total
; General reserve Retnined carnings
Premium
Balance as at 31 March 2019 16,730.93 458571 21,695.23 43.011.87
Add/ (less):
Profit for the year - - 2,756.8¢ 2,756 86
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - (53.04) {33.04)
Dividend (refer note 41) = - (78.46) (78.46)
Dividend Distribution tax (refer note 41) - - {16.13) (16.13)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 16,730.93 4,585.71 24,304.46 45,621.10
Add/ (less):
Profit for the vear - 221163 2211.63
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 22 85 22,85
Dividend (Refer Note No. 41) - -
Dividend Digtribution tax (Refer Mote No. 41) e E g A
Balance as at 31 March 2021 16,730.93 4,585.71 26,538.94 47.855.58

As per our report of even date

For S, R. Batliboi & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Revicteation Number: 3010035/E300005

per Amit Yadav
Partner
Membership No: 501753

Place:: &Q;M

Date : w)Oﬂ Iw;‘

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
DEE Development Engineers Limited

K.L. Bansal

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN No. 01125121 -

Ranjan‘Sirangi
Company Secretary
FCS-8604

Place ; Faridabad

Dale : September 20, 2021

Ashima Bansal
Director
DIN Mo. 01928444

Gaurhy Narang
Chi¢l Financial Officer



DEE Development Engineers Limited
Nutes to the standalone fi fal st for the year ended March 2021

1. Corporate Information

Dee Development Engineers Limited (“the Company™) is a Limited Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act. The Company 15 mamly
engaged in manufacturing of Pre-fabricated Engineering Products, Pipe Fittings, Piping Systems and Biomass based Power Generation. [t has manufacturing facilities at Tatarpur (Haryana)
and Power Generation Plant at Aboliar (Punjab). The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directars on September 20, 2021

1 Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The Financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting standards (Ind AS8) notified under Companies (Indian Aceounting standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time) presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 11), and other provision of the act

The financial statements of the company have been prepared on o historieal cost basis, excepl for the following assets and liabilities:
(i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounilng poliy regarding financial instruments),

(ii) Defined benefit plan- plan assets measured at fair value and

(iii) Derivative financial instruments.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (INR (10,000), except when otherwise stated,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial in conformity with g lly accepted accounting principles requires | to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of income and expenses of the period, reported balances of assets and linbilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of
aperations during the reporting period, Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ fram these
estimates, Dilference between actunl result and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known/materialise.

Current vs Non Current Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification,

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended 1o be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected 1o be realised within twelve montlhis after the reporting period, or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- Itis expected to be settled in nornnal operating cyele

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period,

All other liabilities we classified as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Foreign currencies
The Company's fi ial are | d in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional currency.

Transaction and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spol rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition,
However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actunl rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary nssets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit and loss,

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary

items measured ot fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e.. translation differences on items whose fair value #ain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCT or profit or loss, respectively).

Company had availed the option of Para 46 A if AS 11 under previous GAAP and also same option has been continued under IND AS as per aption given under IND' AS 101 and
accordingly exchange differences arising on translation of long-term foreign currency monetary items for the period ending immediately before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial
reporting period is deferred/capitalised. A long-tenm foreign currency monetary item is an item having a term of 12 months or more at the date of its origination.
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Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue is recognised 1o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow Lo the Company and the revenue can be reliably n d, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contracually defined tenns of payment and excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements because it typically contrals the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferved to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects 10 be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The Company collects Goods and service tax {GST) on behalf of the govemment and therefore, these are not economic benefits fowing fo the C ompany. Hence, they are excluded from
revenue.

Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the poods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the equipment. Revenue from the sale of
goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates,

In determining the transaction price for the sale of equipment, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant finarcing components, nongash
consideration, and ideration payable to the customer (ifany).

(i) Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the
customer. The variable ideration is esti d at contract inception and c ined until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not oceur when the associated uncertzinty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Rendering of Services
Revenue from erection and services and revenue from Job wark is recognised as per the contractual terms and as and when services are rendered. The Company collects Goods and service
1ax (GST) on behalf of the govermment and, therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the Company. Hence, it is excluded fiom fevenue,

Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured either at amontised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all
the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar aptions) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Sale of Electricity

Revenue from sales of electricity 15 billed on the basis of recording of supply of electricity through installed meters, Revenue from sales of electricity is nccounted for on the basis of
billing to custemers based on billing eycles followed by the Company.

Contract balances
Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer, 1f the Company petforms by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right 1o an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due),
Refer to accounting policies of financial assels in section (p) Financial instrwments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement,

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services o a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an of consideration is Jue} from the
customer. If'a customer pays consideration before the Company translers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is
due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract

Government Grants

CGovernment grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an
asset, it is recognised as an income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset,

When the Company receives grant for non-monetary assets, the asset and the wrant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to Profit or Loss over the expected useful life in a
pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments, When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an
interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant, The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at
fair value and the go grant is d as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the
accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities,




DEE Development Engincers Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 2021

h. Taxation

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are thase that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting dale,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax ilems are
recognised in correlation to the underlying ransaction either in OC] or directly in equity, M ment periodically eval positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability methad on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax linbilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability 10 a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised w the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax eredits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a wansaction that is not a business
combination and, at the lime of the transaction, affests neither the ing profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or pait of the deferred tax asset to be utilised, Unrecognised deferved tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has hecome probable that
tuture taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset fo be recovered,

Delerred tax assets and labilities are measured at the tmx rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asser is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items gnised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity,

Deferred tax includes Minimum Altemate Tax (MAT) and recognises MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the specified peniod Le. the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be caried forward. The Company reviews the "MAT credit entitlement” asset at each
teportmg date and writes down the asset o the extent the Company docs not have any convineing evidence that it will pay normal tax dus mg the specified period.

For operations carvied out under tax holiday period (80IA benefit of Income Tax Act, 1961 ), deferred 1x asset or libilities if any, have been established for the tax consequences of those
temporary differences between the carrying values of asscts and liabilities and their respective tax bases that reverse after the tax haliday period ends,

Property, Plant and Equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. All the property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, nel of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any, Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
ariterta are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company d preci them sep ly based on their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recoghised in the carrying amount of the plant and Juip as a repl if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or Joss as incurred.

The Company, based on technical made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates plant and machineries of piping divisivn over estimated useful lives of 10 0]
235 years which are different from th2 useful life preseribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect
fair approximation of the petiod over which the assets are likely to be used.

In case of other assets, depreciation has been provided on straight line method on the economic useful life preseribed by Schedule 11 to the Companies Act2013. Depreciation on addition
1o or on disposal of Fixed Asset is calculated on pro rata basis, Addition, to Fixed Assets costing less than er equal to Rs, 5,000 are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal, Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecopnised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,
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Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are mensured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impainnent losses, if any.

Amvrtisation of the finite intangible assets is allocated on systematic basis over the best estimate of their useful life and accordingly softwares are amortised on stiaight line basis over the
period of six years or license periad which ever is lower,

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derec d. The Company has no intangible assets with an indefinite life.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construetion or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitaliscd as part of the cost of the asset. All other borowinyg costs are expensed in the period in which they oceur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in conneetion with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange dilferences to the extent regarded us an adjustment to the borrowing costs,

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contiact conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for period of time
in exchange for consideration.

Company as u lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities
to make lease payments and right-of-use nssets representing the right 1o use the underlying assets,

(a) Right-of-use asset

The Company recognises right-ol-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-nf-use assets are measured ai cost, less
any lated depreciation and impai losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liahilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date 1¢ss any lease incentives received. Right-of-u e assets are depreciated on a straight-

line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated uselul lives of the assets, as follows:

Particulars Useful life (years)
As per Management

Leasehold Land 5-10

Computer and data processing equipment 4

If ownership of the leased asset transfirs to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimared
useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impaitment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (2.n) lmpairment of non-financial assets,

(b) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease linhilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantecs. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties
for tenminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expenses (unless they are incurred to produce mventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment oceurs,

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Ce pany uses its i | borrowing rate at the lease ¢ date b the i rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement date, the of lease liabilities is i d to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
canying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlyving asset.

{¢) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exempiion (o its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.c., those leases that liave a lease term of 12 months or less fiom
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption 1o leases of office equipment that are considered 1o be
low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assels are recognised as expense on a straight-line bosis over the lease term,

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is
recopnised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease, Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income, Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are camed.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer fiom the Company 10 the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recorded as receivables at the Company”s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return
on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.
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Inventories are valued as follows:-

Raw materinls, Stores, Spares, Other Materials and Traded Lower ol cost and net realizable value. However. materials and other supplies held for use in the production of

Goods inventorics are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated, are
expected to be sold at or abowve cost. Cost is determined on weighted average cost basis.

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their prasent location and
condition,

Finished goods Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proporion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating, capacity, but excluding borrawing costs. Cast is
determined on weighted avernge cost basis.

Work in Frogress Work in Progress is valued at the lower of actual cost incurred or net realizable value. Cost includes direct
materials, labour and proportionate overheads,

Wet realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

Impairment of non-financial nssets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual unpairment testing for an usset 1s
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An assct’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use, Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
Company's of assets. When the carrying amount of an assel or CGU exeeeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down 1o its recoverable amaonnt,

In assessing valug in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
maney and the risks specific to the asset, In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used,

Provisions

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of Past event and it is probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to setile the abligation, in
respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects when appropriste, the risks
specific to the liability

Retirement and other employee benefits

(i) Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined conttibution scheime. The Company has no obligation, ather than the contibution payable w the provident fund. The
Company recogmizes conmribution payable ta the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payakle to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payible to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already pand. 1F
the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payvment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

(i) Graruity is a defined benefit plan and provision is being made on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary at the year end using projected unit credit
methad, and is contributed to the Gratuity fund managed by the Life Insurance Carporation of India.

Ren 5 prising ol actuarial gains and losses. the effect of the assct ceiling, excluding included in net intercst on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assers {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liabilily), are recognised immediately in the halance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earmings through OCT in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified (o profit or loss in subsequent periods,

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlicr of:

B The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

B The date that the Company recognises related Festructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as
an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

B Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

B Net interest expense or income

Compensated Absences
Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The C ompany measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date,

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurciment purposes. Such long-tenm compensared
absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial painslosses are i liately tnken to of Profit and
Loss in the period in which they occur, The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheel, since it docs not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement
for 12 months after the reporting date.
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Financial instruments i M. " ;
A financial instrument is any ¢ontract that gives rise to a financial nsset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial r i and ement .

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assels not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are atributable 1o the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the tade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purpases of subseq t, financial assets are ¢
¥ Debt instruments at amortised cost

B Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH

P Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
P Equity instruments measured ot fair value through other comprehensive income (FNTOCT)

1 in four calegories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

) The asset is held within a business model whose abjective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

Adfler initial t, such fi ial assets are subsequently 1 at ised cast using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A “debt instrumnent’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI,

Debt instruments included within the FVTOC] category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive mecome (OC),

Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual catepory for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FYTOCL, is classified as nt FVTEL,

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FYTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if

doing so reduces or eliminates a1 ent or recognition inconsi (referred to as ‘ac ing mis h"). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPEL,

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss,

Equity investments

Al equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value, Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
busimess combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and
is irmrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recogrized in the OCL There is no recycling
of the amounts from OCI 1o P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity,
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss,
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Derecognition

A ﬁnanf;ial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (1.e. removed from the Company's balance
sheet) when:

B The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

¥ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows Grom the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a *pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor rotained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred contiol of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to reccive cash Nows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and fo what extent it has retained the risks
and rewards of ownership, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and tewards of the asset, nor ransferred control of the asset, the Company continues 1o
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and ot ligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a suarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of Anancial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected eredit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impaitment loss on the financial assets. The Company follows
‘simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables.

The application of simplified spproach does not require the Company to track changes in eredit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk sincs initial
tecognitian. If eredit risk has not incrensed significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If,
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer  significant increase in credit risk sinee initial recognition, then the entity reveris to
recognising impainment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over tha expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifelime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporling date,

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash Hows that the entity expects 1o receive (i ¢., all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required w consider:

B All contractual tenms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar aptions) over the expected lifi of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases
when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required 1o use the temaining contractual term of the financial instrument

B Cashi flows from the sale of collaterai held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impainnent loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. All financial liabilities are
recognised initinlly at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The C pany’s financial liabilitics include trade and
other payables, loans and borrowings including cash credit and financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilitics depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as heid for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments eniered into by the Company that are not d ignated as hedging instr m hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses atuibutable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
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V.

Derivative financial instruments ;
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are ininﬂll.}'
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured ot fair value, Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss,

Fuir Value measurement

The Company financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at cach balance sheet date. g
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value
measurement is based on the p ption that the tr ion to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

P In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
B In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The prineipal or the most advantageous market must be dccessible by the Company,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or hy selling
itto another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the ci and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
abservable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is ineasured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based an the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

P Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or lisbilities

B Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indircetly observable

B Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value mensurement is unobservable

Tar assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on o recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have ocourred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing eategorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurcnient as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's management determines the palicies and procedures for recurring fair value mensurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financinl assets measured at fair
value,

At each repoiting date, the management analyses the movements in the values ol assets and liabilities which are required to be temeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting
valicies. The i talso compares the change in the fair value of ench assct and liability with relevant extzmal sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

Fur the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
Contingent liabiliry

A contingent liability i3 a possible obligation that arises fiom past events whose existence will be confirmed by the oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setle the obligation, A
contingent linbility also arises in extremely rare cases, where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a
cantingent liability but discloses its exi in the financial unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote,

Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

. Segment Reporting
Operating seg are reg lin a consi with the intemal reporting provided to the Board of Directors identified as chief operating decision-maker (CODM), The CODM
is responsible for allocating resources and ing perfi of the operating segments. Segments are organised based on type of services delivered or provided. Segment revenue

E

arising from third party customers is reported on the same basis as revenue in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. Segment results represent profits before unallocated corporate
expenses and taxes. “Unallocated Corporate Expenses” include expenses that relate to costs attributable to the Company as a whole and are not attributable 1o segments,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject 1o an
insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shont-term deposits, ns defined above as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash

Dividend Distributions
The Company recognises a liability to make cash to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As
per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A coresponding is recognised directly in equity.
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2.2

x. Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or lass (after tax) for the year attributable 1o equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year,

Diluted camings per share when applicable are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (after tax) for the year atiributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average number ol
equity shares which would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares when applicable are deemed converted
as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

New and amended Standard

() Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as o dircet consequence of the Covid-19
pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessce that makes this election
accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the change under Ind AS 116, if the change were not a
lease modification.

The amendments are applicable for annual teporting periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020, In case, a lessee has not yet approved the financial statemenis for issue before the
i of this amend then the same may be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or aller the | April 2019, This amendment had no impact on the standalone financial
statements of the Company.

(ii) Amendments to Ind A% 103 Business Combinations

The amendment to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations clarifies that 1o be considered a business, an integrated set of activities and assets must include, at @ minimum, an input and a
substantive process that, together, significantly contribute to the ability o ereatc output. Furthermore, it clarifies that a business can exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs,

These amend are applicable 1o busi combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the fivst annual reporting peripd beginming on or afler the | April
2020 and to asset ncquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that period. This amendment had no impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company but may impact
fiture periods should the Company enter into any business combinations.

(i) Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material
The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, “information is material if" omitting, misstating or obscuring it eould reasonably be expected to influence decisions that

the primary usets of gencral p pose financial make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.” The
amendments clanify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial
stutements. A misstatement ef information is matenal if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. These amendments had 1o impact on the
Standalone financial statements of, nor is {here expected to be any future impact to the Company.

These amendments are applicable prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after the 1 Apul 2020. The amendments to the definition of material are not expected 1o have a
significant impact on the Company’s standalone fi al ;

(iv) Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109; Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendnmients to Ind AS 109 Financial Instr Recognition and M provide a number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by
interest rate benchmuk reform, A hedging relationship is affected if the reform gives rise to uncertainty about the timing and/or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged
item or the hedging instrument. These amendments have no impact on the standalone financial st of the Company as it does not have any interest rate hedge relationships.

The amendments to Ind AS 107 prescribe the disclosures which entities arc required to make for hedging relationships to which the reliefs as per the amendments in Ind AS 109 are
applied. These amendments are applicable for annual penods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020, These | are not exp Lto have a significant impact on the Company's
standalone financial statements,

Standards issued but not yet effective
There are no standards that are issued but not vet effective on March 31, 2021,
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3 (a) Intangible assets

Intangible asset
Particulars Software under Total
development

Gross block

As at 1 April 2019 460.89 34.00 494,89
Additions 99.20 - 99.20
Disposal - (34.00) (34.00)
As at 31 March 2020 560.09 - 560.09
Additions 74.43 - 7443
Dispozal - 5 N
As at 31 March 2021 634.52 - 634.52

Accumulated Amortisation

Asat 1 April 2019 262.81 - 262.81
Charge for the year 76,01 - 76.01
Disposal - = -
As at 31 March 2020 338.82 - 338.82
Charge for the year 75.64 - 75.04
Disposal - -
As at 31 March 2021 414.46 - 414.46
Net Block:

As at 31 March 2020 221.27 - 22127
As at 31 March 2021 220.06 - 220.00

Note to the Intangible assets:

On transition to Ind AS (i.e. 1 April 2015), the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all intangible measured as rer previous GAAP and
use that carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets,

=rem==me=ee——This page has been intentionally left blanke--msseee—— -
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(Amount in INR Lacs)

4 Investment

As at

Particulars 31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

Investments at cost:
Unquoted:

A, Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in equity shares of subsidiary companics

a. In Malwa Power Private Lid. 897.80 897.80
- 122,09,680 (31 March 2020: 122,09,680) equity shares of Rs, 10/- each fully paid up
b. In Dee Fabricom India Private Ltd. 900.00 200.00
- 90,00,000 (31 March 2020: 90,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid up
c. In Dee Piping Systems Thailand Co., Ltd # 3.913.22 391332
- 400,00,000 (31 March 2020: 400,00,000) equity shares of THR 5/~ each fully paid up
d. In Atul Krishan Bansal Foundation 1.00 -
- 10,000 (31 March 2020: nil) equity shares of Rs, 10/~ each fully paid up

5,712.02 571102

B.  Investment in jointly controlled entity

a. In DEE Fabricom LLC 85.48 8548
-49 (31 Mareh 2020: 49) equity shares of AED 10,000 each at AED 10,000/~ paid up
Less : Impairment in value of investment of Dee Fabricom LLC (85.48) (85.48)
Total investments 571202 5,711.02
Agpregate amount of unquoted investment £,797.50 5,796.50
Agppregate amount of impairment in value of investment 85.48 85.48

# The Company has made strategic investment in subsidiary to have wider market spread and overall growth of group. Subsidiary is in initial stage of its operation theretore it is

mcurring losses. Based on the projections and business plans of C ompany, there are no indicators for impairment.

All the investment in equity shares of subsidiaries and Jeintly controlled entity are valued at cost as per IND AS 27 'Separate Financial Statement’

wn

Financial assets

5(A) Trade receivables

Current

Asat

Particulars 31 March 2021

Asat
31 Murch 2020

Unsecured, considered good

Trade receivables 18,007 82 17,507.54
Trade receivables from related parties(refer note 29) 58.19 244,79
Tuotal receivables 18,066.01 17,752.33

-No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person, Nor any trade or other receivable are due

from finns or private companies, respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member excepl as disclosed above.
-For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer note 29

-Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 ta 180 days
-Trade Receivable includes Amount not yet due Rs. 9,931.05 Lacs (31st March 2020 : Rs. 10,761.98 Lacs)

5(B) Loans (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Non-current

Current

As at Asat Asat

=
TS 31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021

Asat
31 March 2020

Financial assets carried at amortised cost:

Security deposits 74.64 77.28 6.80 -

Inter corporate loan 1o a related party (refer note 29) 6,950.2] 6,205.30 24027 -

Taotal louns 7,033.85 65281‘58 247.07 -

5(C) Cash and cash equivalents .
Particul As at As at
s 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Cash on hand 3.88 5.78

Balances with banks 369.24 37.54

Total 373.12 43.32

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Deposits with

= Original maturity for less than twelve months* 2,740.90 3,156.21

- Original maturity for more than twelve months* 392.22 518.75
3,133.12 3,674.96

-Less: amount disclosed under other financial assets (Note 55(D)) (3,133.12} (3,674.96)

Total 2

* Deposits given as margin money against non fund based facilities (letter of credit, buyer's credit, bank guarantee) and collateral security
As at 31 March 2021, the Company has INR 6,019.30 lacs (31 March 2020: INR 2,764.45 lacs) of undrawn barrowing facilities from v arious banks,
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5(D) Other financial assets

MNon-current

Current

Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Unsecured considered pood unless otherwise stated

Finaneial assets classified at amortised cost;

Term deposits with original maturity bevond 12 months *
Term deposits with criginal maturity less than 12 months*
Interest receivable (refer note 29 for related party balances)

Financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss:
Foreign exchange forward contracts (refer note (a) below)

Total

392.22 518.95 - .
= - 2,740.90 3,156.21
448,51 E 5530 118.94
- - 104 .40 -
840.73 518.75 2,900.60 3,275.15

* Deposits given as margin money against non fund based facilities (letter of credit, buyer's eredit, bank guarantee) and collateral security

Note:

a. while the Company entered into foreign exchange forward contracts with the intention of reducin:
ed at fair value through profit or loss,

not designated in hedge relationships and are

Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented,

¢ the foreign exchange risk of expected sales and purchases, these contracts are

Particulars Cash and cash Non current Current Borrowing  Total {d=b+e-
equivalenis Borrowing (c) a)

Net debt as at 1 April 2019 1,480.66 1,654.69 22,052.03 22.226.06
Cash flows (1,437.34) (2B3.81) (2,982.62) (1,829.09)
Foreign exchange adjustments - - - -
Interest expenses including bormowing charges - 317.21 2.400.10 271731
Interest paid - (317.21) (2,367.63) {2.684.84)
Other non-cash movement

Transaction cost adjustment . 1 (32.47) (32.47)
Net debt as at 31 March 2020 _43.32 1,370.88 19,069.41 20.396.97
Parbicuinik Cash ‘und cash Non cur’rcnt Current Borrowing  Total (l=bre-

equivalents Borrowing* (¢.) a)

Net debtas at 1 April 2020 43.32 1.370.88 19,069.41 20,396.97
Cash flows 329.80 497.53 (4,050.31) (3,882.358)
Foreign exchange adjustments - - {69.11) (69.11)
Interest expenses including borrowing charges - 261.57 1.608.76 1,870.33
Interast paid - {261.57) (1,674.00) (1,935.37)
Other non-cash movement

Transaction cost adjustment - 2.66 118.23 120.90
Net debt as at 31 March 2021 373.12 1,.871.07 15,002.98 16,500.93
* Includes current maturities of long term borrowings
Other assets

Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated
Capital advances

Prepaid expenses

Income tax recoverable (net of provision for tax)
Advance to suppliers

Export entitlement reccivable

Advance to employees

Balance with government authorities

Total (A)

Unseeured considered Doubtful
Advance to suppliers

Less : Provision for doubtful advance
Tatal (B)

Total other assets (A + B)

191.76 189.68 - -
58.16 9.38 170.82 149.84
- - 1.63 231.38
= - 725.10 379.40
- - 595.50 580.92
- - 11.71 15.90
= - 1.571.79 1,417.90
249 92 199.06 3,076.55 277534
- - 65.39 65.39
- - (65.39) (65.39)
249.92 199.06 3.076.55 2,775.34
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7

(A)

(B)

()

(D)

(E)

Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

, Asat As at
Farticslss 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Raw malerials 10,926.08 13,118,68
Raw material in transit 265.34 608 36
Finished goods 683,39 2,758.34
Stock in trade 24.86 10.90
Work in progress 3.464.55 4,883 8]
Stores and spares 933.50 895.17
Packing materials 316.09 239.75
Total inventorics 16,613.87 22,515.01

Equity share eapital

Authorised share capital:

Equity shares Compulsorily convertible Preference shares
Particulars Mo. in lacs INR laes No. in lacs INR lacs
As at 31 March 2019 187.50 1,875.00 62.50 625,00
Increase/ (decrease) during the year ai = ] . a
As at 31 March 2020 187.50 1,875.00 62.50 625.00
Increase/ (decrease) during the vear - - £ =
As at 31 March 2021 187.50 1,875.00 62.50 625.00

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share, Each shareholder is entitled to on
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meetin
shareholders will be entitled 1o receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts,

Issued and paid up equity share capital

¢ vote per share. The dividend except interin dividend
g, In the event of liquidation of the Company, the edquity
in proportion to their shareholding,

Particulars No. in lacs INR lacs
Equity shares of INR 10 ench issued, subscribed and fully paid

As at 31 March 2019 156.93 1,569.27
Increase/ (decrease) during the year - -
Asat 31 March 2020 156.93 1,569.27
Inerease/ (decrease) during the year - -
As at 31 March 2021 156.93 1,569.27

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

Particulars No. in lacs % of holding No. in lacs Yo of holding

Mr. K. L. Bansal 79.28 50.52% 79.28 50.52%
First Cariyle Ventures (11 50.81 32.38% 50.81

DDE Piping Component Pyvt, Lid, 14.94 9.52% 14,94

Mrs. Ashima Bansal 8.80 5.61% 8.80

As per records of the Company, mcluding its register of shareholders/ members

sharcholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

Subsequent to year end, the Company has buy back 50,84,891 number of shares (refer note 38 for further details)

There are no equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash

reporting date,

and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above

and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the
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(A)

(B)

()

Other equity

Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Securities premium
Opening balance 16,730.93 16,730.93
Increase/ (decrease) during the vear = s
Closing balance 16,730.93 16,730.93
General reserve
Opening balance 458571 4,585.71
Increase/ (decrease) during the vear - -
Closing balance 4,585.71 4,585.71
Retained earnings
Opening balance 24,304 46 21,693.23
Add: Profit for the year 2,211.63 2,756.86
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year® 2285 (53.04)
Less : Dividend paid (refer note 41) . (78.46)
Less : Dividend Distribution tax (refer note 41} - (16.13)
Closing balance 20,538.94 24,304.46

* The disagpreation of changes in OCI by each type of reserves in equity is disclosed in note 25.

Total reserves 47,855.58 45,621.10

Nature and purpose of reserves :
Securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

General reserve

Under the erstwhile Companics Act 1956, zencral reserve was created through an annval transfer of net income at n specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations,
The purpose of these transfers was to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given vear is more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for that year, then the total
dividend distribution is less than the total distributable results for that year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandaterily transfer a specified

percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. However, the amount previously transferred o the general reserve can be utilised only in accordance with the
specific requirements of Companies Act, 2013,

Retained earnings
Represents surplus in the statement of profits and loss,
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10

(A)

()

Borrowings

Long-term borrowings

Nun-current portion

Current maturities

As at Asat As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Secured
Term Loan
a.  From Banks (refer note (a) below) 787.85 726,45 1.021.48 516.87
b. Vehicle Loan from Banks (refer note (b) below) 21.52 58.40 40.22 6916
809.37 784.85 1,061.70 586.03
Less: current maturities of long term debts disclosed under ‘other financial "
liabilities' (refer note 11) ¥ - (1,061.70) (580.03)
Tatal 809.37 784,85 - -
Repayvment Schedule of long term borrowing : non-current portion
Asat 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Particulars INR Regrayment INR  Repayment Instalment
Instalments
(i) 1 ¥R MCLR of 7.35% + BSS of 0.20% +CRP of 1.40% presently 420,45 1-9 equal quarterly 726,45 5-13 equal quarterly
effectively 8.80%- 8.95% p.a. (31 March 2020 : 'l YR MCLR of 8.65% instalments instalments
+ BSS 0f 0.30% +CRP of 1.40% presently effectively 10-10.35% p.a.
(refer note a)
(i) 1 Year MCLR, presently 7.35% cffectively with monthly rest (March 361.40 6 equal monthly -
31 2024: Nil} (refer note b) instalments
(i) Presently 8.35% to 10.15%, (31 March 2020; 8.00% to 10.15% p.a.) 21.52 1-20 equal monthly 5840  3-28 equal monthly
(Refer Mate d) instalments instalments
809.37 784.85

a) Term loan from bank secured by first pari passu charge an both movable and immovable fixed assets (barring few specific fixed assets) of Piping Division of the Company.

b) First pani passu charge on all the current assets of Piping unit and Power unit, both present and future along with book-debts, bills, cutstanding menies and reeeivables all
the fixed assets of power unit, Immovable property of 1770 Sq. Yard situated at Jatola Road, Tatarpur Industrial area, Maidapur of Piping unit, all the fixad assets situated at
Chennai, Fixed deposit of Rs. 350 lacs and exclusive charge on fixed deposit of Rs. 15 lacs in favour of Bank of India

Further, there is Second pari passu charge on all the movable fixed assets, both present and future, of piping unit (exeluding assets given against firts pari passu charge) and
Residential house of Promoter situated at 1255, sector 14, Faridabad,

¢) Further, term loans are secured by Imevocable and unconditional, Joint and several personal guarantee of the promoters and corporate guarantee of DEE Piping
Components Private Limited,

d) Vehicle loan from bank secured by the vehicle of the Company financed under the scheme.

Short-term borrowings

Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Secured
Cash credits and WCDL (refer note 1 and b below)

{1} Cash credit 863.12 4,107.41
(1) Export Packing Credit - 370,04
(iii) Working capital demand loan 13,117.58 12,758.10
Unsccured
Buyer's eredit and Bill Discounting from banks 1,022.28 1,833.86
Total 1500298 19,069.41
Notes:

a) First pari passu charge on all the current assets of Piping unit and Power unit, both present and future along with book-debts, bills, outstanding monies and receivables,all the

b)

fixed assets of power unit, Immovable property of 1770 Sq, Yard situated at Jatola Road, Tatarpur Industrial area, Maidapur of Piping unit, all the fixed assets situated at
Chennai, Fixed deposit of Rs. 350 laes and exclusive charge on fixed deposit of Rs. 15 lacs in favour of Bank of India

Further, there is Second pari passu charge on all the movable fixed assets, both present and future, of piping unit (excluding assets given against fits pari passu charge) and
Residential house of Promoter situated at 1255, sector 14, Faridabad,

Further, Cash credit and WCDL are secured by Irrevocable and unconditional, joint and several personal guarantee of the promoters and corporate guarantee of DEE Piping
Components Private Limited,
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11 Other financial liabilities

Non-current Current
Asat Asat Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Financial liabilities classified at amortised cost:
Current maturities of long-term debts (refer note 10{A) ) - - 1,061.70 586,03
Foreign exchange forward contracts = - - 171.71
Creditors for capital goods - - 4524 1.22
Interest acerved and not due on borrowings - - kb 57.86
Compensation payable - - - 75.00
Lease Liabilities (refer note 36) 199.77 7943 5371 24,74
Total other financial liabilities 19%.77 79.43 1,199.36 916.56
12 Provisions
Non-current Current
Asat As at Asat As at

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 Mareh 2020

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Provisions for gratuity 05.34 72.69 49 88 40,64
Provisions for compensated absences - - 76.54 104,49
Provision for Litigation {refer point a} - - - 15,55
Tatal provisions 95.34 72.69 126.42 160,68
a Provision for Litigation
It represent a charge apainst the wrong availment of input credit
As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
At the beginning of the vear 15.55 15.55
Created during the year = =
Paid'adjusted during the vear 15,55 =
At the end of the year . 15.55
I3 Liabilities for current tax (net) Current
Particulars Agat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Provision for current tax (Net of advance tax and TDS receivable) - 23639
- 136.39
14 Other liabilities
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

31 March 202i

31 March 2020

Statutory dues - - 96.45 8311
Deferred revenue;
on govermment grant obligation - 48.07 - -
on advance received from MNRE - - - 5.70
on advance licenses 93.15 126.19 - -
Advance received from customers (refer note 17) - - 1,053.62 4.,099.50
Total other liabilities 93.15 174.26 1,150.07 4,188.31
15 Income tax
(A)  The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 21 March 2020 are:
Statement of profit and loss;
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

a ) Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

Current income tax:
- Current income tax charge

- Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous vear

Deferred tax:

- Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (including DTL reversal of on account of

adoption of new tax rate (refer note 40)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

b) Other comprehensive Income section

Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans

Income tax charged to other comprehensive income

671.08 1.315.80
(12.85) -
(766.83) (108.44)
(108.60) 1,207.36
(7.87) 28.49
87 2849
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(B} Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020:

©)

Particulars

Asat
31 Mareh 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Accounting profit before tax 2.103.03 3.964.22
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 23.168% (31 March 2020 34.944%) 52929 1.385.26
Tax effeet of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in ealeulnting taxable income: s
Tax impact due to adoption of new tax rate as per Income-tax Act, 1961 (Refer note 40 1 (758.47) -
Tax relating to earlier years (12.85) -
Tax impact of expenses nat deduetible under Income-tax Act, 1961 48.63 160.76
Others 84.80 (338.66)
Income tax expense (108.60) 1,207.36
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (108.60) 1,207.36
Deferred tax
Deferred tax relates to following:
¢ Asat As at
Parficalan 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balance sheet

Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/amartization charged for the financial reporting
Impact of deferred government grant

Impact on Employee benefit

[mpact on deferred marked to market (gain)/ loss

Expenditure allowed for tax purposes on payment basis
Net deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

Statement of profit and loss

Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting
Impact due to adoption of new tax rate as per Income-tax Act, 1961 (Refer note 40 )

Impact of deferred government grant

Impact on deferred marked to market

Impact on Employee benefit

Expenditure allowed for tax purposes on payment basis

Deferred tax expense/ (income)

Other Comprehensive Income
Impact on defined benefit plans
Deferred tax expense / (income)

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current

deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority,

(2,168.76) (3,058.01)

- 18.79

56,83 73.96

(26.73) 60.00

15.24 22 85
(2,123.44) (2,882.41)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(130,78} (5.36)
(758.47)

18.79 (8.23)

86.75 (105.17)

9.26 (33.19)

1.62 43.51

(766.83) (108.44)

(7.87) (28 49)
287 (28.49)

tax linbilities and the deferred tax assets and
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16 Trade Payables
Current
; Asat As ot
Fortienlars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Trade payables * 6,317.94 6,047.74
Trade payables to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises # 238.24 52.40
Total trade payables 6,556,18 6,100.14
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 0 10 60 days terms
- For tetms and conditions relating to related party payables, refer to note 29
- For explanations on the Company’s eredit risk management processes, refer to note 34
* Includes Tollowing :
- Acceptances 453.66 162,24
- For payable to related parties, refer to note 29 41.46 30,72
# Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
. Asat Asat
P
aeinty 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

‘The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 238.24 52.40
supplier as at the end of each accounting year
Prineipal amount due to micro and small enterprises 23824 52.40

Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED -
Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyand
the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 2
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006,

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each B
accounting year

The amount of further interest remaming due and payable even in the -
succeeding vears, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually

paid 1o the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible

expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

“seemmmmmmenee oo This page has been int

Iy left blank:
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17

Revenue from operations

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Sale of products:

Sale of finished goods 34 85847 32,248.12
Sale of traded goods 27.50 1,097.51
Sale of electricity 3.325.15 3.458.65
Sale of service:
Job work 1,891.74 3.411.86
Erection and Design services 225.18 760.79
Other Operating Income:
Sale of Scrap 464.52 57227
Export Incentive 352,22 419.89
Total revenue from operations 41.144.78 61,969.09
Timing of revenue recognition
Revenue recognition at a point of time 41,144.78 61.969.09
Total revenue from contracts with customers 41,144.78 61.969.09
Contract Balances
Particulars As at March 31,2021 As at March 31, 2020
Trade receivables from contracts under Ind AS 115 (refer note 5A) 18.066.01 17,752.33
Contract Assets i ;
Contract liabilities
Advange from customers 1,053.62 4,009.50
19,119.63 21,851.83

Contract habilities include amount received from customers as per the terms of sales order to deliver goods. Onee the goods are completed and

control is transferred to customers the same is adjusted accordingly.

Significant changes in the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows

Particulars As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Movement of contract liability

Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 4,099.50 9.458.27
Performance obligations satisfied during the year (2.741.80) (6,683.82)
Amount received/ adjusted against contract liability during the year (304.08) 1.325.05
Amounts included in contract liabilities at the end of the vear 1,053.62 4,099.50

Performance obligation

Information about the Company's performance obligations for material contracts are summarised below:

The performance obligation of the Company in case of sale of Products is satisfied once the goods are transported as per terms of order and

control 1s transferred to the customers,

The customer makes the payment for contracted price as per terms stipulated under customers purchase order,

Information about the Company's performance obligations for electricity supply contract are summarised below:
The performance obligation of the Company in case of sale of electricity is based on supply of electricity through installed meters, Revenue
from sales of electricity is accounted for on the basis of billing to customer based on billing cycles followed by the Company.

The customer makes the payment for electricity supplicd during the billing ¢ycle at contracted price as per terms stipulated under agreement.

There is no remaining performance obligation as on year ended March 3 1,2021
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Other income

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Interest income

- from Bank 191,71 281.08
- on Income tax refund 23.16 -
- from loan to related party (refer note 29) 490,55 512.33
Gain on forcign exchange (net) 263.47 55078
Rent income 12.00 12.00
Amortization of deferred revenue:

on export promotion capital goods scheme 53.58 60.07

on advance received from MNRE 5.70 7.64

on advance licenses 383,54 400.53
Miscellaneous income 4,19 14.10
Total other income 1.627.90 1.838.53
Cost of raw material consumed

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchase during the year

Less: Inventory at the end of the year

Cost of raw material consumed

Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and work in progress

13.727.04 17,628.64
15.591.28 33,008.01
20.318.32 50,636.05
11,191.44 13,727.04
18.126.88 36,909.61

Year ended

Year ended

Particulars

b i 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening stock
- Work-in-progress 4,883.81 5,428.99
- Finished goods 2,758.34 1,153.51
- Stock in trade 10.90 94.83
Less: Closing stock
- Work-in-progress 3,464.55 4,883.81
- Finished goods 683.39 2,758.34
- Stock in trade 24.86 10.90
Total change in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and work in progress 3,480.25 (975.72)
Employee benefits expense

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense (refer note 28)

Staff welfare expenses

Total employee benefits expense

4,672.91 3,567.03
151.34 161.28
68.68 66.59
98.05 149.73
4,990.98 5.944.63
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23

23 (a)

Depreciation and amortization expense

; Year ended Year ¢nded
Farticulan 31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020
Depreciation on tangible assets (refer note 3 Property, plant and equipment) 2,087.03 1,992.15
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 3 (a) Intangible assets) 75.64 76.0{
Depreciation on right of use assets (refer note 36) 49 .88 23,95
Total 2,212,558 2,092.11
Other expenses

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Consumption of stores and sparc parts 1.643.99 2,274.62
Packing material consumed 1,156.87 1.813.14
Fabrication and job charges 2.264.24 2,321.34
Repair and maintenance:

- Buildings 2957 41.36

- Plant and machinery 305.34 294.76

- Other 51.41 38.49
Office and factory maintenance 69.12 84.55
Lease rentals including machine hire charges 50.54 4898
Rates and taxes 67.94 5038
Insurance 103.06 82.02
Power, fuel and water charges 702.02 924,77
Radiography and inspection 36540 402.81
Auditor's remuneration (refer note 23 (a) below) 3046 2580
Selling commission and other selling expenses 225.64 304.71
Freight and forwarding (net of recovery) 984.18 62422
Claims and deductions 344.62 432.67
Legal and professional 418.94 467.59
Travelling & Conveyance 182.21 361.59
Bank charges 254.05 433.78
Provision for doubtful debts and advance - 65.39
Sundry balances written off 2,17 23.71
Impairment in value of Investments in Jointly controlled entily - 8548
Loss on sale/ discard of fixed asscts (net) 7.98 42,27
Donation 6.00 4.86
Security and servicing charges 171.56 163.47
CSR expenses (refer note 23(b) below) 76.21 11429
Directors 'sitting fees 6.00 2.50
Miscellaneous 365.11 324,56
Total 9,884.63 11.874.11

Year ended Year ended

Payment to auditors :

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

As auditor:
- Statutory audit fee
In other capacity:
- Other services (certification fees)
- Reimbursement of expenses
Total

20.00 22.00
10.00 1.00

0.46 2.80
30.46 25.80
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23 (b)

26

Details of CSR expenditure:

. Year ended Year ended

Bartinles 31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 76.21 67.35
(h) Amount spent during the year

(i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset - 7.87

(it) On purpose other than (i) above 76.21 106.42
(c) Bifurcation of above amount

(i) Amount spent in cash 33.71 114.29

(ii) Amount yet to be paid in cash® 42.50 -

*The amount has been subsequently deposited with Atul krishan Bansal Foundation, a wholly owned subsidiary, to carry out CSR activities.

Details of ongoing project
In case of 5. 135(6) (Ongoing Project)

Finance costs

Particul Year ended Year ended
s 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Interest Expense
- on term loans 96,30 155.18
- on others 1.608.76 2.400.10
Interest on lease liability (refer note 36) 19.11 10.98
Other borrowing cost 165.27 162.03
Exchange difference regarded as an adjustment to borrowing cost 46.09 262.28
Total 1,935.53 2.990.57
Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
g Year ended Year ended
ticul
gt 31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
Retained Earnings
Re-measurement gain/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 30.72 (81.33)
Less: Tax impact of ahove items (7.87) 28.49
22.85 (53.04)

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS amounts is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the
dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity sharcs.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

Particuliis Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for basic and diluted earnings (A) 223448 2,703.82
Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic and diluted EPS* (B) 1,56,92,719 1,56,92,719
Earnings per share (A/B)
- Basic earnings per share 14.09 17.23
- Diluted carnings per share 14.09 17.23

* There have been no transaction involving Equily shares or potential Equity shares during the year .
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27 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial st requires to make juidg; ; and pions hat allect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and
liabilites, and the panying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent linbilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomas that require a malerial
adjustment 10 the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods

Judgements
In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, management has made the following juduements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recogmised in the financial
statements;

Classification of leases —

The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of the leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors,
including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to purchase and estimated certainty of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the
assel’s gconomic life, proportion of present value of minimum lease payments 1o fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and t inati ions (C as lessee)- )
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option 1o extend the lease if it is reasonzbly certain 1o be exercised, or any
peniods covered by an oplion to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain nol to be exercised The Company has several lease conlracts that include extension and termination eptions The

Company applies jud in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or nat 1o exergise the option o renew ar ferminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for il Lo exercise either the I or termination. Afler the co date, the Company the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
eircumstances that is within its contral ~ and  affects  its  wbility 10 exercise  or  nol o exercisc  the  option to renew or to terminate

(e g construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant eustomisation to the leased asset)

Estimates and assumplions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimatian uneertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and fiabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its I and esti on par available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing and ptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances ansing that are beyond the contie! of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

Valuation of Iny tin subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity
Investments in subsidiaries and Jointly controlled entity are carried al cost. At each balance sheet date, the the indh of impai t of such This requi
assessment of several external and internal factor includ li rate, key ption used n d d cash flow medels (such as revenue growth, unit price and discount rates) or

& caf
sales comparizon method which may affect the carrying value of investments in subsidiaries and Jointly controlled entity

- Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carmang value of an assel or cash generaling unit execeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of 1ts fuir value less costs of disposal and its value in use The fair
value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales ransactions, conducted al arm'’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less meremental costs for
disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are denved from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activiies that the
Company is not yet committed to or signifieant future in that wal| en the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount 1s sensitive to the discount rite used
for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the rowth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

- Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised (o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available agamst which the losses can be utilised. Signifi o Jud s required to
determing the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future 1ax planning strategies

- Defined benefit plans {gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the grawity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An acluarial valuaten nvolves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the d ton of the di rate, future salary increases and mortality rates, Due 1o the complexities involved i the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation 1s highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

The parameter most subject to change is the discaunt rate. In determining the appropriate di rate, the ders the inlerest rates of government bonds wath term that comespond
with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation

The mortality rale is based on publicly available mortality tables. Thase mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity
increases are based en expected future infl rates for the respective countries

Further details about gratuity and long term cony i ab bli s are given in Note 2

- Fair value mensurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and finaneial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is messured using
valuation techmiques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from abservable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Jud, include derations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments. Refer note 32 for further disclosures

- Useful Lives of Property Plant and Equipment

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and dey plant and machineries of piping division over estimated useful lives of 10 to 25 years
which are different fram the useful Life preseribed in Schedule 11 to the Companes Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated usefisl lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation
of the period over which the assets are likely to be used
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28 Grammry and other post-employment benefit plans

A. Defined benefit plans - general description

The Company has a defined gratuity benefit plan. Every employee who completes service of five years or more, gets a gratuity, of 135 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of

service.
The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the

plan (based on actuarial valuation) :

Amuount recognised In statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefit recognized in the employee cost:
. Yea: ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Service cost 60.97 61.57
Wet interest cost 7.71 5.02
Exp recognised in the stat t of peofit and loss 68,68 66,59
Amount recognised in other comprehensive incume
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in the year (30.72) 81,53
Expenses recognised in the ether comprehensive income {30.72) 81.53
Balance sheet
DBenefit asset/ liability
Pt Year ended Year ended
= = 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Present value of defined obligation at the end of the year 556,80 506,83
Less : Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year 4]11.58 393.51
Net present value of defined benefit obligation 145.22 113.32
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Particalars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening defined benefit obligation 506,83 368.12
Service cost 60.97 61.57
Interest cost 3446 2820
Benefits paid (14.05) (31.89)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation (30.41) 80.83
Closing defined benefit obligati SU6. 82
g ned benehit obligation 556.80 506,83
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Particilis Year ended Year ended
_ 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening fair value of plan assets 393.51 302,57
Expected return on plan assets 28.16 24 4|
Mortality charges (2.09) (1.92)
Contribution by the employer 6.06 100,34
Benefits paid (14.06) (31.89)
Closing fair value of plan asscts 411.58 393.51
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
Year ended Year ended

Particulars
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

The scheme is funded through a trust and funds are managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India 100% 100%
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B.

The prineipal actuarial ptions used in determining gratuity are as follows:

(a) Economic assumptions

Particulars

Year endzd
31 March 2021

Discount rate

Average salary escalation rate
Attrition at Ages

Up to 30 Years

From 31 to 44 years

Above 44 vears

6,80%

6.00%

Withdrawal rate %
3.00

2.00

1.00

Year ended
31 March 2020

6.80%

6.00%

Withdrawal rate %
300

2,00

1.00

The estimates of future salary inereases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and ather relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment
market, The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is o be settled.

Demographic assumptions

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Retirement age

Mortality table

A quantitative sensilivity unalysis for significant assumption as at 31 March is as shown below:

58 years
100% of [ALM
(2012 - 14)

Year ended
31 March 2020

58 years
100% of IALM
(2012 - 14}

Assumplions

Sensitivity Level

Impact on defined
benefit obligation

Discount rate:
31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Future salary increases:
31 March 2021

31 March 2020

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
at the end of the reporting period.
to the defi

The following payments are expected contril I benefit plan in future years:

Increase of 0,50%
Decrease of 0.50%

Increase of 0.50%
Decrease of 0.50%

Increase of 0.50%
Decrease of 0,50%

Increase of 0,50%
Decrease of 0.50%

la b

3243
35.64

-30.45
3354

in key

ptions occurring

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
Between 2 and 5 vears

Beyond 5 vears

Total expected payments

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 17.83 (31 March 2020: 18.25 years)

49.88 464
8287 82.59
424,05 383.60
556,80 506.83
—
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29 Related party transactions

(A) Names of related parties and related party relationship
Mature of relationship

(i} Subsidiary Companies:

(i) Jointly controlled cntity

(iii) Key management personnel:

(iv) Relative of key management personnel

(v} Independent Director

Name of related parties

Malwa Power Pvi. Ltd.

Dee Fiping Systems (Thailand) Company Ltd.

Dee Fabricom India Pvt. Ltd.

Atul Krishan Bansal Foundation (w.e. £22 January, 2021)

Dee Fabricom LLC

Mr. K.L. Bansal (Chairman and Managing Director)

Mr. Atul Krishan Bansal { up to 16 November, 2020)

Mrs. Ashima Bansal (Director)

Mrs. Shikha Bansal (Whole-time Director w.e.f 01 December, 2020)
Mr. Gaurav Narang (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Ranjan Sarangi (Company secretary)

Mrs. Shruti Agparwal (daughter of Mr, K. L. Bansal)

Mrs. Shikha Bansal (wife of Mr. Atul Krishan Bansal, up to November 16, 2021)

Mr. Ajay Kumar Marchanda
IMr. Satish Kumar

(B) The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant finaneizl year:

Mame of related party

Year ended
31 March 2021 _

(i) with subsidiary company

(a) Malwa Power Pvt. Ltd.
Sales of product
Interest [ncome
Loan Given
Repayment of Loan
Carporate Guarantee given to a Bank for Joan taken

(b) Dee Piping Systems (Thailand) Company Ltd.
Investment in Equity Shares
Sales of product
Interest Income
Purchase of goods
Job charges
Loan Given
Repayment of Loan (T/ from loan to investment in share capital)
Corporate Guarantee/SBLC accepted during the year

{¢) Dee Fabricom India Pvt, Ltd.
Sales of product
Purchase of goods
Job charges
Interest Income
Loan Given
Repayment of Loan
Investment in Equity Shares
Cerporate Guarantee accepted during the year

(d) Atul Krishan Bansal Foundation

Investment in Equity Shares
CSR Expenses

Year ended
31 March 2020

4192
49.58
847.10
1,301,386
900.00

12.49
339.00
195.93

46.21
982 44

3277
225.00
101.97
841.50
375.00

1.00
3.50

23.09
125,97
924.58
1,579.55

10,03
1,493.96
320.05
16,08
2,492.66
10,03
6,784.73

3.74
24.85
65.71

235045
1.653.99

200,00
3,640.00
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(ii) With Key management personnel and their relatives:

2 . year ended Year ended
Name it 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Mr. K, L. Bansal Rent Payment 0.60 0.60
Mr, K. L. Bansal Remuneration 232.87 196.60
Mrs, Ashima Bansal Remurieration $1.00 2140
Mrs. Shikha Bansal Remuneration 12.00 -
Mrs. Shruti Aggarwal Remuneration 18.63 18.40
Mr. Gaurav Narang Remuneration 3859 40.46
Mr, Ranjan Sarangi Remuneration 13.30 14.11
Mr. Ajay Kumar Marchanda Sitting fees 3.25 100
Mr, Satish Kumar Sitting fees 2795 1.50
(C) Following are the balances outstanding as at year end:
: As at As at
PARERL Hinlel vy 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(i) With wholly owned subsidiary companies
(a) Malwa Power Pvt. Litd.
Loans Given 240.27 695,03
Interest Receivable 45.87 -
Corporate Guarantee given to Indian Banker 1,027.08 876.05
(b) Dec Piping Sy {Thailand) Company Ltd.
Loans Given 5,706.25 4,813.81
[nterest Receivable (net of withholding tax) 448.51 109,51
Corporate Guarantee given to Foreign Banker 4,553.35 4,526.59
Trade receivable 58.19 140,03
Advanee given 224.44 127.88
(¢) Dee Fabricom India Pvt. Lid.
Loans Given 1,162.96 606,46
Corporate Guarantee given to Indian Banker 246459 2,784.31
Advance given 45,00 -
(ii) With jointly controlled entity
Dee Fabricom LLC - Trade receivable - 104.76
(iii) With Key management personnel and their relatives:
Account payable:
Mr. K.L. Bansal 26.62 19.67
Mr. Atul Krishan Bansal - 0.45
Mrs, Ashima Bansal 5.63 4,51
Mrs, Shikha Bansal 2.64 -
Mrs. Shruti Agparwal 1.39 0.78
Mr. Gaurav Narang 413 4.14
Mr. Ranjan Sarangi 1.05 117

Apart from above, Mr. K L. Bansal, Mr and Mrs. Ashima Bansal have given personal guarantees us a collateral for securing borrowings from the banks

In the opinion of the Board of directors, the current assets, investments, loan and advances have the value at which they are stated in the balance sheel, if realised in the ordinary course
of business and provisions for all known liabilities have been adequately made in the accounts.

(D) Comy tion of key manag t per 1 of the Company
. Year ended Year ended
Name of relat
of related party 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Shart-term employee benefits 396.44 35097
Post-employment gratuity and medical benefits 0.83 2.96
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 397.29 35393

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key management personnel,

(E) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Owistanding balances at the vear-end are unsecured and
interest free other than unsecured loan .

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (31 March 2020: Nil), This assessment is
undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
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(F) Disclosure required under Sec 186(4) of the Companies Aet 2013

Included in loan and advance are certain infer/eorporate deposits the particulars of which are disclosed below the required by See 186 (4) of Companies Act 2013:

Name of the loanee/Investment Rate of Interest Due Date March 31,2021 Mareh 31,2020

Malwa Power Pvi. Ltd.

- Unsecured loan 10% (March 31, 2020: 10%) Payable on demand, (March 240.27 693.03
31, 2020: December 30, 2022)

- Interest Receivable Mot Applicable Mot Applicable 45.87 -

- investment in wholly owned subsidiary Not Applicable Not Applicable 897.80 897.80

Dee Fabricom India Pvt, Ltd.

= investment in wholly owned subsidiary Not Applicable Not Applicable 900.00 00000
- Unsecured loan 10% (March 31, 2020: 10%) Payable on demand (March 31, 1,162.96 696 46
2020: Payable on demand)

Dee Piping Systems Thailand Co. Ltd

- investment in wholly owned subsidiary Not Applicable Not Applicable 391322 391322

- Interest Receivable Mot Applicable December 31, 2022 (March 31, 448.51 109.51
2020: December 31, 2022)

- Unsecured loan 10% up to 30 June, 2020 Payable on demand (March 31, 5,796.25 4,813 80
and 5.25% thereafter 2020: Payable on demand)

(March 31, 2020: 10%)

Atul Krishan Bansal Foundation

- investment in wholly owned subsidiary Not Applicable Not Applicable 1,00 -
Dee Fabricom LLC

= Investment in jointly controlled entity* Not Applicable Not Applicable 85.48 8548

* During the year ended 31 March 2020, provision has been created for value of investment in Dee Fabricom LLC,

e This page has been intentionally left blank--—-—meue v e
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30 Commitments and Contingencies

A. Commitments

Capital Commitments

Particul As at As at
articulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be exccuted on capital account and not provided for (net of advances paid INR 191.76 7310 128.53
lacs) (31 March 2020; INR. 189.68 lacs)

B. Contingent liabilities

Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respeet of:

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 4
- Demand by Income Tax Department * 165.76

314
= Demand by Excise Authorities ** 39.35 39.35
= Claim filed by a supplier ** 12.31 12.31

*The Income Tax Authorities have raised demands on account of various disallowances pertaining to different assessment years. The Company is coniesting these demands,
which are pending at various appellate levels. Based on the advice from independent tax experts and the development on the appeals, the management 1s confident that

additional tax so demanded with reference to these cases will nat be sustained on complation of the appellate proceedings and accordingly, pending the decision by the
appellate authorities, no provision has been made in these standalone financial statements

**On the basis of current status of individual case for respective years, the Company is confident of winning the above cases and is of the view that no provision s required in
respect of the above cases.

C. Guarantees

The Company has given corparate guarantee for loans taken by subsidiary companies, to the extent loan amount outstanding as on balance sheet date, The carrying amounts of
the related financial guarantee coniracts were INR 5,604.59 Lacs and INR 8,186.95 Lacs at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 respectively,
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31 Sezment information

On the basis of nature of businesses, the company has two reportable segments, as follaws:

= The piping segment which 1 mawnly engaged

factunng of pre

= The power seg . which is engaged in bi

No

The Execulive M Ci

based power generation
have been agerezated to form the above reportable operating segments

results of its business unins separately for the purpose of making d

products, pipe finings, piping systems

about

llocation and performance asssssment. Segment

performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the standatone finaneial statements.

Transfer prices between cperating segments are an an arm’s length basis ina manner sumilar (o transactions with third parties.

A, Segment Disclosures

Year ended 31 March 2021

Particulars Piping division Power division Unalloeated Tatal

Revenue

External customers I7R04 18 134060 - 41,144 78
Segment Revenue 37804.18 3,060 - 41,144.78
Segment profit 6,005.97 622,01 {376.87) 6.251.11
Other Expenses

Finance Casts 187009 65,44 - 1,93553
Depreciation and amartization expense 208294 159.61 - 2.212.55
Tatal 392303 21505 - 4,148.08
Net Segment profit before tx 2,082.94 396,97 (376.87) ,103.04
Other Information

Segment Assels 66,515.24 4,552.04 5,713.65 T6,780.93
Segment Liabilities 12,204.55 2,957.03 2,194.52 7,350.08
Capital Expenditure 81166 148.44 - 270,10
Year ended 31 March 2020

Particulars Piping division Power division Unallocated Tatal

Revenue

External 5848042 3.488.59 " 61,969.08
Segment Revenue S8,480.49 349550 S 61,969,09
Segment profil 8,530.44 37373 {357.77) 9.046.90
Expenses

Finance costs 2,884.13 [06.44 - 2.990.57
Depreciation and amorlizaton expense 197295 11916 200211
Tatal 4.857.08 225.60 - 5,082,068
Net Segment profit before tax 367386 048,13 (357.77) 396422
Other information

Sepment Assets 71,506.75 4,406.34 594241 81,855.50
Sepment Liabilities 28,274.43 3,208.30 3,182.40 34,665.13
Capital Expenditure 2,139.77 1106 - 2,150.53

............ —This page has been

Iy feft blank
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B. Recanciliations to amounts reflected in the Dnancial statements

a. Reconcilintion of profit

{Amount in INR Lacs)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Segment Profit
Unallocated expenses

Profit before tax

b. Reconciliation of assets

2479.91 437199
(376.86) (357.77)
3,103.08 3064.22

Particulars

As at 31 March 2021

Asat 31 March 2020

Segment operating assets 71,067.28 591309
Unalloeated Assets 3.713.60 54241
Total ussets T6,780.94 81,855.50
¢. Reconciliation of liabilities
Particulars As al March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Segment aperating linbilities I5,161.58 3148273
Unallocated Linbilities 2,194.52 118240
‘Total linbilities 27,356,10 J4.065.13
Fullowing are the entity-wide disclosures:
a) _Revenue from external cusiomers
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
lnd'm_ 19,844 42 45,676 51
Outside India 21,300.29 16,292.58
Total revenue as per standalone siatement of profit and loss 41,144.78 61,069,090
The revenue information above is based on the locations of the customers.
by List of major customer whess revenue more than 10% of tatal enfity revenue
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
HPCL-MITTAL ENERGY LIMITED 93741 18,127 68
%a of Revenue 2.28% 29.25%
GENERAL ELECTRIC 9.404 24 589897
%a of Revenue 22.86% 14.36%
Mitsubishi Hitachi Power System 2,207.38 5.705.12
% of Revenus 5.36% 9.21%
Dangote Ol Refining Company Lid 727242 545062
% of Revenue 17.68% BE0%
¢) Trade Receivable
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Indin 6,372 36 890443
Outside India 11,693 65 E.847.90
Tatai 18,066.01 17,752.33
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32 Fair values

Set out below, 15 a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments, other than those with carrving amounts that are reasonable
approximations of fair values:

Carrying value Fair value
Particulars As at Asat Asat As at
E 31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(A) Financial assets

Non-current

Security deposits 74.64 77.28 74.64 77.28

Inter corperate loan to a related party 6,959.21 6,205.30 6,959.21 6,205.30

Term deposit accounts with maturity beyond 12 months 39222 518.75 39212 518.75

Current

Trade receivables* 18,066.01 17,75233 18,066.01 17.752.33

Cash and cash equivalents* 373.12 43.32 373.12 4332

Security deposits* 6.80 - 6.80 -

Inter corporate loan to a related party* 24027 - 240.27 -

Deposits with original maturity less than 12 months* 2,740.90 3,156.21 2,740.90 3,156.21

Interest receivable* 5530 118.94 5530 118.94

Fareign exchange forward contracts® 104 .40 - 104.40 -

Total financial assets 29,012.87 27,872.13 29,012.87 27.872.13
(B} Financial liabilities

Mon-current

Long-term borrowings 809.37 784.85 80937 784.85

Other financial liabilities 199.77 79.43 199,77 7943

Current

Short-term borrowings* 15,002.98 1906941 15,002.98 19,009 4]

Trade payables* 6,556.18 6,100.14 6,556.18 6,100.14

Other financial liabilities* 1,199.36 D16.56 1,194.36 916.56

Total financial liabilities 13,767.66 26,950.39 23,767.68 26,950.39

Note:-

* The management assessed that fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, security deposits, inter corporate loan to related party, other short-term financial assets, short-

term borrowings, trade payables and other short-term finaneial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a

foreed or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used o estimate the fair values:

a. Tenm deposits- The fair value of term deposits is equal to carrying value since they are carrying market interest rates as per the banks.

b. Foreign exchange forward contracts- Foreign exchange forward contracts are valued using valuation techniques, which employs the use of market ebservable inputs. The most frequently
applied valuation techniques include forward pricing.

¢. Long-term borrowings - The fair value of long-term borrowings is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The carrying value and fair value of the borrowings has been considered the same since the existing imerest rate approximates .'s fair value.

d. Others- For other financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

mesmern e This page has been intentionally lefi blank--ess--sueee-e -
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33

>

Fair value hicrarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments thal are:
{a} recognised and measured at fur value and

(b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

Ta provide zn indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels preseribed under the
accounting standard, An explanation of cach level follows undereath the table.

All assets and habilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, deseribed as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whaole:
Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or habilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for nssets and liabilities as at 31 March 2021:

Fair value measurementi using

Quoted prices in nctive Significant observable  Significant unobservable

Particulars Total markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Security deposits 74.64 a = 74.64
Inter corporate loan to a related party 6,930.2] “ - 695921
Term deposit accounts with maturity bevond 12 monthis 39222 - 30222 -

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Long-term borrowings 809,37 - 80937 -
Other financial liabilities 199,77 " 199,77 -
There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year,

Quantitative disclosures fair value mensurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2020:

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices in active Significant observable  Significant unobservable
Particulars Total markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)

Financial assets measured at fair value
Foreign exchange forward contracis - - . i

Financial assets mensured at amortised cost

Security deposits 77.28 . - 77.28
Inter corporale loan to a related party 6,205.30 - - 6,205.30
Term deposit accounts with maturity bevond 12 months 518.75 - 518.75 -

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Long-term borrowings 784.85 - 784.85 -
Other financial liabilities 79.43 - 7243
There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year,
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34 Financial visk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is 1o finance the Company's operations. The Company’s
principal financial assets include security deposits given, laan to related party, employee advances, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other assets.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. All derivative activities for nsk management
purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. Tt is the Company’s pelicy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purpeses may be
undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below,

Market visk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash Nows of a Gnangial i will f b of ¢k i market prices. Market nsk comprises interest rate nisk and currency risk
Financial instruments affected by market nisk include borrowings and foreign exchange forward cantracts.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 51 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of floating to fixed interest rates of the debt and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign
currencies are all constant in place at 31 March 2021

The analysis exclude the impact of mavemenis in market variables on- the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations and pravisions.

The following assumptions have been made in caloulating the sensitivity analysis:
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2021
and 31 March 2020,

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk thar the fair value or future eash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes In markel interest rates. The Company's exposure 1o the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily lo the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because Company borrows funds at floating interest rates These exposures are reviewed by appropriate levals of management The Company
regularly monitors the market rate of interest 10 mitigate the risk exposure. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity 1o a reasonably possible change in inwerest rates on that portion of
borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on foating rate borrowings, &s follows

Incrense/ (decrease Effect on profit
Particulars } in interest vate{%a) hefore tax
31-Mar-21
INR loans +0.50% (85 20)
-0.50% 4520
31-Mar-20
INR loans +0.50% {9239
-0 50% 49239

The assumed movement m inturest rates for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable markel environment, showing a significantly higher volatlity than in prior
years

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency nsk 1s the nisk that the fur value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes
in foreign exchange rates relates primarily 1o the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency)

The Company manages its foreign currency risk by purchasing l[oreign currency forward contracts for p that are expected to occur within a maxi 12 th ¢ ted
period. The following tahles demonstrate the unhedged forcign currency and sensitivity to a bly possible change in forcign exchange rates, with all other variables he'd constant
The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities are as follows.

31 March 2021 Impact on profit before tax
Particulas Curtancy Foreign Idian % 5%
Currency Rupees Increiss Decrease

Trade payables usp 230 168.97 (8.45) 845
EURD 042 3034 {182) | 82
EGP 072 338 (0.17) 617
Loan to Subsidiary UsD T8 8o §.796.25 (289.81) 289.81
Buvers Credit from banks EURD 513 376.87 (18.84) 18 84
UsD 416 35T 85 17.89) 17.89
Trade receivables UsD 43.05 3.164.56 15823 (15823)
EURO 010 .63 043 {043)
Interest Receivable usp 623 457.64 2288 (22.88)
Balance with Banks EGP 041 194 Q.10 (0,10}

Cash on hand USD 0.004 041 00z (D02}
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31 March 2020 Impact on profit before tax

Particulars Currency Foreign Indian 5% 5%
Currency Rupees Inerease Decrense
External Commercial Borrowines from foremun banks ush
Trade payables UsD 1189 89616 {44.51) 44 81
EURO 0.21 17.48 (0.87) 087
Loan to Subsidiary usp 63.86 4,813.80 {240.69) 240 69
Buyers Credit from banks ELRO 8.894 734.50 (36.72) 672
UsD 4.47 337.13 (16.86) 16 86
Trade receivables UsD 28 88 2.176.84 i08.84 (108 84)
Interest Receivable usp 1.45 109.51 548 (5.48)
Balance with hanks UsDh (o002 014 0.01 (1.01)
EGP 189 8.96 043 (0.45)
Cash on hand usp 0005 04l 0.020 (0.020)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under & financial instrument or custamer contract, leading 1o 4 financial loss The Company is exposed 1o credit risk from its
operating activities including trade receivables, deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments,

Trade receivables

Trade receivables do not have any significant potential credit risk for the Company as the business of the Company is majorly cash based. An impainment analysis is performed by the management
at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is ged by the Company's treasury dep in d with the Company's policy. 1 of surplus funds are made only with approved
counterparties and within credit limits assigned 10 ench counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the key management personnel on an annual basis and may be updated throughout
the yeur. The fimits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore fi i

ial loss zh ¢ P sp ial failure to make payments.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 3| March 2021 and 31 March 2020 s the carrying amounts as illustrated in Note 5

Liquidity risk

The Company's ohjective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of cash credits and bank loans, Approximately 56% of the Company’s long-term
borrowings will mature in less than ong year at 31 March 2021 (51 March 2020; 42%) based on the carrying value of borrawings reflected in the financial statements. The Company assessed the
concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has sceess 1o a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing within 12 months can
be rolled over with existing lenders,

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on | undi 1 pey
<12 months | to 5 years =5 years Total
INR lacs INR lacs INR lacs INR lacs

Asat 31 March 2021

Long-term borrowings - 809.37 - BO9 37
Short-term borrowingg 15,002.98 - 15.002.98
Trade pavables 6,550 18 - - 6,550, 18
Other financial liabilities(inciudes lease liability and current maturity of long term 1,199.36 199.77 - 1,399 13
barrowings)

275,52 LO0S 14 - BIGGE
Asat 31 March 2020
Long-term borrowings - 784 85 - TE4.85
Short-term borrowings 19,069 41 - - 19,069 41
Trade payables 6,100 14 - - G, 100,14
Other financial liabilities(includes lease liability and current maturity of long term 916.56 7943 - ©95 99

borrowings)

26,086.11 864.28 - 26,930.39
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Notes o the standalone financial stat ts for the year ended March 2021

(Amount in INR Lacs)

35 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the sharcholders of the Company.
The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To mamtain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital
using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by tofal capital plus net debt, The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loars and borrowings less cash and cash
equivalenls. =&

The Company’s gearing ratio is as follows:

Particulars A3 3t At
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Borrowings including current maturities (refer note 10 and 11) 16.874.05 201,440,29
Less: cash and cash equivalents (refer note 5(C)) (373.127) (43,32}
Net debt (A) 16,500.93 20,396.97
Equity (refer note & and 9) 49,424 .85 7,190.37
Taotal capital (B) 49,424.85 47,190.37
Total capital and net debt (C) = (A) + (B) 65,925.78 67,587.34
Gearing ratio (A)(C) (%) 25.03% 30,18%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Campany’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital siructure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
barrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowings in the curvent period.

No changes were made in the objectives, polieies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,
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(Amount in INR Lacs)

36 Company as a lessee

i) The Company s leased assets primarily consists of lease for factory lands, computers and data processing cquipment having lease term of 5- 10 vears

In previous year the Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective methed of adoption with the date of inibial appheation of 1 April
2019, Cansequently, the Company recorded the lease Tiability at the present value of the remuming lease pavments discounted at the incremental
borrowing rate as on the date of transition and has measured right of use asset at an amount equal to lease Tiability adjusted for previously recogmised
prepaid or accrued lease payments. Further. lease arrangements where the Company is lessor. lease rentals are recopmized on straight line basis over the

non-cancellable period.

The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets. Generally, the Company 1s restricted from assigning

and subleasing the leased assets

The Company also has certain leases of machinery with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of office equipment with low value. The Company
apphies the “short-term lease” and “lease of low-value assets” recognition exemptions for these leases.
i) Set-out below are the carrying amounts of nght-of-use assets recogmised and the movements during the vear

Right-of-use assets recorded on adoption of Ind AS 116 as at 1 April
2019

Additions

Depreciation expense (refer note 22)

As at 31 March 2020

Additions

Deletion

Depreciation expense (reler note 229

As at 31 March 2021

it} Set-out below are the carrying amounts of lease habilities (included under other financial labilities) and the movements during the period:

Lense linbilities recorded on adoption of Ind AS 116 as at 1 April 2019

Additions

Aceretion ol interest (refer note 24)
Payments

isposal

As at March 31, 2020

Current

Non- current

Additions

Accretion of interest (refer note 24)
Pavments

Disposal

As at March 31, 2021

Current

Non- current

iv) The maturity analysis of contractual undiscounted cash flow-: -
As at March 31, 2021
Factory Land
Computer and data processing equipment

As at March 31, 2020

Factory Land

v) The following are the amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease Labilities

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses)
Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Factory Land Computer and data Total
proeessing equipment
110.45 11045
9.25 - 925
23.95 - 23.95
95.75 - 95,75
129,92 7904 201896
2511 - 2511
3506 14 82 49 88
165.50 64.22 229.72
Factory Land Computer and data Total
processing equipment

11969 - 11969
1099 - 109
26 50 - 26.50
104,18 - 104.18
24 74 - 2474
79.44 - 79.44
122.92 79.05 208.97
13.64 547 19.11
3247 1789 500,36
2842 - 2842
186,85 66,63 253.48
3248 21.23 53.71
154.537 45.40 199 77

Less than 1 vear

1to 5 years More than 5 year

35.80 140,83 104,00
23.86 5368 -
62.72 194,51 104.00

Less than 1 vear

1to 5 years  More than S year

28.60

07 86 651

28.60

97.86 6,51

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
49.88 2395

19.11 10.99

42 11 2381

111.10 58.75
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37

38

39

40

vi) Impact on statement of cash flows (increase/(decrease)):

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Operating lease payments* 50.36 26.50
Net cash flows used in operating activities 50.36 26,50
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities 31.25 15.51
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities 19.11 10.99
Net cash flows used in financing activities 50,36 26,50

¢ Compased of different line items in the indirect reconciliation of operating cash flows.
The Company had total cash outllows for leases of Rs. 31.25 Lacs for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Rs. 15.51 Lacs for March 31, 2020)

The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID -19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity
Consequent to these uncertainties/ disruptions caused due to continuation of pandemic, the Company has made assessment of impact of this pandemic
on ils business operations and has made assessment of its liquidity position for the next one year. The Company has assessed carrying value and the
recoverability of its assets comprising property, plant and equipment, intangible assets. right of use assets. mventory, arlvances, trace receivables, other
financial and non financial assets etc. and based on current Indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the earrying
amount of these assets on finuncial statement. The situation is changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertainty around the extent and timing of the
potential future impact of the COVID-19 which may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these standalone financial statements.
The Company will continue to closely moniter any material changes to future economic conditions.

Change in shareholding pattern

Subsequent to year ended March 31, 2021, Pursuant to the approval of the Board on May 07, 2021 and approval of sharcholders through special
resolution passed in extra ordinary general Meeting dated May D8, 2021, The buyback offer of 51.00,000 equity shares was made to all existing
sharcholders of the Company as on May 08, 2021, being the record date for the purpose in accordance with the Artcles 135 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Section 68, 69 and 70 of the Companies Act 2013, Company concluded buyback of 50,84,891 tendered equity shares of
face value of Rs 10/- each at a price of Rs 99/~ per equity share, for an aggregate amount of RS 5,034.04 lacs on May 17,2021,

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential
assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not
been notified and the final rules/ interpretation have not yet been issued, The Company will assess the impact of the Cods when it comes into effect and
will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

Tax rate change
Pursuant to introduction of new tax regime as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019 which provided an option to the Company for
paying Income Tax at reduced rates as per the provisions/ conditions defined in the newly inserted Section 115BAA in the Income-tax Act, 1961

The Company has exercised the option to adopt lower tax rate, consequently the Company had applied the lower income tax rates on the deferred tax
assets/ liabilities to the extent these are expected to be realized or settled in the future period when the Company may be subjected to lower tax rate.
This has resulted in reversal of net deferred tax liabilities amounting to INR 758.47 lues in current year.




41. Dividend Distribution made and proposed

Particul As at As at
articulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Paid Dividend on Equity Shares
Final dividend for the year ended March 31,2020: Nil Per Share (March 78.46
31,2019 : Rs 0.50 Per Share) B
Dividend Distribution tax on dividend - 16.13
- 94.59

42. The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped/ reclussified wherever considered necessary, to make them
comparable with current vear classification,

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Bourd of Direetors of
Chartered Accountants DEE Development Engineers Limited
ICAT Finm Registration Number; 301003E/E300005

per Athit Yadav K.L. Bansal Ashima Bansal

Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director

Membership No; 501753 DIN No. 01125121 DIN No. 01928449
Rsnjan\ﬁ;angi Gal{lfa\’ Namrfgl

\ E g P Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Place : T2 FCS-8604

Date : }{)l O°|l 202-|
Place : Faridabad
Date : September 20, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of DEE Development Engincers Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of DEE Development
Engineers Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™), its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) and its jointly controlled entity,
comprising of the Consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear then ended, and notes 1o the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements. including a summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us and based
on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate Iinancial statements and on the other financial
information of subsidiarics and jointly controlled entity. the aforesaid consolidated ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its jointly controlled entity as at
Macch 31. 2021, their consolidated profit including other comprehensive income. their consolidated cash
tlows and the consolidated changes in equity for the vear ended on that daic.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
*Code of Ethics™ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that arc relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention o the note 40 of consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which explains the
uncertainties and the management’s assessments of financial impact related to CoVID-19 Pandemic
situation, for which a definitive assessment of the impact in subsequent period is dependent on future
cconomic developments and circumstance as they evolve, Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter,

5.R. Bathbo! & Co. LLP. a Lamited Liabiiily Partnership with LLP Idenlity No, AAR-4294
Rega Othee - 22, Camac Strect, Slock '8, 3rd Floar, Kalkata 700 016
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and. in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If. based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirement of the Act that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules. 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group and of its jointly controlled entity are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and of its jointly
controlled entity for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
Companies included in the Group and of its jointly controlled entity are responsible for assessing the
ability of the Group and of its jointly controlled entity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its jointly controlled
entity are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its jointly
controlled entity.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and arc considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audii. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
[rom error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the
override of internal control,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its jointly controlled entity
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 1o
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and its jointly controlled entity to cease to continue as a going
concern.,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures. and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its jointly controlled entity of which we are the independent
auditors to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities
included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors.
For the other entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which have been
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audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other malters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings.
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of three
subsidiaries whose financial statements include total assets of Rs 20.280.57 lakhs as at March 31,
2021, and total revenues of Rs 8,921.86 and net cash outflows of Rs 211.55 lakhs for the year ended
on that date. These Ind AS financial statement and other financial information have been audited by
other auditors, whose financial statements. other financial information and auditor’s reports have been
furnished to us by the management. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements also include the
Group’s share of net profit of Rs. 12.06 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2021, as considered in
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in respect of one jointly controlled entity, whose
financial statements, other financial information have been audited by other auditors and whose
reports have been furnished to us by the Management. Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, in so [ar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity is based solely on the reports of such other
auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other
financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entity as noted in the “other matter” paragraph we report, to the extent
applicable, that

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;
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(b)

(d)

(e)

(H)

—~
{ii=]
~—

(h

—

(i)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and reports of the other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the
Consolidated Statement of Change in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements:

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:;

The matter described in Emphasis of Matter - paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Group along with its jointly controlled entity:

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary
companies, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as
on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these consolidated
Ind AS financial statements of Holding Company. its subsidiary companies incorporated in India
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 1" to
this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act:

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other
financial information of the subsidiaries, and its jointly controlled entity, as noted in the ‘Other
matter” paragraph:

i.  The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
its consolidated financial position of the Group and its jointly controlled entity in its
consolidated Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 32 to the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements;

ii.  The Group and its jointly controlled entity did not have any material foreseeable losses in
long-term contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2021:




SR . BatrLisBoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Lducation and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India during
the year ended March 31, 2021,

For 8.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Amit Yadav

Partner

Membership Number: 501753
UDIN:21501753AAAAEHT964

Place of Signature: Faridabad
Date: September 20, 2021
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DEE DEVELOPMENT
ENGINEERS LIMITED.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of DEE Development
Engineers Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) as ol and for the year ended March
31,2021, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group™), which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business.
including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets. the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act. to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAL Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal (inancial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below. is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind
AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated Ind AS
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent [imitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind
AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over {inancial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL
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Chartered Accountants

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company, in
so far as it relates to these 2 subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India. is based on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiaries incorporated in India.

For 8.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Amit Yadav

Partner

Membership Number: 501753
UDIN: 21501753AAAAEH7964

Place of Signature: Faridabad
Date: September 20, 2021



DEE Development Engincers Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021

(Amount in INR Lacs)

As at Asat
Particulars Notes 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 36,007.37 37,9246
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 200.18 197.34
(e) Goodwill 3(a) 271,18 27118
{d) Other intangible assets 3(a) 226.33 252.99
(e} Right of use assets 9 459 23 26450
(f) Investment in subsidiary and jointly conlrolled entity 4 1.00 -
() Financial assets
(i) Loans 5(B) 142,81 128.42
{ii) Others 5(D) 392.22 518,75
(h) Deferred tax assets (net) 15(C) 207.04 -
(i) Other non-current assets 6 249,92 199.06
Taotal non-current assets 38,157.28 39,824.79
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 7 18,426.04 24,783.77
(b) Financial assgts
(1) Trade receivables 5{A) 19,845.91 19,526.55
(it) Cash and cash equivalents 5[C) 505.33 387.09
(iii} Loans 5(B) 835 2.69
(1v) Others 5D 2,857.66 3,177.08
{c) Other current assets 3 3,787.04 3.610.94
Total current assets 45,430.33 51,488.12
Total assets 83,587.61 91.312.91
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 8 1,569.27 1,569.27
(b) Other Equity 9 43,862,52 4232002
Total equity 45,431.79 43,789.29
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 10{A) S.131:12 7.190.07
(if) Other 1 406.38 230,99
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 15(D) 2,123.44 3,151.35
{c) Provisions 12 104.70 88,80
(d)} Other non current liabilities 14 93.15 174.26
Tatal non-current linbilities 7,858.79 10,835.47
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 10(B) 17,201,11 21,189.39
(ii) Trade payables
Total outstanding due of micro and small enterprises 16 23824 5240
Total outstanding due of other than micro and small enterprises 16 7,510.55 7.094.15
(iii) Other 11 3,769.78 3,504.70
(b) Liabilities for current tax (net) 13 13.79 264,39
(¢) Provisions 12 139.77 174.96
(d) Other current liabilities 14 1,423.79 4.408.16
Total current iiahilities 30,297.03 36,688,135
Total Equity and Liabilities 83,587.61 91,312.91
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
_The accompanying noles are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date
For 5. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants DEE Development Engineers Limited
ICAI Finm Registration Number; 301003E/E300005 ’
K.L. Bansal Ashima Bansal
Chairman & Managing Director Director
DIN No. 01125121 DJIN Mo, 01928449
per Aniit Yadav
Fartner
Membership No: 501753
RanjanSarangi Gautfav Narang'
Company secretary Chitf Financial Offiter
FCS-8604

Place : Fm;w

Date ° Q,@]oql}o;)

Place : Faridabad

Date : September 20, 2021



DEE Development Engineers Limited
Consolidated Siatement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Amount in INR Lacs)

Particulars MNotes  For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
I Revenue from operations 17 49.321.73 72,251.34
Il Other income 18 1,780.94 1,613.18
Il Total Income (1+11) 51,302.67 73,864.52
IV  Expenses
Cost of material consumed i 19 19,847.14 3955041
Purchases of stock in trade 95.69 1,008.09
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and work-in-progress 20 3,700.46 (526.57)
Employee benefit expenses 21 7,396.25 8,857.83
Depreciation and amortization expense 22 3,553.76 3.282.74
Finance cos! 24 2273 3,783.33
Other expenses 23 13,113,775 15,194.22
Total expenses (IV) 50,419.80 71,150.05
V' Profit before share of profit of a jointly controlled entity, exceptional items and tax (111 - V) 882.87 2,714.47
Share of profit/(loss} of a jointly controlled entity (Refer note no 29) 12.06 73.42
VI Profit before tax 894.93 2,787.89
VII Tax expense: 15
(1) Current tax 15 (A) 730.87 1.394.88
(2) Income tax adjustment rclated to earlier years (12.71) 6.89
(3) Deferred tax (credit)/ charge 15(D) (1,243 76) 49.57
VIIT Profit for the year (VI-VII) 1,420,53 1,336.55
IX  Other comprehensive income / (loss) 25
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 34.50 (81.89)
Inzome tax effect (8.82) 2849
Items that will be reclassified to statement of profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 9(D) 196 .2¢ 260.12
Net Comprehensive Income 221.97 206.72
X Total Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) (VI + IX) 1,642.50 1,543.27
XI  Earnings per equity share nominal value of shares INR 10 cach (Previous
year INR 10 cach):
- Basic eamings per share 26 9.05 8.52
- Diluted earnings per share 26 9.05 §.52
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consalidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants DEE Development Engineers Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

K.L. Bansal Ashima Bansal
Chairman & Managing Director  Director
DIN No, 01125121 DIN No. 01928449
per Amit Yadav
Partner
Membership No: 501753
Ranj¥#’Sarangi Gau{_le Naran,
Company secrelary Chief Financial Officer
FCS-8604

Place : F\G\D(r L’(-ﬂvw Place : Faridabad

Date : Mjoﬁilwz l Date : September 20, 2021



DEL Development Engincers Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Amount in INR Lacs)

Particulars

For the Year ended
31 March, 2021

For the Year ended
31 March, 2020

A, Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before income tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortiisalion expense

Loss on sale/ discard of fixed assets (net)

Finance costs

Amortization of deferred revenue on advance recerved from MNRE
Amortization of deferred revenue obligation

Unreahzed gam/loss on foreign exchange (net)

Provision Tor doubtful debt and advance

Sundry balances written oft

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans

Finance income

Operating profit before working capital changes

Working eapital adjustments:

Change in trade receivables

Change in invenlories

Change in current/non-current financil assets
Change in other current/ non-current assets
Change n trade pavables

Change in provisions

Change in current/nen-current financial labilities
Change in other current/non-current habihties
Cash generated/ (used in) from aperations

Direct tax paid

Net eash (outflow)/ inflow from operating activities
Cash Mow from investing activities

Purchase of property. plant & equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment

Investments in bank deposits

Proceeds from redemption’ matunty of bank deposits
Interest recenved

Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from investing activities
Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of Borrowing

Interest paid

Principle repayment of lease habilies

Interest Paid on lease habilites

Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from financing activities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ ()

Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents

Notes:
The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indireet Method” as set out 1n Indian Accounting Standard-7, Statement of Cash Flows"

894,93 2,787.89
3155370 328274
2520 60 99
271275 3.783.33
(570) (7.64)
(53 38) 160017
(214.35) (325.04)
- 6539
370 2373
378 -
(22311 (298 18)
6,697.38 9.312.54
386 1.680097
6.357.75 180567
(20.04) S60) b6
(613 20) 1,354 49
653.65 (4.037.10)
(5.56) 9212
8341 (462.63)
(2893 45) (6514 13)
10,261.80 8.792.59
(707 53) (1.663.02)
A 9,554,235 T 02957
(1,686 28) (3,770.13)
130 81 97 45
(1,587 19) (1.336.23)
| 688 39 2,147 63
777 94 91509
3 (676.33) (1,946.19)
3770 36 4492423
(9.294 58) (7.481.50)
(3.184.09) (3.900.32)
(31.26) (18.20)
(19.11) (18.26)
(i (8,759.68) (6,494.05)
118.24 (1,310.67)
387 09 1,697.76
505.33 387.09




DEE Development Engineers Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Amount in INR Lacs)

Components of cash and cash equivalents :

: As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Particulars
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 454 13.94
Balance with banks 500.49 373.15
505.33 387.09
As per our report of even date
For 5. R, Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants DEE Development Engincers Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
K.L. Bansal Ashima Bansal
Chairman & Managing Director Director
DIN No. 01125121 DIN No. (11928449
per Amit Yadav
Partner
Membership No: 501753
Ranjan Sifangi Gnulrav Nar{n;{
Company secretary Chief Financial Officer

FCS-8604

-
Place ]—M'MJ Place : Faridabad

Date : 2@' Oﬁ' 20| Date : September 20, 2021



DEE Development Engineers Limited

Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2021

{A in INR Lacs)

A. Equity share capital:

Particulars Equity Shares
No. in lacs INR lacs
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
At 31 March 2019 156,93 1,569.27
Increase/ (decrease) during the year = =
At 31 March 2020 156.93 1.569.27
Increase/ (decrease) during the year = -
At 31 March 2021 156.93 1.569.27
. Other equity
ther C hensi
Reserves and Surplus Otiex [;:;i:n": e
Particulars Foreign Currenc Total
Securities General Retained 8 o]
: Translation
Premium reserve earnings Rsorve
Balance as at the 31 March 2019 16,730.93 4,585.71 19,328.22 125,48 40,771.34
Add/ (less):
Profit for the year = - 1.336.55 . 1,336,535
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year - - (53.40) . (53.40)
Dividend (Refer Note No. 44) (78.46) (78.46)
Dividend Distribution tax (Refer Note No. 44) (16.13) (16.13)
Exchange differeace on translation of foreign operations - - - 260.12 260.12
Balance as at the 31 March 2020 16,730.93 4,585.71 20,517.78 385.60 42,220.02
Add/ (less):
Profit for the year - - 1,420.53 - 1,420.53
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year - - 2568 . 2568
Dividend (Refer Note No. 44) - - - - -
Dividend Distribution tax (Refer Note No. 44) - - - - -
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations - - - 196.29 196.29
Balance as at the 31 March 2021 16.730.93 4,585.71 21,963.99 581.89 43,862.52
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

For 8. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number; 301003E/E300005

per Amit Yadav
Partner
Membership No: 501753

i Poaplelodsecof

Date : 20) o I 2072

For and on behali of the Board of Directors of
DEE Development Enginecrs Limited

K.L. Bansal Ashima Bansal
Chairman & Managing Director Director

DIN No. 01125121 DIN No. 01928449
RanjawSdrangi ™ Gnum Narang
Company secretary ChieflFinancial Officer

FCS-8604

Place : Faridabad
Date ; September 20, 2021



DEE Development Engineers Limited
Notes to consolidated Tinancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

1. Corporate Information

The consolidated financial siatements comprise financial statements of Dee Development Engineers Limited {“the group or Holding group”)its subsidiaries and
joimntly controlled entity (collectively. the Group) for the year ended 31 March 2021, The group 15 a public group domnciled in India and 1s ncorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India

The Group primarily engaged in manufacturing of Pre-fabricated Engineering Products, Pipe Fittings, Piping Svstems and  Biomass based Power Generation, The
Group has manufacturing facihties at Tatarpur (Haryana), Power Generation Plant at Abohar (Punjab). Muktasar (Punjub), Gandhidham (Guyrat) and Thailand.

The consolidated Financial statements were authorised for issuance in accordance with a resolution of the directors on September 20, 2021

The consolidated Financial Statements comprise the results of the holding group (along with its its subsidiarics and Jomtly controlled entity). The particulars of
subsidiaries considered n the consolidated financial statements are as under

Name of group Country of Y of ownership
incornoration

(i) subsidiaries

Malwa Power Private Limited (MPPL) Indha 100)

Dee Fabricom India Pyt Ld. (DFIPL) India 100

Dee Piping Svstems (Thailand) Co. Ltd (DPSTL) Thailund 100

(i) Jointly controlled entity

Dee Fabnicom LLC Diubai 49

2 Significant Accounting Policies

.

Basis of preparation

“The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by ministry of
corporate affars under seetion 133 of Companies Act 2013 (Act) raed with under the Compamies { Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from
fime to time) and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act. 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 1D, as applicable o the
Consohdated Financial statement

T'he financial statements of the group have been prepared on a historical cost basts, excepl [or the following assels and liabilities:
(i) Certain financial assets and habilities measured at for value

(it) Defined benelit plan- plan assets measured at fair value.

(1) Perivative financial instruments

The fimancial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded 1o the nearest lacs | INR 0D.000), except when otherwise stated.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the linaneial statements of the holding Co._ iis subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity as at 31 March 2021
Control is achieved when the Group 1s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the invesiee and has the ability to affeet those returns
through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an mvestee iFand only if the Group has:

B Power over the investee (i.e. existing ights that give it the current ability to direet the relevant activities of the investec)
B Lixposure, o rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the mvestee, and
B The ability 1o use ils power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally. there is a presumplion that a majority of voting rights result in control. Ta support this presumption and when the Group has less than a mayority of the
voting or similar nights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power aver an investee, including:

P The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

P Rights ansing from other contractual arrangements

P The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

» [he size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders

The CGiroup re-assesses whether or not 1t controls an investee i facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three clements of
control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary,
Assets, liabilitics, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar eireumstances, [ a member of
the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for hike transactions and events 1n similar cireumstances.
appropriate adjustments are made 1o that group member's financial statements i preparing the consolidated finaneial statements to ensure conformity with the
group’s accounting policies

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent group, 1.¢.. year ended on 31
March. When the end of the reporting periad of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary preparcs, for consolidation purposes. additonal
financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary,




DEE Development Engineers Limited
Nates to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

.

Consolidation procedures are:

(1) Subsidiarices

(a) Combine like 1tems of assets. habilites, equity, income, expenses and cash ows of the parent with those of 1ts subsidiaries. For this purpose. imcome and
expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date

(b) Offset (climinate) the carrving amount of the parent’s investment m each subs
combinations pohcy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

ary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Busmess

(¢) Eliminate i full intragroup assets and habihies, equuy, meome, expenses and cash (lows relating 1o transactions between entities of the group (profits or
losses resulting from intragroup transactions that arc recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assels, are elimiated i [ull). Inteagroup losses may
indicate an impairment that requires recognition 1n the consohdated financial statements Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applics to temporary differences that anse
from the climination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCT) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and (o the non-controlhing
interests, even if this results in the non-contralling interests having a deficil balince When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries 1o bring their aecounting policies into hine with the Group’s aceounting policies All intra-group assets and liabilittes, equity. income. expenses and
cash (lows relating 1o transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary. wathout a loss of control, 15 accounted for as
subsidiary, it

an cquity transaction. I the Group loses control over a

P Derecognises the assets (imcluding goodwill) and habilities of the subsidiary

B Derecogmises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

P Dcrccogniscs the cumulative translation differences recorded m equity

B Recogmses the fair value of the consideration received

P Recognises the fair value of any ivestment retamed

B Recogmses any surplus or deficit in prolit or loss

P Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained carmings, as appropriate. as would be required if the

Circie had diracths dicnoead af thoe ralatoed aceate or Tkl

() Investment in jointly controtled entity

A jointly controlled entity 15 a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint controlb of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the jomtly
controlled entity. Joint control is the contractually agreed shanng of control of an arrangement. which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
reguire unammous consent of the parties shanng control.

The Group™s mvestments in its jointly controlled entity are accounted for usi
entiby s imnally recogmsed at ¢

o the equity method Under the equity method. the investment in jointly controlled
The earrying amount of the investment is adjusted (o recognise changes m the Group's share of net assets of the jointly
controlled entity since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the jomtly controlled entity is included in the carrying amount of the investment and 1s not tested
for impatnment individually.

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the jointly controlled entity. Any change in OCI of those investees is
presented as part of the Group’s OCL In addition, when there has been a change recogmsed directly i the equity of the jointly contolled entity. the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable. in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and the associate or jointly controlled entity are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the jointly controlled entity

1 an entity's share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its mterest in the jointly controlled entity {which includes any long term mterest that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment i the jointly controlled entity). the entity discontinues recognising its share of further losses, Additional
losses are recognised only 1o the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entity 17
the jointly controlled entity subsequently reports profits. the entity resumes recopnising its share of those profits only afier its share of the profits equals the share
of losses not recogmised

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of jointly controlled entity is shown on the face of the statement of profit and loss, When necessary,
adjustments are made 1o bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

Afier application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary 1o recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its jointly conirolled
entity. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the jointly controlled entity 15 impaired. If there 1s
such evidence. the Group caleulates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the jointly controlled entity and s carrying
value, and then recogmses the loss as “Share of profit of an associate and a jointly controlled entity” in the statement of profit or loss.

Lpon loss of significant influence over the jointly controlled entity, the Group measures and recognises any retaned ivestment at its far value. Any difference
between the carrving amount of the joimtly controlled entity upon loss of significant mfluence or joint control and the fwr value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal 18 recognised i prolit or loss

Change in ownership interest

The group treats transaction with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transaction with the equity owners of the group. A change in
ownership mterest results i adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interest to reflect their relative mterest i the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received 15 recognised within equity.




DEE Development Engincers Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021

d.

€

L.

Goodwill

Goadwill 1 initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests.
and any previous interest held, over the net dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities sssumed. If the fair value of the net assets acyuired is i excess of the
aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identificd all of the assets acquired und all of the liabihes assumed and
reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the nequisition date. 11 the reassessment stll results in an excess of the fair value of net
assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then Lhe gain 15 recognised in OC1 and accumulated in equity as capital reserve However, i there 1s
1o clear evidence of bargain purchase. the entity recognises the gain dircetly in equity as capital reserve, wil hout routing the same through OCL

Afier initial recognition. goodwill 1s measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in &
business combination is. from the acquisition date. allocated to cach of the CGroup’s cash-generating units that are expecied 10 benefit from the combination.
irrespective of whether other assets or habilities of the acquire are assigned 1o those umits

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated 15 tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the umit miy e
impaired. 17 the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less thun its carrying amount, the impaiment foss 15 allocated first 10 reduce the carrving
amount of any goodwill allocated to the umit and then ta the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the earrying amount of each asset in the wmt Any
impairment luss for goodwill is recogmised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recogmised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocaied 10 a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed
operation 1s included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the g or loss on disposal Goodwill disposad in these cireumstances 15
measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating umt retaned

If the mitial accounting for a busimess combination 15 meomplete by the end of the reporting period 1n which the combination oceurs. the Group reports
provistonal amounts for the items for which the aceounting is incomplete Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement
period. or additional assets or labihities are recognised. to reflect new information abtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,

i known. would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement peniod
1 -

Use of Estimates

T A e e

The preparation of consolidated financial statements i conlormily with generally aceepted accountmg principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that aflect the reported amounts of mcome and expenses of the period. reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contimgent
liabilitics at the date of the finaneial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. Examples of such estimates include provisions for
doubiful debts and advances, future obligations under employee retirement benefit plans. useful lives of fixed assets, contingencies, ele, Although these estimates
are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events nnd actions, actual results could differ from these estimates. Difference between actual result and
estimaltes are recognised i the period in which the resulls are known/materiahse,

Current vs Non Current Classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities m the balance sheet based on current! non-current classification.
P P

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Fxpeeted to be realised or intended 10 be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primanly for the purpose of trading

Ixpected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting penod, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Jability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current

A linbility is current when:

- 1t 15 expected 1o be settled i normal operating eyele

- [t 15 held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting periad, or

- There is no unconditional right 1o defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Group classifies all ather liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liahilities are classified as non-current ussets and habilities.

The operating cyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equiv alents. The Group has identified
twelve months as its operating evele

Foreign currencics

The Group (nancial statements are presented in INR. which 1s also the Group’s functional eurrency. Hems ineluded in the financial statements ol each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary ceonomic environment in which the entity operates (*the functional currency’) For each entity
the Group determines the {unctional eurrency and items included in the financial statements of cach entity are measured using that functional currency. For the
purpose of consolidation ino the financial statement of ultimate parent Group. these finaneral stalements are presented in INR. bemg the functional and
presentation currency of ultimate parent Group . The Group uses the direct method of consolidation and on dispesal of a foreign operation the gain or loss that is
reclassified to profit or loss reflects the amount that arises [rom using this method.

On consolidation, the assets and labilities of foreign operations are transhated into INR at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their
statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the wansactions. For practical reasons, the group uses an average rile 1o
translate meome and expense ttems. i the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions, The exchange differences ansing on
translation for consolidation are recognised in OCL On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular forcign operation 15
recognised in profit or Joss
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Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group's entities at their respective functional curreney spot rates it the date the transaction first
qualifics for recogmtion. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the
{ransaction The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCL On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI
relating to that particular foreign aperation is recognised in profit or loss

Manetary assets and liabilities denaminated i foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange al the reporting date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost n a foreign currency are Iranslaied using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Nen-monetary items measured at far value in a foreign curreney are translated using the exchange ratcs al the date when the Fur value s
determined

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in protit or loss i the period in which they anse with the exception of
exchange differences on g or loss arisig on translaion of non-monetary items measured an fiir value which is treated i line with the recogmtion of the gain
ar logs on the change in fair value of the rem (1.e., translation differences on items whose fair vitlue gain o1 loss is recognized i OCT or profit or loss are also
recopnized in OCL or profit or loss, respectively),

Group had availed the option of Pari 46 A i AS 11 under previous GAATP and also same option has been continued under INIY AS as per option given under
IND AS 101 and accordingly exchange differences ansing on translation of long-term foreign currency monetary 1ems for the period ending immediately before
the beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting period 15 deferred/eapitalised. A Jong-term foreign currency monetary item is an item having o lerm of 12
manths or more al the date of its origination,

Revenue from eontract or services with customer

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 1o the Group and the revenue can be rehably measured. regardiess of
when the payment 1s being made. Revenue is measured at the fanr value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined
terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Group has concluded that it is the prineipal in all of its revenue
arrangements because 11 typically controls the gooads or services before transferrng them 1o the customer.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when contral of the goods or services are transferred 1o the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects 1o be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The Group collects Goods and service tax (GST) on behalt of the government and therefore. these are not cconomie henefits flowing to the Group. Hence, they
are excluded from revenue

The specific recogmition eniteria described befow must also be met before revenue is recogmsed.

Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred o the customer. generally on delivery of the equipment.
Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowanees. trade discounts and
volume rebates

In determining the transaction price for the sale of equipment. the Group considers the effects of variable consideration. the existence of sigmificant financing
components. noncash consideration. and consideration payable o the customer (ifany)

(i) Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the ameunt of consideration to which it will be entitled i exchange for
transferring the goods 1o the customer The variable consideration 1s estimated at eontract inception and constrained until it 1s highly probable that a signilicant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration 18 subscquently
resolved.

Rendering of Services

Revenue from errection service and job wark is recognised as per the contractual terms and as and when services are rendered. The Group collects Goods and
service tax (GST) on behalf of the government and. therefore. it is not an economic benefit fowing to the Group. Hence. itis excluded from revenue

Interest Income

For all debt mstiuments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income 15 recorded using the effective
interest rate (FIR), EIR is the rite that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
sharter period, where appropriate. 10 the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or o the amortised cast of a financial hability. When calculating the
effective interest rate. the group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension. call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Sale of Electricity

Revenue from sales of clectrienty 15 billed on the basis of recording of supply of eleetricity through installed meters. Revenue from sales of clectricity 15 accounted
for on the basis of billing to customers based on billing eyeles followed by the group.

Contract balances

Contract assets
A contraet asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer 1f the group performs by transferring goods or services
to 8 customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due. a contract asset is recognised for the carned consideration that 1 conditional

Trade reccivables
A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (1.e.. only the passage of time 1s required before payment of the
consideration is due), Refer to accounting policies of finanecial assets in section (w) Financial instruments initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contraet liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has reeeived consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. 1F 0 customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services 1o the customer. a conirac liability is recogmised when the
payment 1s made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
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Government Grants

Governmen! grants are recopnised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates 10 an expense fem, it 15 recogmsed as income on a systematic basis over the pertods that the related costs, for which it is intended 1o compensate,
are expensed. When the grant relates o an assel, it 1s recogmsed as meome m cqual amounts over the expected uselul lifi of the related assel

When the Group receives grants ol non-monetary assets. the asset and the grant are recorded at fur value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected
useful Life in a patiern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset 1e by equal annual instalments, W lien loans or similar assistunce are provided by
governments or related institubons, with an interest raie below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable inierest is regarded as a
government grant, The loan or assistance 1s mibsally recognised and measured at fr virlue and the government grant is measured as the difference between the
initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan s subsequently measured as per the aceounting policy appheable to financial liabilities.
Taxation

Current income tax

Current income tax assets und liabilities are measured at the amount expeeted 1o be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enaeted, at the reporting date i the countries where the Group operates and generates
laxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity)
Current fax tlems are recopnised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCT or direetly in equity, Management periodically evaluales positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to sifuations in which applicable tax regulations are subjeet to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriatce.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 15 provided using the lability method on temporary differences between the ax bases of assels and hiabilitics and their carrymg amounts lor
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred mx labilities are recognised for all taxable emporary differences. except when the deferred tax liability ariscs from the initial recopnition of goodwill or
an asset or liability in 4 ransaction that 1s not a business combination and. at the ume of the transaction. affects nerther the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences. the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised (o the extent that it is prabable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difterences. and the carry forward of
unused o credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. except when the deferred 1ax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference anses from the inital
recognition of an asset or liability i u transaction that is nol a business combination and. at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred 1ax assets is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced 1o the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset 1o be utilised. Unrecognised deferred fax assets aie re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the defirred tax asset 1o be recovered

Defierred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the 1ax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled. based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Deferred 1ax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss 15 recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity ). Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underhying transaction cither in OCT or direetly in equity

Deferred tax includes Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) and recognises MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that
the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period e the period for which MAT credit is allowed 1o be carried forward. The Group reviews the
MAT eredit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the assct to the extent the Group does not have any convineing evidence that it will pay
normal tax during the specified period

For operations carried out under tax holiday peniod (801A benefit of Income Tax Act, 1961}, deferred tax asset or habilities if any. have been established for the
tax consequences of those temporary differences between the carryimg values of assets and liabilities and their respeetive tax bases that reverse after the tax
haliday period ends
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Properiy, Plant and Equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of secumulated impairment loss, i any. All the property, plant and equipment is stated at cosl, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. it any, Such cost includes the cost af replacing part of the plant and equpment and borrowing costs for long-
term construction projeets if the recognition eriteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
depreciales them separatcly based on their specifie useful lives. Likewise. when a major Inspection is performed. its cost 15 recognised in the carrying amount of
the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recogm tion eriteria are satisfied. All other repair and maimenance costs are reeognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

The group. based on technical assessment made by techmcal expert and management estimate. depreciates plant and machineries of piping division over
estimated useful lives of 15 ta 25 years which are different from the uselul life preseribed n Schedule 11 to the Companics Act, 2013 The mamagement believes
that these cstimated useful lives are realistic and reflect far approsimation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used

In case of ather assets. depreciation has been provided on straight line method on the cconomic useful lile prescribed by Schedule 1T to the Companies Act2013
Diepreciation on addition {0 or on disposal of Fixed Asset is caleulated on pro rata basis Addition, 1o Fined Assets costing less than or equal o Rs. 5,000 are
depreciated fully in the year ol purchase.

An tlem of property. plant and equipment and any significant part imtially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no luture economic benefits are
expected from s use or disposal. Any gam or loss ansing on derecognition of the asset (caleuluted as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrving amount of the asset) 15 included in the statement of profitand loss when the asset 1s derecognised.

The residual values. useful Tives and methods of depreciation of property. plunt and cquipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively,
il appropriate

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on itial recogmition at eost Following mihal recognition. intangible assets are carned at cost Tess any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of intangible assets aequired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognmition, intangible assets are carried al cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated mpairment losses.

Amartisation of intangible ussets is allocated on systematic basis over the best estimute of their useful life and accordingly software's are amortised on straight
line basis over the period of six vears or license period which ever is lower

Gains or losses arising [rom de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference hetween the net disposal proceeds and the earrymg amount of the
asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. The Group has no imtangible assets with an indefinite life

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs dircetly attributable to the acquisition. construction ot production of an assct that necessanly takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All ather borrowing costs are expensed in the pertod m which they pceur. Borrowing costs
consist of inferest and other costs that an entity meurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also ineludes exchange differences to the extent
reparded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs

Leases

The Group assesses al contract inception whether a contract 1s. or contains, a lease. That 15,1 the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration

Group as a lessee

Ihe Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. exeept for short-lerm leases and leases of low-value assets The Croup
recogmses lease habihihies Lo make lease payments and right-of-use asscts representing the night 1 use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use asset

The Group recopnises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (1., the date the underlying assct is available for use). Right-ol-use assets are
measured at cost. less any accumulated depreciation and imparment losses. and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of tight-ol-use
assets includes the amount of lense labilities recognised. initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straighl-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
as follows

Particulars Iseful life (years)
As per Management

l.easchold Land 5-10

Computer and data processing equipment 4

Plant & Machinery 5

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of & purchase option, depreciation is caleulated
using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of~use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies m section (2.n) Impairment of
non-linancial assets.

(b) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease. the Group recogmises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments o be made over the lease term
The lease payments include fixed payments (neluding msubstance lixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable vanable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The fease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain 1o be exercised by the Group and payments of penaltics for termnating the lease il the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option o
terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the
period i which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In caleulating the present value of lease payments. the Group uses tts incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the mierest rile
implicit in the lease is not reachly determimable: Afier the commencement date. the amount of lease labilives 1s increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and
reduced Tor the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease labilities is remeasured if there 18 a modilication, a change in the lease lerm, a
change 1n the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying assel.
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(¢) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

I'he Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its shari-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.¢.. those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase aption). It also applies the lease of low-value asseis recogniion exemption 1o lea
of office cquipment that are considered 1o be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and lenses of low-value assels are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases 1n which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset ure classificd as operating leases. Rental income from
operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and artanging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease lerm on the same basis as rental income. Contmgent rents are recognised
s revenue in the period m which they are camed.

Leases are classificd as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Group 1o the lessee. Amounts dug [rom
lossees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Group's el investment in the [eases Finance lease meome is allocated to accounting penods so as
to refleet a constant periodic rate of return on the net mvestment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Raw muterials, Stores, Spares, Other Lower of cost and net realizahle value However, materials and other supplies held for use in the

Materials and Traded Goods production of inventories are not written down below cost il the finished products in which they will be
incorporated, are expected 1o be sold at or above cost. Cost 15 determined on weighted average cost
basis.

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs meurred in bringing the inventorics to then present
location and condition

Finished goods Lower of cost and net realizable value Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion
of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity. but excluding borrowing costs Cost
is determined on weighted average cost basis Cost of fimished goods includes exerse duty, wherever
applicable.

Work in Progress Wark in Progress is valued at the lower af actual cost incurred or net realizable value. Net realisable
value is determingd after deducting estimated cost expected to be incurred for completion of work, Cost
includes direct materials. labour and proportionate overheads.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price m the ordinary course of business. less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs neeessary to make the
s

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there 1s an mdication that an assel may be impaired, 1f any indication exists. or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recov erable antount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s (CGUY fair value less costs of disposal und its value in use, Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or proup of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount. the asset is considered impuired and is written down 10 its recoverable amount

In assessing value m use. the estimated future eash fows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the asset o determining fair value less costs of disposal. recent market transactions arc taken
into account, 1f no such transactions can be identified. an appropriate valuation model is used

Provisions

A provision is recognised when Group has a present oblization as a result of past event and it 1s probable that an outllow of resources will be required 1o settle the
obligation. in respeet of which a reliable estimate can be made. If the eflect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a pre-tax rate that
reflects when appropriate. the risks speeific to the liability

Retirement and Other Employee Benefits

(1) Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund 1s a defined contribution scheme The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
pravident fund The Group recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service 11 the
contribution payable to the scheme for service receved before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already pard. the deficit pavable to the scheme is
recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution duc for serviees received before
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset (o the extent that the pre-payment will lead to. for example, a reduction in future payment or 4 cash
refund

(1) Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and provision is bemng made on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary at the year end using
projected unit eredit methad, and 15 contributed to the Gratuity fund managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Remeasurements. comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefil
liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit lability), are recognised immediately m the halance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained camings through QClin the period i w hich they oceur, Remeasurements are not reclassified 1o profit or
loss i subsequent periods,

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of

B The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

B The date that the Group recogmses related restructuring costs

Nel interest is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit lability or asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss

B Scrvice costs comprising current service costs, past-serviee costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements, and

P Net interest expense or income
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Compensated Absences

Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilized within the next |2 months. is treated as short-term emplovee benefit, The Group measures the expected casl
afsuch absences as the additional amount that 11 expects 10 pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected o be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-lerm employee benefit for measurement purposes, Such long-
term compensated absences are provided for based on the sctuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately taken 10 statement of Profit and Loss the period i which they oceur. The Group presents the entire leave as a current habihity in the balance
sheel since it does not have in unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 maonths after the reporting date.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that pives rise 1o a financial assel ol one entity and a financial liability or equity msteument of another entity

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assels not recorded at fair value through profit or loss. transaction costs that
are attributable to the acqwisition of the financial asset. Purchases o1 sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets withm a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the markel place {regular way trades) are recogmsed an the trade date. i.e. the date that the Group commits 10 purchase or sell the
assel

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial asscts are classified in four categonies:

B Debt instruments at amortised cost

B Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

B Debi instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

P Equity imstruments measured al fair value through other comprehensive income (IVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost1f both the following conditions arc met.

41 The asset is held within a business model whose objective 15 to hold assets for collecting contractual cash Tows. and

b) Contractual ferms of the asset give nse on specified dates 1o cash Nows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the prncipal amount
outstanding,

After initial measurement. such linancial assets are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method Amortised cost 18
caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the FIR. The FIR amortisation 15 ineluded
in finance income in the profit or loss The losses arising from impairment are recopnised in the profit or loss

Delbt instrument at FYTOCH

A “debt mstrument” is elassified as at the FVTOCLIE both of the following critera are met:

a) The objective of the business model 15 achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets. and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FYTOCT category are measured mitially as well as at cach reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized
in the ather comprehensive income (OCT)

Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL s a residunl cutegory for debt instruments, Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization 4s at amortized cost or as FVTOCL 15

classified as at FVTPL.

In addition. the Group may clect to designate a debt mstrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOC! eriteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election
is allowed only if doing so reduces or climinates a measurement or recognition inconsisteney (referred to as ‘accounting mismateh’). The Group has not
designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category ure measured at fair value with all changes recognized m the statement of Profit and Loss

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which ind AS103 apphies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes m the fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-hy-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is revocable,

IF the Group decides to elassify an equity instrument as at b VTOCL then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCIL
There is no reeyeling of the amounts from OC| to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain

or loss within equity

Equity nstruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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Derecognition

A finaneial asset {or. where applicable. a part ol a financial asset or part of'a Group of similar financial assets) 15 primanly derecognised (1.e. removed from the
Group's balance sheet) when:

B The rights to receive cash ows from the asset have expired, or

B The Group has transferred its rights o receive cash fows fiom the asset ar has assumed an obligation to pay the reeeived cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and erther (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Ciroup has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Group has ransferred its nghts 1o receive cash flows from an assel or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, il evaluates 1 and o what extent it
has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
contral of the asset. the Group continues to recognise the transfered assel 10 the extent of the Group™s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recopnises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated hability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transterred assel is measured at the lower of the origmal camymg amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expeeted credit loss (FCL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets.
The Group follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowanee on Trade receivables.

The application of simphfied approach does not require the Group to track changes in eredit rsk. Rather. it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, night from s initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other finaneial assets and risk exposure. the Group determines that whether there has heen a significant increase m the
eredit risk sinee initial recognition. 10 credit nisk has not increased significantly. 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
inerensed significantly, lifetime ECL 15 used IE in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significunt
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts lo recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL

Lifetime ECH are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-manth ECL is a
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default cvents that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contraciual cash flows that are due 1o the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash lows that the enlity expects 1©
receive (1c.. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required 1o consider:

» All contractual terms of the finaneial instrument (including prepayment, extension. call and similar optians) over the expeeted life of the financial instrament.
|lowever. in rare cases when the expected life of the fnancial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the Group s required to use the remaining contractual
term of the Ninancial imstrument

B Cash flows [rom the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are mtezral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recogmzed during the period is recognized as ncomel expense in the stalement of profit and loss (P&L). This
amount is reflected under the head “other expenses” in the Profitand Loss

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified. at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings. trade and other payables.
All finuncial Jiabilitics arc recognised imitially at fair value and, i the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attrnbutable lransaction costs.
The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables. loans and borrowings including cash eredit and financial guaraniee contracts.

Subsequent measurement
The meusurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification. as desenbed helow:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial habilities held for irading and financial Liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss, Financial habilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term This
category also includes dervative financial mstruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments

Gains or losses an liabilitics held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fauir value through pro (it or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recogmuion, and only 1f the
criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied, For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ lasses attributable to changes 1n own credit risk are recognized in OU1

These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred 1o P&l However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised i the statement of profit or loss. The Group has not designated any financial liabilitv as at fuir value through profit and Joss
Derecognition

A finaneial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharped or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial labihty is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
15 treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recopmtion of & new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounlts is recognised 1n the
statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses dervative financial mstruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subscquently re-measured at fur value
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken dircetly to profit or loss
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v. Fair Value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, denvauves at fair value ar cach balance sheet date

Fair value 15 the price that would be receved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants ut the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the lability takes place either

P In the principal market for the assct or hability, or

B In the absence of a principal market. i the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumplions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
markel participants act in their cconomic best interes

A Tair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate ecanomic benefits by using the asset i its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the assetin its highest and best use.

The Ciroup uses valuation technigques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are avalable to measure fir value. maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimismg the use of unohservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, deseribed as
follows, bused on the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fur value measurement as a whole:

B Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices m active markets for identical assets or habihues

B Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 1s significant 1o the fair value measurement is directly or indireetly observable

B Lovel 3 Valuation technigues for which the lowest level mput that ss significant to the fmr value measurement is unobsers able

For assets and linbilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels
in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of cach
reporting period

The Group’s management determines the policics und procedures for recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative imstruments and unquoted financial
assels measured at fair value.

At cach reporting date. the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and habihities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per
the Ciroup’s accounting policics. The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and lability with relevant external sources to
determine whether the ehange is reasonable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures. the Group has determined clusses of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature. charactenisties and risks of the asset
ar linkility and the level of the fair value hierarchy as exolained ahove
w, Contingent liability

A contingent lability is a possible obligation that anses from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurence or non-oceurrence of one or more
uncertain future events bevond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an autlTow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also anises i extremely rare cases, where there 15a liability that cannot be recognised beciuse 1t cannot
be measured reliably. The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the probability of outflow
of resources s remote,

Provisions and contingent lizhilities are reviewed at cach balance sheet date.

%  Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided 1o the Board of Directors identified as chiel operating decision-
maker (CODM). The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. Segments dre organised hased on ype
of services delivered or provided. Segment revenue arising from third party customers 15 reported on the same basis as revenue in the group Ind AS hinancial
statements. Sexment results represent profits before unallocated corporate expenses and taxes “Unallocated Corporate Expenses™ mclude expenses that relate to
costs attributable to the Group as a whole and are not attributable to segments.

v. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance shect comprise cash at banks and on hand and shori-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
which are subjeet to an insignificant nisk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows. cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shon-term deposits, as defined above as they are considered an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

z. Dividend Distribution to equity shareholders
The Group recognises 4 liability to make eash to equity holders of the parent when the distribution 1s authorised and the distnbution 15 no longer at the discretion
of the Group. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution 1s authorised when 1t 15 approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised
directly in cquity,

an. Earnings per share

Basic carmings per share are caleulated by dividing the Total comprehensive income {afier Tax) for the vear atiributable to equity sharcholders of holding Co. by
the weighled average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

Diluted earnings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss (afier Tax) for the year attributable o equity shareholders of halding Co. by the
weighted average number of cquity shares which would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares. Dilutive potential
camty shares are deemed converted as of the berinning of the period. unless they have been issued al a later date,
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22

MNew and amended Standard

(i) Amendments to Ind A8 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The amendments provide relief o lessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease madification accounting for rent coneessions ansing as a direet
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As o practical expedient, a lessee may elect not (o assess whether a Covid- 19 related rent concession from a lessor s i
lease modification. A lessee that makes this election gecounts for any change i lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent coneession the sume way
it would account for the change under Ind AS 116, 11 the change were not  lease modification

The amendments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginmng on or after the 1 Apnil 2020 In ease, a lessee has not vet approved the financial statements
for issue belore the issuance of this amendment. then the same may be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2019, This
amendment has no impact on the consolidated hinancial statements of the group

(ii) Amendments (o Ind AS 103 Business Combinations

The amendment to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations clarifies that to be considered a business, an integrated set of activitics and assets must include, at a
minimum. an input and a substantive process that, together, significantly contribute to the ability to create output. F urthermore, 1t clanlies that a business can
exist without including all of the inputs and processes needed tocreate outpuls.

These amendments are applicable to business combinations for which the acquisition dale 1s on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period
begimming on or afier the 1 April 2020 and 1o asset acquisitions that oecur on or after the beginning of that period This amendment had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the group but may impact future periods should the group enter into any business combinations

(iii) Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The umendments provide a new defimition of matenal that states, “information is material i omitting. misstating or obseuring 1t could reasonably be expected 1o
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those finaneial statements, which provide financral
information about a specific reporting entity.”

The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of mformation. either individually or in combmation with other information. in
the context of the financial statements. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expecied to influence decisions made by the primary
users

These amendments had no impact on the group financial statements of. nor 15 there expected 1o be any future impact the group.

These amendments are applicable prospectively for annual periads beginning on or after the 1 April 2020 The amendments to the definition of matenial are not
(iv) Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to [nd AS 109 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement provide a number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships that
are directly affected by interest rate henchmark reform. A hedging relationship is affected if the reform gives rise to uncertaimty about the tming and/or amount
of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument. These amendments have no impact on the group financial statements ol the group
a5 1t does not have any interest rate hedge relationships.

I'he amendments to Ind AS 107 preseribe the disclosures which entities are required to make for hedging relationships to which the reliels as per the amendments
in Ind AS 109 arc applied. These amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or alter the | Apnil 2020 These amendments are not expected to
have a sigmfieant impact on the group's consolidated financial statements

Standards issued but not yet effective
I'here are no standards that are issucd but not et effective on Mareh 31, 2021,
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{Amaount in INR Laes)

3(a)

Intangible assets

Total Intangible Ingangiflic asct

Particulars Goodwill= Software — under Total

) e development .
Gross Block
As at 01 April 2019 27118 S518.06 799.24 34.00 835.24
Additions - 103,67 103.67 - 103 67
Disposal/ Adjustment 788 T B& {34.00) (26 12)
As at 31 Muarch 2024} 27118 0639.61 910,79 - 910.79
Additions - 7496 T4 96 - T4 96
Foreign exchange impact 1.80 L.80 - 180
Disposal/ Adjustment - - - - -
As at 31 March 2021 271.18 716,37 U87.55 = 987.55
Accumulated Amortisation
Asat 31 March 2019 - 282,55 282,55 - 282.55
Charge for the year - 101.76 101 .76 101.76
Fluetnation 23] 231 - 23
[Msposal/ Adjustment - - - -
Asat 31 March 2020 - 380.02 386.62 - 380,02
Charge for the vear - 10276 102,76 - 102,70
Fluctuation 066 066 - 0,66
Disposal/ Adjustmen = - - - -
As at 31 March 2021 - 490.04 490,04 - 490,04
Net Block:
As at 31 March 2020 271.18 252.9¢ 524.17 - 524.17
As at 31 March 2021 271.18 226,33 497.51 - 497.51

Note to the intangible assets:

On transition to Ind AS (e | April 20150, the Group has elected 1o continue with the earrying value of all imangible measured as per previous GAAP and use that carmying

vitlue as the deemed cost of intangible assets

*Cioodwill ansing out of conselidation

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impainment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the respective businesses

The Group performed its annual impaiment test for years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, Goodwill acquired in business combinations are tested for impairment

at individual entity (business | level

The recoverable amount of a CGL s the Ingher of s fiur value less cost o sell {using sales comparable approach) and is value-in-use

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGL exceeded its carrying amounts. Accordingly, no impattment of goodwill have been
recorded in statement of profit and loss. Management believes that any reasonable possible changes in the projected financial budgets and other assumptions would not

cause the carrying amount 1o exceed the recoverable amount of the cash penerating unit
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4 Investment

(Amount in INR Laes)

Particulars

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Investment at Cost
Unguoted

A Investment in Subsidiary Company

Atul Knshan Bansal Foundation® 1.00 -
SO0 (3] March 20200 nal) equity shares of Rs, 10/- éach fully paid up
B Investment in jointly controlled entity

In DEE Fabricom LLC

Opening Investment 7342 =

Add: Share of Profiv(Loss) of mvestment m jeintly controlled entity 12.06 73,42

Closing Investment 8648 7342

Less - Impairment in value of investment of Dee Fabricom LLC (83.48) {73.42)

Net Investment 1.00 -

Agpregate amount of mlql.luled imvestment

Appregate amount o impamment i value of mvestment 8548 73.42
#4548 73.42

* Subsidiary 18 Company incorporated under Section 8 of Companies Act. 2013 wath the objective of carrving out charitable and non profit activitics Any surplus
or profit generated by the company 1s not for the purpose of distribution among the members. Aceordingly the same has not be considered for consohdation.

th

Finanecial assets

S(A) Trade receivables

Particulars

As al
31 March. 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Unsecured, considered good

Trade receivables 19,845 91 19.421.78
Trade receivables from related panties (refer note 31) 5 104.77
Total Reveivables 19,845.91 19,526.85

-No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Group either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other
recervable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a ditector or a member exeept as disclosed above
-For terms and conditions relating to related party recevables, refer note 31

-Trade receivibles are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 1o 180 days,

“Trade Receivable includes Amount not yel due Rs, 11,769 14 Lacs (3151 March 2020 © Rs. 12,676.22 Lacs)

S(B) Loans (unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Non-current

Current

Particulars

Asat As at
31 March. 2021 31 March 2020

Asat
31 March. 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Financial assets carried at amortised cost:

Security deposits 142.81 128,42 8.35 2.69
Total loans 142.81 128.42 §.35 2.69
5(C') Cash and cash equivalents
Current
Particulars Asat Asat
; 31 Marceh, 2021 31 Mareh 2020

Cash on hand 4.84 13.94
Balances with banks 500 49 i73.15
Total 505.33 387.09
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Deposits with
- Onigimal maturity for less than twelve months® 2.743.45 3.166.63
= Original maturity for more than twelve months™ 392.32 518.75

3,135.67 3.085.38
Less: amount disclosed under other financial assets (Note 3(D})) (3.135.67) (3.685.38)

Total - -

* Deposits given as margin money against non fund based facihities (Letier ol credit. Buyer's eredit. Bank Guarantee) and collateral security
Asal March 31, 2021, the Group has available INR 6,072 49 Lacs (March 31, 20200 INR 2,814 47 Lacs) of undiawn borrowing facihities from various banks
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(Amount in INR Lacs)

5(D) Other Ainancial assets

Non-current

Current

As at
31 March. 2021

Partienlars

Asat
31 March. 2021

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 Mareh 2020

Unseeured considered good unless atherwise stated

Financial assets classified at amortised cost:

Term deposits with original maturity bevond 12 months © 393222 51875 - -
Term deposits with ongimal maturity less than 12 months® - - 274345 316663
[nterest receivable - - 98] 10.45
Financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss: -

Foreign exchange Torward contracts (refer note (a) below) - 2 104.40 &
Total 392.22 518.75 2.857.066 3,177.08

* Deposits given as margin money against non fund based facilities (Leter of credit, Buyer's eredit. 13ank Guarantee) and collateral security

Note:

(a) While the Group entered into other forcign exchange forward contracts with the intention of redueing the foreign exchange
ationships and are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

purchases. these other contracts are not designated m hedge re

Net debt reeonciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debtand the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented

risk ol expected sales and

Cash and cash Non current Current Total
Particulars cguivalents Borrowing® Borrowing (d=b+ec-a)
() (b) (e}
Net debt as at 1T April 2019 1,697.76 10,115.98 23,305.39 31,783.61
Cash Mows (1,310.67} 1596 (2.591.43) (1,264 80)
Foreign exchange adjustments - - 83271 852.71
Interest expenses 2 990 721 251207 3.502.7%
Interest puid - (990.72) {2.927.86) (3.918.58)
Other non-gash movement -
Transaction cost adjustment - - (21.48) (21.48)
Net debt as at 31 March 2020 387.09 10,131.94 21,189.39 30,934.25
Cash and cash Non current Current Total
Particulars equivalents Borrowing* Borrowing (d=b+c-a)
{al (h) (c)
Net debi as at 1 April 2020 387.00 10,131.94 21,189.39 30,934.24
Cush MNows 11824 (1,619.09) (3.905.14) (5.642.47)
Farelgn exchange adjustments - - 438.78 438,78
Interest expenses including borrowing charges - 1,338 92 1,287 64 2.626.56
Interest paid - (1,33892) (1.845.17) (3.184.09)
{ther non-cash movement
Transaction cost adjustment - 2.66 3560 3826
Net debt as at 31 March 2021 505.33 8,515.51 17,200.11 25.211.29
# [peludes current maturities of long term borrowmgs
Other assets
Non-current Current
As at As at Asat As at

Particulars
31 Mareh. 2021

31 Mareh 2020 31 March, 2021

31 March 2020

Unsecurcd considered good unless otherwise stated

Capital advances 191.76 18968 3.26 -
Prepard expenses 5816 938 42156 223.71
Income tax recoverable (net of provision for tax) - - 44 44 260,43
Advanee o suppliers - - 480,90 274.92
Export entitlement receivable - - 59549 580.92
Advance 1o employees - - 1.7 19.51
Balance with government authoritics - - 2.229.68 2,251 .45
Total (A) 249.92 199.06 3,787.04 3,610.94
Unsecured considered Doubitful

Advance to suppliers - - 6539 65.39
Less : Provision [or douhtful advance - - (65.39) (65.39)
Total (B) - = " =
Total other assets (A+B) 244,92 199.06 3.787.04 3.610.94
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(Amount in INR Lacs)

T

(A)

(B

(©

(D)

(£)

lln'untnril:s_
{ Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value) Current
Particulars As at As at

31 March, 2021 31 March 2020
Raw materials 11,776 70 14,154.26
Raw material in transit 265 34 609 67
Fimshed goods 882 86 2.763.19
Stock n trade 24,86 10 90
Waork in progress 37734 38 557347
Stores and spares 1408 55 1,409 8O
Packing materials 324 20 267 48
Total inventories 1842604 24,783.77

Equity share eapital

Authorised share capital:

Equity shares Compulsorily canvertible preference

shares

Particulars No. in lacs INR In Lacs No. in lacs INR In Lacs
As at 31 March 2019 187.50 1.875.00 62,50 625.00
Iricrease/ (decrease) dunng the year - 2 x -
As at 31 Mareh 2020 187.50 1.875.00 62.50 625.00
Inerease’ (decrease) during the vear - - - -
As at 31 March 2021 187.50 1,875.00 62,50 625.00

Terms/ rights attached to Equity shares:

The Group has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each Sharcholder 15 entitled 1o one vote per share. The dividend except
interim dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subjeet 1o the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the cvent of
liguidation of the Group. the equily sharcholders will be entitled to receive the remammg assets of the Group after distnibution of all preferential amounts, in

proportion to their sharcholding.

Issued and paid up equity share capital

Particulars

No. in lacs INR In Lacs

Equity shares of INR 10 cach issued, subscribed and fully paid:

At 31 March 2019

Increase (decrease) during the vear
As at 31 March 2020

Increase/ (decrease) during the yea
As at 31 March 2021

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Group:

As at 31 March, 2021

156,93 1.569.27
156.93 1,569.27
156,93 1.569.27

As at 31 March 2020

Particulars

No. in lacs

% of holding

No. in laes % of holding,

M. K. 1. Bansal

First Carlyle Ventures 111

DDE Piping Component Pyt Ltd
Mrs. Ashima Bansal

7928
50.81
14,94

8.80

50.52%
32.38%
9.52%

5.61%

79.28 50.52%
50.81 32.38%
14.94 9.52%

880 5.61%

As per records of the Group. including its register of sharcholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the

above sharcholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

Subsequent to year end, the holding company has buy back 5084891 number of shares (refer note 41 for further details)

There are no equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period ol five years immediately

preceding the reporting date
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(Amount in INR Lacs)

9

(A)

(B

(8

(D)

Other equity

Particulars Asat As at

31 March, 2021 31 March 2020

Securities preminm
Opening balance 16,730,493 16.730.93
Increase/{deerease) during the year _ - -
Closing halance 16.730.93 16,730,93
General reserve
Opening balance 4,585.71 4.58571
Increase/(decrease) during the year - -
Closing balance 4,585.71 4,585.71
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Opening balance M.517.78 19.329.22
Frofit for the vear 1.420.53 1,336,55
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the vear® 25.68 (53.40)
Dividend (Refer Mote No. 44) - (78.46)
Dividend Distribution lax {Refer Note No. 44) - (16.13)
Closing balance 21.963.99 20,517.78
Forcign currency translation reserve
Opening balance 385.60 125.48
Add - Changes during the year 196.29 200.12
Closing balance 581.89 385.60
Total reserves 43,862.52 42,220.02

* The disageregation of changes in OCL by each type of reserves in equity 1s disclosed in note no. 23

Nature and purpose of reserves @

Seeurities premium reserve

Securitics premium reserve 15 used to record the premium on issue of shares The reserve can be utilised only for imited purposes such as issuance of bonus
shares in accordance with the provisions of the Compames Act. 2013

General reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at & speeified percentage 1n accordance wilh
applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to ensure that if'a dividend distribution in @ given year is more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the
Company for that year, then the total dividend distribution is less than the total distributable results for that year Consequent 10 mtroduction of Companies Act
2013, the requirement 1o mandatonily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. However, the amount previously
ransferred to the general reserve can be utilised only in accordance with the specific requirements of Companies Act. 2013,

Foreign currency translation reserve

Exchinge differences arising on translation of the foreign operations wre recognised i other comprehensive income as deseribed in accounting pohiey and
accumulated 1n a separate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss when the net investment is disposed-olT

Retained earnings

Represents surplus in the statement of profits and loss,
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Nates to the consolidated financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2021

(Amount in INR Laes)

1 Borrowings

{A) Long term borrowings

Non-current portion

Current maturities

Particulars

As at As at
31 March, 2021 31 March 2020

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 Mareh 2020

Seenred

Term Loan

A from Banks (refer note [a to ¢} helow) 4.939.02 654423 173653 2.067.60
b. Vehicle Loan lrom Banks (refer note (e} below) 192.10 22551 9272 123,62
Unsecured
a From direetors - 43.00 - =
h. Others (refer note {1} below) - 375.33 555.14 750 63
S.131.12 7.190.07 3,384 .39 2,941 87
Less: ;urrc.:nt.matu‘ritics of long term debts disclosed under 'other - ) (3.384.39) (2941 87)
financial liabihtes' (refer note 11) .
Total 5,131.12 7.190.07 - -
Repayment Schedule of long term borrowing - non-current:
As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
) INR Repayment INR Repayment
Particulars Instalments Instalments
(1) 1 YR MCLR of 7.35% + BSS of 0.20% + CRP of 1 40% presently - 19 equal quarterly 72645 5-13 equal
effectively 8.80%- 8.95% p.u (31 March 2020 '1 YR MCLR of 8.65% + instalments quarterly
BSS of (.30% +CRP of 1.40% presently effectively 10-10.35% p a. (refer instalments
note &)
(1) 1 Year MCLR, presently 7 35% effectively with manthly rest (Mareh 31 - Gequal manthly &
2020: Nil) (refer note by instalments
(iii) Presently 7.50% 1o 10.35% pa (31 March 2020:11.00% | (refer note ¢) - 36-50 cqual 171.85 60 equal monthly
maonthly instalments nstialments
{ivy Presently 3M LIBOR plus 3.30% poa, (31 March 20200 3M LIBOR plus 216591 8 equal quarterly 340370 12 equal quarterly
3 30% pa) (refer note d) mstalments instalments
(ix) Presently 10% ta 10.10% (31 March 20200 9.85% pa.) (refer note ¢) 1,711.87 13 cqual quarterly 224223 17 equal quarterly
instalments instaliments
(v) Presently 8 35% to 11% - (31 March 2020: 8.00% to 10.15% p.a.) 2152 1-20 equal monthly S840 3-28 equal monthly
(refer note £) instalments instalments
(vi) Presently 4.18% to 6.52% pa. - (31 March 20200 4 18% 10 6.52% [6473  9-37 equal monthly 158.32 13-41 equal
pa ) (refer note 1) instalments monthly instalments
(vii) Presently 9 25% pa (31 March 2020: 9.25% p.a. ) (refer nole 1) 5.85 21 équal monthly 879 33 equal monthly
instalments instalments
(i) Interest free loans from directors - 45.00 December 2021
Gx) Presently 10% poa. (31 March 20200 10% pa ) - 37533 2 equal quarterly
instalments
4.069.87 1,190,07

Notes:

1) "Term Loan outstanding for Rs 426,45 lacs ( March 31, 2020, Rs 726.25 lacs) from bank Secured by first charge on both movable and immaovable fixed asscts
(barring few spectfic fixed assets) of Piping Division of the Holding Company. personal guarantee of promoters und corporate puarantes of DDE Pipimg

Compaonents Pvt. Ltd.

b First pani passu charge on all the current assets of Piping unit and Power unit, both present and future along with book-debts. bills. outstanding monies and
receivables.all the fixed assets of power unit, Immovable property of 1770 Sq. Yard siwated at Jatola Road, Tatarpur Indusirial arca, Maidapur of Piping unit, all
the fixed assets situated at Chennai, Fixed deposit of Rs. 350 lacs and exelusive charge on fixed deposit of Rs 15 lacs in favour of Bank of India

Further, there is Second pari passu charge on all the movable fixed assets, both present and future, of piping unit {excluding assets given against firts pani passu
charpe) and Residential house of Promoter situated at 1255, sector 14, Faridabad.
¢) Secured by first part passu charge on the movable fixed Assets & immovable properties and sccond charge on the current assets ol the wholly owned

subsidiary namely Malwa Power Private Limited

d) Secured by first charge on both movable and immovable fixed assets of wholly owned subsidiary. namely Dee Piping Systems (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (other than
few specific fixed assets). personal guarantee of prometers and corporate guarantee of the Holding Company - Dee Development Engineers Lamited

¢) Sceured by first charge on both movable and immovable fived assets of wholly owned subsidiary. namely DEE Fabricom India Private Limited (ather than few
specific fixed assets), personal guarantee of promoters and corporate guarantee of the Holding Company - Dee Development Engineers Limited

£} Vehiele loan outstanding for Rs. 284 82 lacs (March 31, 2020 349 13 lacs) from bank secured by the vehicle of the Group financed under the scheme

) Further, term loans are secured by Irrevocable and unconditional, joint and several personal guarantee of the promoters and corporate guarantee of DEE Piping

Components Private Linmted.
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(Amaount in INR Lacs)

(B) Short-term horrowings

11

12

13

Particulars el e
: 31 March. 2021 31 March 2020
Secured
(i) Cash credit (refer note (ab.e) below) 2961.25 6,227.39
(1) Export packing eredit (refer note (a) below) - 370,04
(1) Warking capital demand loan (refer note (a) below) 13.217.58 12,758 10
Unsecured
Buyer's credit and Bill discounting (rom banks 1.022.28 1,833 86
Total 17.201.11 21,189.39
Notes:

a  Farst pari passu charge on all the current assets of Piping unit and Power unit of holding company. both present and future along with book-debts, bills,

outstanding monies and receivables.all the fixed assets of power unit, Immovable property of 1770 5¢ Yard situated at Jatola

Road, Tatarpur Industrial

area, Maidapur of Piping uml all the fixed assets situated at Chennan, Fixed deposit of Rs. 350 lacs and exclusive charge on fixed deposit of Rs 13 lacs

favour of Bank of Indi
b SBLC from Indian bank (aceeptable 1o Axis bank) in favor of Axis bank, to the extent of WC facihity

¢ Seceured by hypothecation of current assets ie. present & future stock of raw material, work in progress. finished goods, store & spares, book delts ete. of
respective wholly owned subsidiary namely Malwi Power Private Limited. DEE Fabricom India Private L imited and DEE Piping System ( Thatland | Co

Lid The Loan 1s further secured by eorporate guaraniee of the holding company and personal guarantee of Promotor - Directors.

Orther financial liabilities

Non-current Current
: As at As al Asat As at
Particulars 31 March, 2021 31 Murch 2020 31 March, 2021 31 March 2020
Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost:
Current maturities of long-term debts [refer note 10(A) | - g 33584 39 2.941 .87
Foretgn exchange lorward contracts - - - 171.71
Creditors for capital goods - - 147,53 196,34
Interest acerued and not due on harrowings - - fid 55 7316
Other Pavables - - 79.00 75.00
Leasc Liabilities (reler note 39§ 406.38 230,99 w431 46.62
Total other financial liabilities 406,38 230,99 3,769.78 3.504.70
Provisions
Non-current Current
Parti " As at As at As at As at
Particulars
31 March. 2021 31 March 2020 31 March, 2021 31 March 2020
Pravisions for gratuity 100 58 B7.40 60,36 54.75
Provision for compensated absences 4.12 | 40 7941 104.66
Provision for litigation {refer pomnt (a)) - - - 1555
Total provisions 104.70 58.80 139.77 174.96
a) Provision for Litigation
It represent a eharge against the wrong availment of input credit by the holding company
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
At the beginning of the year 15.55 15.55
Created during the year i =
*aid/adjusted during the vear 15.55 -
At the end of the year - - 15.55
Liabilities for current tax (net)
Current
Particulars Ll Asat
31 March, 2021 31 March 2020
PProvision for current tax (net of udvance tax and TDS receivable) 15.79 264.39
13.79 264.39
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14  Other liabilities

Nan-current

Current

Asat
31 March, 2021

Asat
31 March 2020

Particulars

As at
31 March. 2021

As al
31 March 2020

Statutory ducs - - 310.06 26800
Deferred revenue:
on sovernment grant obligation - 48.07 - .
on advance received from MNRE - - - 570
on advance licenses 9315 126.19 - -
Advance reeeived from customers (refer note 17) = - 111373 413446
93.15 174.26 1,423.79 4.408.16

15 Income tax
(A} The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 are:
Statement of profit and loss:
Particulars Year ended Yenr ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
a) Income Tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss
Current income tax:
- Current income lax charge 730,87 1.394 88
- Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year (12.71) .89
Deferred tax:
- Relating to onigination and reversal of temporary differences (1.243.76) 49,57
(Including DT, reversal on account o adotion of new tax rate (
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss (525.60) 1.451.34
OC] section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCIH duving in the year:
- Net loss/{ gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans ( Refer nate 25) 8.82 (28 49)
Income tax charged to OCI — 8.82 (28.49)
(B) Reconciliation of tax expense and the aecounting profit multiplicd by holding Co's rate for 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020:
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Accounting profit before tax 89493 2.787.89
Af India’s statutory income lax rate of 25 168% (31 March 2020 34 944%) 225.23 974 20
Adjustments:
Tax relating to carlier years (12.71) 689
“Tax cffect of amounts whieh are not deductible (taxable) in caleulating taxable income:
Tax impact due to adoption of new tax rate as per Income-tax Act, 1961 (Refer note 43) (758.47) -
Tux impact of expenses not deductible under Income-tax Act. 1961 4863 160,76
- Others (503 .97) [179.98)
Impact on account of utilisation of carry forward/current year losses 53854 575.20
Impact on account of difference i tax rate (62.85) {85.73)
Income tax expense (525.00) 1451.34
Income tix expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (525.60) 1,451.34
{C) Deferred tax asscls
Deferred tax relates to following:
Particulars As at As at

31 March. 2021

31 March 2020

Balance sheet

Impact of difference between 1ax depreciation and
depreciation‘amortization charged for the financial reporting
Impact of deferred advance on government grant

Impact on Employee benefit

lmpact on deferred market 10 market

[xpenditure allowed for tax purposes on payment hasis

Carry Forward Loss and unabsorbed depreciation is per tax return
Net deferred tax (liabilities) / asset

[SH% 65)

2.00
773.69

207.04
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(Amount in INR Lacs)

(D) Deferred tax liabilities

16

Deferred tax relates to following:

Partieulars

As at
31 Mareh. 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Balance sheet

Impact of difference between lax depreciation and
depreciation/amaortization charged for the financial reporting
Impact of deferred advance on government grant

Impact on Bmployee benefit

Impact on delerred market 1o market

Expenditure allowed for tax purposes on payment basis

Carry Forward Loss and unabsorbed depreciation as per lax relum
Net deferred tax (linbilitics) [ asset

Statement of profit and loss

Impaet of dilference between tax depreciation and

depreciation/amortization charged for the linancial reporting

Impact due to adoption of new tax rate as per Income-tax Act, 1961 (Refer note 43 |
Impact of deferred advance on government grant

Impact on deferred market to market

Impact on Employee benefit

Expenditure allowed for tax purposes on payviment basis

Unabsorbed depreciation as per tax return

Impact on margin on unsold ventory

Deferred tax expense / (income)

Other Comprehensive Income
Impact on defined beneflit plans
Deferred tax expense [ (income)

(2.168.76)

56.83
(26.75)
1524

(3.493.28)

18.79
74.93
61,00
2396
164.25

LB (IS

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 Mareh 2020

260 148.20
(758 47)
1879 (8.23)
8676 (10517}
928 (34.16)
672 4350
(609 44) (410
- 953
(1,.243.76) 49,57
882 (28.49)
8.82 (2849

Indian wholly owned subsidiaries has tax losses of INR 1032.07 lakhs (31 March 2020° INR 1047 04 lakhs} that are available for offsetting for eight years ugamsl
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Majority of these losses will expire duning 2021-2022 to 2025-2026

Indian wholly owned subsidiary has paid Minimum Alernate Tax (MAT) of INR 19095 Jukhs (31 March 2020, of INR 13277 lakhs) that are available o
offsetting Tor Fifteen years against future taxable profits under Income Tax Act, 1961 of the companics. Majority of these MA'T Credu will expire during 2032-33

10 2034-35

Trade Pavables

Current

Particulars At Asat

3 31 March. 2021 31 March 2020
Trade payables* 7.510.55 7.004.15
Trade payables to Micro. Small and Medium Enterprisesy 23824 52,40
Total trade pavables 7,748.79 7.146.55
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 0 to 60-day terms
- For terms and conditions relating 1o related party payables, refer to note 31
- For explanations on the Group’s credit nsk management processes. refer to note 36
# Includes following :
Acceptances 453 66 102.24
For payable to related parties (refer note 31) 5388 82161

# Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting 23824 52.40

year

Principal amount due to micre and smull enterprises 23824 3240

Interest due on above

I'he amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during cach accounting year

The amount of interest due and pavable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but bevond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006

The amount of interest acerued and remaming unpaid at the end of cach accounting vear

The amount of Turther interest remaining due and payable even 1 the succeeding years, unul such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise Tor the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006
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Revenue from eperations

Particulars

Year ended
31 Murch 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Sale of products:

Sale of imshed goods 34.830.31 5718007

Sale of traded poods B5.66 60,79
Sale of eleetricity 660271 6.607849
Sale of service:

Job work 6,832 78 0,555.35

Erection and Design services 22518 76079
Other Operating Income:

Sale of Seap 576.87 589 06

Lxporl Incentive 352712 415 89
Total revenue from operations 49,521.73 72,251.34
Timing of revenue recognition
Revenue recognition at & point of time 49.521.73 7225134
Total revenue from contracts with customers 49,521.73 72.251.54
Contract Balances

Asat As at

Particulars

31 March, 2021

31 March 2020

Trade recervables from contracts under Ind AS 115 (refer note 5A) 1984591 19,526,535

Contract Assels = =

Contract liabilities

Advance from customers 1,113.73 4,134 46
20,959.64 23.661.00

Contract liabilities include amount received from customers as per the tenns of purchase/sales order 1o deliver poeds, Once the goods are completed and contral 15

translerred 1o customers the same 15 adjusted accordingly

Significant changes in the contraet assets and the contract liabilities balances during the year/period ave as follows

Particulars

Asat
31 March. 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Movement of contract liability

Amounts meluded m comract liabilities at the beginming of the vear 413446 10,250.09
Performance obhgations satisfied durimg the year (2,741 80)

Amount received adjusted agamst contract liability during the year {278.93)

Amounts included in contract liabilities at the end of the year 1,113.73

Performance obligation

Information about the group performance obligations for material contracts are summarised below:

The performance obligation of the Group in case of sale of Products is satsfied once the goods are transported as per terms of order and control is transferred to the
customers

The custamer makes the payiment for contracted price as per terms stipulated under customers purchase order

Information about the group performance obligations for electricity supply contract are summarised below:

I'ie performance obligation of the proup in case of sale of clectricity is based on supply ol electricity through mstalled meters. Revenue from sales of electricity 15
accounted for on the basis of billing to eustomers based on billmg eyeles followed by the Group.

Ihe customer makes the pavment for electricity supplied during the billing cyele at contracted price as per terms stipulated under agreement

There 15 no remaming performanee obligation as on year ending March 31, 2021

Other income

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Interest meome

- from Bank 1499 95 2098.18
- on Income tax refund 2316 -
Gain on foreipn exchange (net) 662 58 45018
Rent meome 12.00 12.00
Miscellaneous income 218.71 38237
Amortization of deferred revenue:

on export promotion capital goods scheme 53.58 bl 07

on advance received from MNRE 570 7.04

on advance hieenses 583 54 400 53
[nsurance clam received 21 221

Total other income 1,780.94 1,613.18
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19

20

22

23

Cost of raw material consumed

Year ended

Year ended

Particulars
AR 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Inventory at the begmning of the vear 14,763.93 1931276
Add Purchase during the yeau 1712531 35,000 58

31.889.24 54,314 .34
Less Inventory at the end of the year 12,042.10 14703 93
Cost of raw material consumesd I‘J&S-ﬂ.l-l 39.550.41
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and work in progress

Year ended Y ear ended

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Opemng stock

- Work-n-progress 557347 643508
= Imished poods 2.763.19 1.291 08
- Stock m nade 10,90 9483
Less: Closing stock
- Work-in-progress 3.739.38 5537347
- Fimshed goods 882 86 276319
- Stock o trade 2486 1090
Total change in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and work in progress 3,700.46 (526.57)
Employee benefits expense
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Salarics, wages and bonus 693441 8,29936
Contribution to provident and other funds 200.21 205.00
Giratwily expense (refer note 30) 79.88 81,02
Staft welfare expenses 175,75 27244
Total employee henelits expense 7,396.25 8.837.83
Depreciation and amortization expense
Particulars Yearended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Depreciation on tangible assets (refer note 3 Property, plant and equipment) 33T 314977
Amortisaiion of intangible assets (refer note 2 (a) ntangible assets) 102.76 101.76
Depreciation on right of use assets (refer note 39) 7683 3.21
Total 3,553.76 3;282.74
Other expenses
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Consumplion of stores and spare parts 244100 3.084.19
Packing material consumed 1.193.04 1.865.61
Fabrication and job charges 3067 68 313327
Repair and maintenanee
- Buildings 05.03 170.21
- Plant and machinery 62111 57242
- Other 076 70.98
Office & factory maimtenance 8005 9414
Lease rentals mcluding hire charges 161 33 124.09
Rates and taxes 100 28 8309
Insurance 16% 53 15128
Power. fuel and water charges 941,75 116901
Radiography & mnspection 5501.34 49917
Auditor's remuneration ( Refer note below) 30,74 3497
Selling commission & other selling expenses 251.18 307 .88
Freight & forwarding (net of recovery) 100877 689 98
Claims and deductions 5014 80 43207
Legal and professional 468 87 544.62
Travelling and conveyance expense 200.72 41223
Bank charges 265 64 475.02
Proviston for doubtful debts and advance - 65.39
Sundry balances written off’ 370 23.73
[mpanmient of Investments m Jowmt Venture 12.06 7342
Logs on sale’ discard of fixed assets (ner) 2520 00,99
Donation 7.05 530
Security and servicing charges 252,73 22412
SR expenses (refer note below) 76.21 11502
Direclors' sitting fees 6,00 250
Miscellanecus 52558 708 86
Total 13,113.75 15,194.22
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23 (a} Payment to anditors

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2024

As auditor:

- Statutory Audit lee 2908 30.87
In other capacity:
- Onher services (certilication fees) 10.00 1 00
- Reimbursement of expenses .65 3.10
Total 30.74 3497
23 (h) Details of CSR expenditure:
Year ended Year endded

24

26

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

{a) Gross amount required 1o be spent by the Group during the year
by Amount spent during the year

(1) Construction/’ acquisiton of any assel

(11) On purpose other than (i) above
(¢} Bilurcation of above amount

(i) Amount spent n cash

{11} Amount vet 1o be paid m cash™®

=The amount has been subsequently deposited with Atul knishan Bansal Foundation to carry out CSR activilies

Finance cosls

76,21

5967

787
10715

115.02

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Interest Expense

- on term foans

- to others

Interest on lease hability {Refer note 39)

Other borrowmg cost

Exchange difference regarded as an adjustnient 1o borrowing cost
Tatal

Components of other comprehensive income (OCT)

1.068.15 82193

1.287.64 251207
4009 18.26
27078 168.79
4609 262.28

PRIFEL 378333

Particulars

Yearended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Retained Earnings

[Exchange differences on translation of Toreign operations
Re-meastrement gans’ (loss) on defined benefit plans
Less: Tax impact of above items

Earnings per share (EPS)

194 29 260.12
3450 (81.8%)
{8.82) 28.49

22197 206.72

Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of Equity shares

outstanding durng the year,

Diluted EPS amounts are calealated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding
durmg the year plus the weighted average numbe of Equity shares that would be issued on conversien of all the dilutive potential Equity shares mto Equity shares.

The following reflects the incame and share data used mn the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Profit attributable 1o equity holders of the parent company for busic and diluted eamings (A)
Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic and diluted EPS* (B)

Earnings per share (A/B)

- Basie carmngs per share

- Diluted earnmgs per share

* There have been no transaction involving Equity shares or potential Equity shaves during the year

1.642.50
15692719

10.47
1047

1,543.27
1.56.92.71%

983
D83
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27 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's linancial statements requires management to make judgements, estmates and assumptions that affect the reported amaunts of
fevenues. expenses, assets and liabilities, and the grouping disclosures, and the disclosure of contmgent habilities Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrving amount of assets or labilities afTected i future penods

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements. which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recogmised i the financial statements

Classification of leases —

The Group enters into leasing arrangements for vanous assets. The classification of the leasing arrangement as a finance  lease or operating lease 15 based
on an assessment of several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to purchase and
estimated certainly of exercise of such option. proportion of lease term to the asset’s cconomic life, proportion of present value of minimum lease payments Lo
fair value of leascd asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset,

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and  termination options (Group as lessec)-

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the Iease, together with any periods covered by an option o extend the lease 1118 1s
reasonably certain 10 be exercised. or any periods covered by an oplion to terminate the lease. if 115 reasonably certain not to be excrcised. The Group has
several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applics judgement in evaluating whether 1 1s reasonably certain whether or
not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That 1s, 1t considers all relevant factors thal create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the commencement date. the Group reassesses the lease term 1f there 15 a significant event or change in crrcumstances that 15
within its control and affects its abihty 1o exercise or not o exercise the option to renew or o termimate (eg. construction of significam leaschold
improvements or significant custormsation lo the leased asset)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertamty at the reporting date. thal have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustiment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilites within the next financial year, are described below The Group bused its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the finuncial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments. however,
may change due 1o market changes or circumstances ansing that are beyond the control of the Group Such changes are reflected i the assumptions when

- Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of 1ts Tair value less costs ol
disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal caleulation 15 based on available data from binding sales transactions. conducted at arm’s
length, for similar assets or observable market prices less meremental costs for disposing of the asset, The value in use caleulation is bused on a DCF model

The cash Mows are derived from the budget for the next five vears and do not include restructuring activities that the Group 1s nol yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive (o the discount rate
used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used lor extrapolation purposes

- Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available agamst which the losses can be wtilised. Significant
management judgement is required 1o determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised. based upon the likely timing and the level of future
taxahle profits together with future tax planming strategies.

- Defi

ed henefit plans (gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation 1s highly sensitive
1o changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at cach reporting date

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determiming the appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest rales of
government bonds with term that correspond with the expected term of the defined henefit obligation

The mortality rate 15 based on publicly available mortality tables Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes.
Future sulary increases and gratuity inereases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries

Further details about gratuity and long term compensated absences obligations are given in Note 30,

- Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balunee sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markels.
therr fair value is measured using valuation technigues including the DCF model. The inputs 1o these models are taken from observable markets where
possible. but where this 15 not feasible, a degree of judgement is required n estabhishing fair values. Judgements include considerations ol mputs such as
liquidity risk. credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could afTect the reported fair value of financial instruments, See Note 34
for turther disclosures.

- Useful Life of Property Plant and Equipment

The Group. hased on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate. depreciates plant and machineries of Group over estimated
useful lives of 10 to 40 years which are different from the useful hie presenbed in Schedule 1T to the Companies Act. 2013, The management believes that
these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets arc likely to be used.
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28 Interest in subsidiaries

29

I'he financial statements of the Group include group mformation, wherever required, pertaining to the holding company DEE Development Engineers Limite

Subsidiary companies

Name of the Subsidiary / Principal Activity Method used to Place of Incorporation  Proportion of Ownership Interest and
account for and Place of Operation  Yoting power held by the company
investments

J1-Mar-21 F1-Mar-20

Malwa Power Private Limite z

alwa uwu.'! rivate Limited Albcast India 100.00% 100 00%
Power generation
n T 1 [y -
Dee hll‘mu}m India I vi. Lid. o el 100.00% 100.00%
Heavy Fabrication Unit
Piping Sys s (Thailand) Co. Ltd. ; ;
Diee Piping Systems { ¥Co. 1ad Al cost Thailand 100.00% 100.00%

Pre-fabrication of piping and piping packages

Interest in jointly controlled entity

The Group has a 49% imterest in DEE Fabricom LLC. a jontly controlled entity involved in the manutacture of some ol the Group’s main product Tines in
pre-labrication of piping in UAE The Group's interest in DEE Fabricom LLC is aecounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements. Summarised linaneial information of the jointly controlled entity, based on its Ind AS financial statements, and reconciliation with the carrving
amount of the investment in consolidated Mnancial statements are set out below:

The linancials of jointly comtrol entity is considered for the vear ended December 315t 2020, The same has been considered mternally of the jomtly control
entity 1o group linancials

Summarised balance sheet as al 31 December 2020:

3 HY -
Particulars A& KA

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Current assets. including cash and cash equivalents INR lacs (31 December 20200 NIL) and prepayments INR 1051 7417
Nil (31 December 2019 NIL)
Non-current assets 633 927
Current habilities. including tax payable INR Nil (31 December 20190 INR Nil) (53337) (151.55)
Non-current liabilitics - 2
Equity (36.53) (68.11)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the mvestment (17.90) (33.37)

Summarised statement of profit and loss:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Revenue 10193 31440
Purchase of Stock m Trade 4 =

Depreciation & amortization (2.94) (3.406)
Employee benelit (27.16) (63 39)
Other expense (38.68) {93.67)
Profit before tax 3315 153.88
Income tax expense - -

Profit for the year 33.15 153.88
Total comprehensive income for the year 33.15 153.88
Foreign currency translation reserve (1.57) (4.05)
Group's share of (Loss) / profit for the year * 15.47 73.42

#As per IND AS 28, 11 any entily's share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds ils interest in the associate or jomtly controlled entity
(which includes any long term interest that. in substance form part of the Group's net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the entity discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Accordingly, loss upto amount of mvestment amounting 1o Rs. 85 48 lakhs has been recogmised in consolidated
financial statement tll March 31, 2019, In current year. the group has carned share of profit of Rs 12.06 lakhs, however in absence of reasonable certamty
ol its recovery, the sume has been provided for in the consolidated financial statement.
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30 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

A. Defined benefit plans - general description
The Group has a defined gratuity benefit plan. Every employee who completes service of five years or more, gets a gratuity, of 15 days salary (last drawn
salary) for each completed year of service.
The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded status
and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the plan (based on Actuarial Valuation) :
Amount recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Net employee benefit expense recognized in the employee cost:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
sy 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Service cost T1.54 T71.00
Net interest cost 834 10.02
Lxpenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 79.88 81.02
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Paitcaliis Year ended Year ended

ok 31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020
Net actuarial loss/(gain) recognised in the year (34.50) 81.89
Lixpenses recognised in the other comprehensive income (34.50) §1.89

Balance sheet

Benefit asset/ (liability)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Present value of defined obligation at the end of the year 622.51 377.13
Less ; Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year 461.56 440.01
Net present value of defined benefit obligation (160.95) (137.12)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Opening deflined benelit obligation 562.62 421.15
Service cost 71.54 71.00
Inlerest cost 38.20 31,13
Benefits paid (14.06) (31.89)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation (35.85) 85.72
Closing defined benefit obligation 622.51 577.13

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening fair value of plan assets 440.01 342,61
Lixpected Return on plan Asscts 31.62 27.74
Actuarial gain/(loss) - -
Fund Manager Charges (0.57) (0.49)
Morlality charges (2.09) (1.92)
Contribution by the employer 6.65 103.96
Benefits paid (14.06) (31.89)
Closing fair value ol plan assets 461.50 440.01
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
Particulars Euils AN

o 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
I'he scheme is funded through a trust and funds are managed by Life Insurance Corporation ol India 100% 100%




DEE Development Engineers Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
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B.

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining gratuity are as follows:

(a) Economic assumptions

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Discount rate

Average Salary escalation rate

Average remaining working life ol the employees( vears )
Adtrition at Ages

Up to 30 Years

From 31 to 44 years

Above 44 years

6.80%

3% - 0%

Withdrawal rate %
3.00
2.00
1.00

6.80%

5% - 6%

Withdrawal rate %
3.00
2.00
1.00

The estimates of future salary inereases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation. seniority, promotion and other relevant fuctors, such
as supply and demand in the employment market, The overall expected rate of retun on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that

date. applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled

Demographie assumplions

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Retirement age

Muortality table

. A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March is as shown below:

38 years
100% of TALM
(2012-14)

58 years
100% of IALM (2012
- 14

Assumptions

Sensitivity Level

Impact on defined
benefit obligation

Discount rate:
31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Future salary increases:
31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Inerease of 0.50%
Decrease of 0.50%
Increase of 0.50%
Diecrease of (0.50%

Increase of (0,50%
Decrease of 0.50%
Increase of 0.50%
Decrease of (1.50%

(35.81)
39.33
(33.36)
36.71
39.45
(36.23)
36.82
(33.75)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a resull of reasonable

changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The following payments arc expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
Between 2 and 5 years

Beyond 5 years

Total expected payments

60,36 34.75
94,86 956
467.29 425.82
622.51 577.13

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 17.83 vears (31 March 2020: 18.25 years)
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31 Related party transactions

(A) Names of related partics and related party relationship

Nature of relationship Name of related parties
(i) Jointly controlled entity Dee Fabricom LLC
(ii) Key management personnel: Mr, K1 Bansal (Chairman and Managing Director )

My, Atul Krishan Bansal Director ( up to 16 November, 202()
Mrs. Ashima Bansal (Whole Time Direetor)
Mr. Vikas Gupta (Director in Wholly Owned Overseas Subsidiary) upto 31st August 2019
Mrs. Shikha Ransal (Director in Wholly Owned Overseas Subsidiary)
Mr Teerayul Golaka (Director)
Mr. "Krisanakorn Triwattanathongchai (Director)
Mr. Balwan Singh Jangra (CEO in Wholly Owned Indian Subsidiary Company )
Mr. Gauray Narang (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Ranjan Sarangi (Company secretary)
(i} Relative of Key Management Personnel Mrs. Shikha Bansal (wife of Mr. Atul Krishan Bansal. up to November 16, 2021)
Mrs Shruti Aggarwal (Daughter of Mr. K 1. Bansal)

Mrs. Kamlesh langra (Wife of Shri Balwan Singh Jangra)

(iv) Independent Director of holding Co. Mr. Ajay Kumar Marchanda
Mr. Satish Kumar

(B) The following table provides total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

Namg of related parly Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(i) With Key management personnel and their relatives:

Mr. K. L. Bansal Rent Payment 1.44 1.44
Mr K. .. Bansal Renumeration 16.87 196.60
Mr Atul Krishan Bansal Remuneration 6484 10936
Mr Vikas Gupta Remuneration - 32.39
Mrs Ashima Bansal Remuneration §1.00 81.40
Mrs Shikha Bansal Remuneration 100,52 32.70
Mrs Shruti Aggarwal Remuneration 1863 1840
"Mr. Teeravut Colaka Remuneration 22.33 -

"Krisanakorn Triwattanathongehai Remuneration 18.48 -

Mr Balwan singh Jangra Remuneration 4208 40.03
Mrs Kamlesh Jangra Remuneration 14.43 13.05
Mr Gauray Narang Remuneration 50.59 5246
Mr Ranjan Sarangi Remuneration 13.36 14.11
Mr. Ajay Kumar Marchanda Sitting fees 325 1.00
Mr.Satish Kumar Sitting fees 2.75 1,50
l.oan Received from Mr. K. L. Bansal 1.oan received 250.00 30.00
1 oan Received from Mrs. Ashima Bansal Loan received 10.00 130.00
|oan Paid back to Mr. K. 1. Bansal Loan paid 260.00 20.00
Loan Paid back to Mrs. Ashima Bansal Loan paid 45.00 95.00

This page is intentionally left blank
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()

(D)

(E)

(F)

Following are the balances outstanding as at vear end:

As at Asat

N f relate
ol eelutedl paety 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

{i) With Key management personnel and their relatives:
Account payable:

Mr. K. L. Bansal 6505 30.27
Mr. Atul Krishan Bansal - D44
Mrs. Ashima Bansal 563 3951
Mrs. Shikha Bansal 2.64 -

Mrs. Shruti Aggarwal 1.39 0.78
Mr Balwan singh Jangra 220 227
Mrs Kamlesh Jangra 1.10 1.02
Mr. Gaurav Narang 481 7.14
Mr. Ranjan Sarangi 1.05 117

Apart from above. Mr. K L. Bansal. Mr. Al Krishan Bansal and Mrs, Ashima Bansal have given personal guarantees as a collateral for securing
horrowings from the banks.

In the opinion of the Board of directors, the current assets, investments. loan and advances have the value at which they are stated in the balances sheet.
if realised in the ordinary course of business and provisions for all known lLabilities have been adequately made in the accounts,

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

Year ended Year ended

PR UL related ety 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Short-term employee benelils 708.15 390,50
Post-cmployment gratuity and medical benefits 0.83 4.602
lotal compensation paid o key management personnel 709.00 595.12

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key management persennel.

With Jointly controlled entity

Year ended Year ended

Dianicaf relited panty 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Dee Fabricom LLC
Trade reccivable - 104.77

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances al
the vear-end are unsccured and interest free. For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to
amounts owed by related parties (31 March 2020: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of
the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
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32 Commitments and Contingencies

A, Commitments

3

Capital Commitments

Asat As at

FEtignlans 31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020

Estimated amount of contracts remaining 1o be executed on capital account
and not provided for (net of advances paid INR 191.76 laes) (31 March 2020 7310 128 53
INR 184,68 lucs)

Contingent liabilities

Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of:

As at As al

[} .. 1
A 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Cluims against the Group not acknowledged as debt

- Demand by Income Tax Departiment # 165 76 314
- Demand by Exeise Authorities #* 39.35 3933
- Claim filed by a supplier ** 12 31 12.31

#The Income Tax Authorities have raised demands on account of varions disallowances perlaining to different assessment years. The group is contesting
these demands. which are pending at various appellate levels. Based on the advice from independent tax experts and the development on the appeals. the
management is confident that additional tax so demanded with reference to these cases will not be sustained on completion of the appellate proceedigs
and accordingly, pending the decision by the appellate authonities, no provision has been made in these standalone Binaneial statements.

=0 the basis of current status of individual case Tor respective vears and as per legal advice obtamed by the group. the group 1s conlident of winning the
above cases and is of the view that no provision is required in respect of the above cases

Guarantecs
The Holding Company has given corporate guarantee lor loans taken by subsidiary companies. to the extent loan umount outstanding as on balanee sheet
date The carrying amounts of the related financial guarantee contracts were INR 5,604 .59 lacs and 8.186.95 lacs at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020

respectively,
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33 Segment information

Omn the basis of nature of businesses, the Group has three reportable segments. as {ollows:

- The piping segment which is mainly engaged i manufacturing of pre-fabricated engineering products, pipe littings, piping systems,
- The power segment. which is engaged in biomass based power generation
- The Heavy fabrication segment, which is engaged in Wind mill tower Manufacturing

No operating segments have been aggregated 1o form the above reportable operating segments.

The Executive Management Committee monitors the operating results ol its business units separately lor the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Scgment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the

AL Segment Disclosures

Year ended 31 March 2021

Particulars Piping division *,,U,w.ﬂ- s lll:mll; Unallocated Total
division Fabrication

Revenue

Fxternal 41.511.68 6,670 55 1.339.50 - 49.521.73

Interunit - - - v -

Segment Revenue 41.511.68 6,670.55 1,339.50 = 49,521.73

Segment profit 5.991.27 1,225.80 489.73 (545.30) 7,161.44

Expenses

Finance Cosls 2.176.05 208.11 328.59 - 271275

Depreciation and amortization expense 2.864.44 273.26 416.01 - 3.553.76

Segment Expenses 5.040.54 481.37 744.60 - 6.266.51

Net Segment profit before tax 950.73 744.44 (254.87) (545.36) 894.93

Other Information

Segment Assels T1.558.08 8,011.55 J.601.38 45.42 83.310.43

Segment Liabilities 30.158.39 4,769.25 J.142.36 #5.82 38,155.82

Capital Expenditure 1.095.49 250.10 36.67 - 1,382.26

Year ended 31 March 2020

" Power Heavy

Particulars Pinine divisi ) 5 2 Aoy
iping division division Fabrication Unallocated I'otal

Revenue

External ﬁtl.?ﬁ'ﬁ_.‘)} (3,725_.53 T(}‘};RK ?2..?5]_.34

Segment Revenue 64,755.93 6,725.53 769.88 - 72,251.34

Segment profit 8.592.66 1.672.09 54.86 (465.65) 9.853.96

Expenses

Finance Costs 3.306.76 31545 161.12 - 3.783.33

Depreciation and amortization expense 2.812.47 235.53 23474 - 3,282.74

Segment Expenses 6,119.23 550.98 395.86 - 706607

Net Segment profit hefore tax 247343 112111 (341.00) (465.65) 2.787.89

Other Information

Segment Assels 79,303.70 7,749.63 3,999.19 260.39 91,312.91

Segment Liabilities 35.898.60 4,673.34 3.581.79 3.369.89 47.523.62

Capital Expenditure 2,419.69 246.14 4,046.31 - 0,712.14
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B. Reconeiliations to amounts reflected in the financial statements

a. Reconciliation of profit

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Segment Profit
Interest Income
Finanee Cosis
Unallocated Expenscs
Profit before tax

3.929.93
22311

(2.712.75)
(343.36)

6.738.69

208.18
(3,783.33)
(403.65)

894.93

2,787.89

Particulars

As at 31 March

Asat 31 March 2020

2021
Sepment operating assets 83,271.01 91,052.52
Unallocable Assets 45.42 260.39
Total assets §3.31643 91,312.91

b. Reconciliation of liabilities

Asat 31 March

Particular Asat 31 March 2020
articulars 2021

Segment operating liabilities 35.070.00 44,153.73

Unallocable liabilities 85.82 3.369.89

Total liabilities 38.155.82 47,523.02

Following are the entity-wide disclosures:

a) Revenue from external customers

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

India 2692544 56,239.36
Outside India 22.596.29 16,011.98
Total revenue as per consolidated statement of profit or loss 49.521.73 72,251.34

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the customers.

b) List of major customer whose revenue more than 10% of total entity revenue
Pirticalins For the year ended  For the year ended
SR 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
HPCL-MITTAL ENERGY LIMITED 18,127.68 18.127.68
% of Revenue 36.61% 25.09%
GENERAL FLECTRIC B.898.97 8.898.97
% of Revenue 17.97% 12.32%
PUNJAB STATE ELECTRICITY BOARD 6.602.71 6,078.49
% of Revenue 13.33% 9.24%
¢} Trade Receivable
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
PP 2021 2020
India 7.939.16 9.472.93
Outside India 11,906,735 10,053.62

Total 19,845.91 19,520.55
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34 Fair values

Set out below. is a comparison by class ol the carrying amounts and far value of the Group’s financial instruments. other than those with carrying amoums
that are reasonable approximations ol fair values:

Carrying value Fair value
As at As at As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Particulars

{A] Financial assets

Non-current

Investment 1.00 - 1.00 -
Security deposits 142 81 128.42 142.81 128.42
Term deposit accounts with maturity beyond 12 months 39222 51875 39222 518.75
Current

Trade receivables® 19.845 91 19.526.55 1984591 19.526.55
Cash and cash equivalents® 305.33 387.09 50533 387.09
Seeurity deposits® 8.35 2.69 835 2.69
Other hinancial asseis® 2.857.66 3177.08 2.857.66 3.077.08
Total financial assets 23.,753.28 23.740.58 23.753.28 23,740.58

{B) Financial liabilities

Non-current

Long-term borrowings 5.131.12 7.190.07 303112 7.190.07
Other financial liabilitics 40638 230.99 406,38 230.99
Current

Short-term borrowines* 17.201.11 21,189.39 17.201.11 21.189.39
Trade payables® 7.748.79 7,146,535 7.748.79 7.146 .55
Otther financial liabilities*® 3.769.78 3.504.70 3.769.78 3.504.70
Total financial liabilities 34.257.18 39.261.70 J4.257.18 39.261.70

Note:-
* The management assessed that fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, security deposits. other short-term financial assets, shori-term
borrowings, trade payables and other short-term financial Tiabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due 1o the short-term maturities of these

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilitics is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged m a current ransaction between
willing parties. other than in a forced or liquidation sale,
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

a, Term deposits- The fair value of term deposits is equal to carrying value since they are carrying market interest rates as per the banks.
b. Foreign exchange forward contracts- Foreign exchange forward contracts are valued using valuation technigques, which employs the use of markel

observable inputs. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing.

¢. Long-term borrowings - The fair value of long-term borrowings is estimated by discounting [uture cash [lows using rates currently available for debt on
similar terms. credit risk and remaining maturities. The carrying value and fair value of the borrowings has been considered the same sinee the existing

d. Others- For other financial assets and labilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.
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35 Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
(a) recognised and measured at fair value and
(b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used m determining fair value, the Group has classilied its financial instruments into the three
levels preseribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table,
All assets and labilitics for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described

as lollows, based on the lowest level input that is signilicant to the fair value measurciment as a whole,

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics
Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level mpunt that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indircetly observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the Towest level input that is significant o the fair value measurement is unobservahble

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities.
Ao Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hicrarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2021:

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices in active Significant Signifieant
Particulars Total markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Security deposits 142.81 - - 142.81
Term deposit accounts with maturity beyond 12 39232 s 392,22 F
months

Financial liabilities measured at amortised

Long-term borrowings 5.131.12 - 513112 -
Other financial liabilitics 406,38 - 406.38 -
Ihere have been no transfers between Level | and Level 2 during the vear.

B. Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2020;

Fair value measurement nsing

Quoted prices in active Significant Significant

Particulars Total markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial assets measured at fair value
Foreign exchange forward contracts - - - -
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Seeurity deposits 128,42 - - 128.42
Ferm deposit accounts with maturity bevond 12 51875 - 518.75 -
manths
Financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost
|.ong-term borrowings 7,190.07 - 7.190.07 -
Other financial liabilities 23099 - 230,99 -

There have been no transfers between Level | and Level 2 during the year.
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36 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Giroup's prineipal financial labilites comprise borrowings and trade and other payables, The man purpose of these financial liabilitics 15 to {inance the
Group’s operations. The Group’s principal financial assets include security deposits given. loans to related party, employee advances, trade and other
recevables, cash and cash equivalenis and other assets.

The Group 1s exposed 10 market sk, crednt risk and hquidity risk. The Group's senior management oversees the management of these risks. All derivative
activities for rish management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. 1t is the Group’s policy
that no trading in denvatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken, The Bourd of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing cach of these risks,
which are summarised below

Market risk
Market risk 1s the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial mstrument will Nuctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
three types of risk: interest rate tisk and curreney nisk. Financial mstruments affected by market nisk include borrowings and foreign exchange forward contracis.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2021 and 3| March 2020

The sensiuvity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt. the ratio of floating 1o fixed interest rates of the debt and the proportion of
financial instruments i lorergn currencies are all constant in place at 31 March 2021

I'he analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratwty and other post-retirement obligations and provisions.

I'he following assumption have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss ttem s the effect of the assumed changes m respective market nisks. This 15 based on the financial assets and
financial liabilitics held at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020

Interest rate risk
Interest rate nisk is the nsk that the farr value or future cash Nows of a fimancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primanly to the Group's long-term debt abligations with floating interest rates

The Ciroup is exposed to mterest tte risk because Group borrows funds al both Noating interest rates, These exposures are reviewed by appropriate levels of
management The Group regularly monitors the market rate of iterest to mitigute the nsk exposure. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change m iterest rates on that portion of borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit before tas is
affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings. as lollows

Increase / decrease in - Effect on profit

As at 31 March 2021 interest rates befare tax

(17 INR. loans +0.50% (BR.90)
-{),.50% 88,90

As at 31 March 2020

(11 INR loans 10.50% (76.05)
-0.50% 7605

The assumed movement in interest rates for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment, showing a
sigmDeantly agher volatihity than in prior years

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the nisk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's
exposure 1o the nsh of chunges in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's aperating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a

he Group manages 11s foreign currency tisk by purchasing foreign curreney forward contracts that are expected 1o occur within a maximum | 2-month period of
forecasted sales and purchases. The following tables demonstrate the unhedged foreign currency exposure and sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Group's profit hefore tax 15 due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and labilies are as follows:

Particulars Currency 31 March 2021 Impact on profit
betore tax
Foreign Indian 5% 5%
Currency Rupees Inerease Decrease

Trade payables usb 430 320,66 (16.03) 16.03

FGp

LEURO 042 3.38 017) 017
Buyers credit from hanks EURO 513 376.87 (18.84) 18.84

LISD 4 16 357 85 (17 89) 17.89
Trade receivables usb 51.32 377255 188.03 (188 63)

LURO 010 863 043 (0.43)
Interest Recervable UsD 6.23 457 64 22.88 (22.88)
Balance with Banks EGP 041 1.94 010 (0.10)

Cash in hand LSD 000 .41 02 (0.02)
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Particulars Curreney 31 March 2020 Impact on profit
before tax
Foreign Indian 3% 3%
Currency Rupees Increasc Decrease

Forergn Curreney T'erm Loan Usp 60.00 4.526.59 {226.33) 226.33
I'rade payables UsD 14.36 | (082 86 (34.14) 5414
EURO (.21 1748 (0.87) 0.87
e LURD 554 734 50 (3672 36.72
Buyers eredic from banks ush 447 337.13 (m.sai 16.86
Trade receivables (Eh1P] 3040 2.291.73 114 39 (114.39)
Balance with Banks usn E 014 0.01 (0.1
LGP 1.49 896 045 (0.45)
Cash in hand USD LR (141 002 (0.02)

Credit risk

Credit nisk 1s the nisk that counterparty will not meet 1is obligations under a Dinancial mstrument er customer contract, leading to a Ninaneial loss. The Group s
exposed to eredit risk from its operating activities including trade receivables, deposits with banks and financial institutions, {oreign exchange transactions and
ather financial instruments.

Trade receivables
Trade reccivables do not have any significant potential credit risk for the Group as the business of the Group is majorly cash based. An impairment analysis 15
performed by the management al cach reporting date on individual basis for major chients

Finaneial instruments and cash deposits

Credit nsk from balances with hanks 15 managed by the Group’s treasury depariment in accordance with the Group's pelicy Investments ol surplus funds are
made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty eredit limits are reviewed by the Group’s Board of
Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the vear. The Imits are set o minimise the concentration of nisks and therefore migate financial
loss through counterparty's potential failure to make payments.

The Group's maximum exposure o credit nsk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 15 the carrying amounts as
tllustrated in MNode

Liguidity risk

The Group's obyective 15 10 maintain @ balance between continuity of funding and flexibihity through the use of cash credits and bank loans. Approximately 397,
of the Group's debt will mature in less than one vear at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: 29%) based on the carrving value of horrowings reflected in the
financial statements. The Group assessed the concentration of nsk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it 1o be low, The Group has access o a
sufficient vanety of sources of funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

=12 months 1 to 5 years =5 years Total
IMNR lacs INR lacs INR lacs INR lacs

As at 31 March 2021
Long term borrowings - 411945 1.011.67 513112
Short term borrowings 17.200.11 - - 17.200.11
Trade payables 7.748.80 - - 7.748 80
Other financial habilities (Includes lease hability) 3.769.78 406.38 - 4.176.16
: 28,719.69 4,525.83 1,011.67 34,257.19

As at 31 March 2020
Long term borrewings - 6,178 40 1LO11.67 718007
Short term borrowings 21.189.39 - - 2118939
Trade payables 7.146.55 - - 7,146 55
Other financial habilities 3.504.70 230.99 = 3,735 69
31.540.64 6.409.39 1,011.67 39.261.70
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37 Capital management

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the shareholders of the
Giroup. The primary objective of the Group's capital management 1s o maximise the sharcholder value.

The Group manages s capital structure and makes adjustments i light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the lnancial covenants. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure. the Group may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, The Group
manitors capital using a gearing ratio, which s net debt divided by total capital plus net debt The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings. trade and other pavables, less cash and cash equivalents

The Group's pearng ratio 15 as [ollows:

Particulars s SE
31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020

Borrowings including current matunities (refer note 10 & 25.716.62 3132134
1)

Less: cash and cash equivalents (refer note 5(C) ) (5005.33) (387 0w
Netdebt (A) 25,211.29 30,934.25
Total equity (refer note 8 and 9) 45431 79 o a3T8929
Equity (B) 45.431.79 43,789.29
Capital and net debt (C) =(A) + (B) TiL643.08 74,723.54
Gearing rativ (A) /(C) (%) 35.69% 41.40%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets hnancial covenants attached (o the
mierest-bearing louns and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would pernit the bank to
immediately call loans and borrewings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowings in the current period,

No changes were made in the objectives. policies or processes for managing capilal during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020
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Nel Assels

Share in Comprehensive

Sharre in profit/(loss) after

Share in Total

 incomef{loss) Lax Comprchensive income
. Ax ", As 1]“
Name of the entity in the Group Period - A o . " - Amount As % of Amount 2
2 lidat Amount | consolidated 5 2 i total Amaount
: A | (Rsin | consolidated { Rsin ; ;
dnet | Rsin Lacs)| Comprehensi comprehensi [{ Rs in Lacs)
Laes) profit or loss Laes) 2
assets ve Ineome ve income
Parent
L Development Engineers Limited|31-Mar-21 9549 | 3785925 087 21.90 11942 1.696.43 104.62 1.718.34
31-Mar-20 82.15 3597379 (25.66) (3303) 172,97 2.311.82 151.12 23320
Subsidiaries
Indian
Malwa Power Private Limited 3l-Mar-21 378 1.498.28 170 378 3475 493 57 N2 4497 35
31-Mar-20 ER. 1.700.62 (0.18) (0.37) 35.12 460 30 30,39 46902
Dee Fabricom India Pyt Lid 31-Mar-21 1.27 50513 = - 12.28 174.47 10.62 174.47
31-Mar-20 0.99 43263 - - (29.49) (394.19) (25.54) (394.19)
Foreign
DEE Piping System (Thatland) Co. Lij31-Mar-21 (0.35) -216.90 88.43 196.29 (67.30) (936.00) (4025 (739.71)
31-Mar-20 12:97 5.682.25 125.83 260.12 (&40 (1,123 89) (55.97) (B63.77)
Jointly controlled entity
Dee Fabricom LLC 31-Mar-21 - - - i (.85 12.06 0.73 12.06
31-Mar-20 - " - 549 73.42 - 7342
Total 100,00 | 3.645.76 100.00 221.97 100,00 1,420.53 100,00 1,642.50
(March 31, 2020 100,00 | 43,789.29 100,00 | 206.72 100,00 1.336.55 100.00 1,616.70
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iii)

iv

=

Group as a lessee

The Group’s leased assets primarily consists of lease for factory lands. plant and Machinery, computers and data processing equipment
having lease term of 5-10 years.

In previous year the Group adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial application
of 1 April 2019, Consequently. the Group recorded the lease hability at the present value of the remaining lease payments discounted at
the incremental borrowing rate as on the date of transition and has measured right of use asset at an amount equal 1o lease lability
adjusted [or previously recognised prepaid or accrued lease payments, Further, lease arrangements where the Group is lessor, lease
rentals are recognized on straight line basis over the non-cancellable period.

The Group’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets. Generally. the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets

The Group also has ¢ertain leases of machinery with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of office equipment with low value.
The Group applies the “short-term lease” and “lease ol low-value assets’ recognition exemptions [or these leases.

Set-out below are the carrying amounts of right-ol-use assets recognised and the movements during the vear:

Factory Land  Computer and  Plant and Total

Particulars data processing Machinery

cquipment
Right-ol-use assets recorded on adoption of Ind AS 116 as 286.55 286.55
at 1 April 2019 -
Additions 9.25 5 9.25
Depreciation expense (refer note 22) 31.21 - 31.21
As at 31 March 2020 264.59 - 204.59
Additions 129.92 79.04 87.62 296.58
Deletion 2301 = 25.11
Depreciation expense (refer note 22) 53.28 14.82 8.73 76 .83
Asat 31 March 2021 316.12 64.22 78.89 459.23

Sel-out below are the carrying amounts of lease habilities (included under other financial liabilities) and the movements during the

Factory Land Computer and  Plant and Total
Particulars data processing Machinery
equipment

Lease liabilities recorded on adoption of Ind AS 116 as at 11045 - - 110.45
1 April 2019

Additions 185.36 - - 183.36
Accretion of interest (refer note 24) 18.26 - - 18.26
Payments 36.46 - - 36.46
Disposal = - % -
As at Mareh 31, 2020 277.61 - . 277.61
Additions 129.92 79.05 87.62 296.59
Accretion of interest (refer note 24) 3047 547 4.15 40.09
Payments 56.35 17.89 10.94 85.18
Disposal 28.42 - - 2842
As at Mareh 31,2021 353.23 606.63 80.83 S500.69
Current 5319 2123 19.89 94 .31
Non- current 300.04 4540 60,94 406.38

The maturity analysis of contractual undiscounted cash flow-: -
As at March 31, 2021

Particulars Less than | year 1 to 5 vears More than 5 year
Factory Land 6385 250,71 222.70
Computer and data processing equipment 23 86 53608 -
Plant and Machinery 21.87 78.38 -

As at March 31,2020

Particulars Less than | yvear I to 5 vears More than 5 year

Factory Land 32406 155.15 128.54
Computer and Server E - .
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v) The lollowing are the amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Particulars March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Depreciation expense ol right-ol-use assels T76.83 3121
Interest expense on lease liabilities 40.09 18.26
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 152.90 98.92
Total amount reeognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 269.82 148,39
Impact on statement of cash flows (increase/(decrease)):

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Operating lease payments® 85.18 3646
Net eash flows used in operating activities 85.18 36,46
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities 4509 18.20
Payment of interest portion of lease labilitics 40.09 18.26
Net cash [Tows used 1n lnancing activities 85.18 36.46

* Composed of different line items in the indirect reconciliation of operating cash flows,

he Group had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 45.09 lakhs Tor the year ended March 31. 2021 (Rs. 18.20 lakhs for March 31,
2020).

The owbreak of Coronavirus (COVID -19) pandemic elobally and in India is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of
cconomic activity. Consequent to these uncertainties/ disruptions caused due to continuation of pandemic, the group has made
assessment of impact of this pandemic on 1ts business operations and has made assessment of its liquidity position for the next one year.
The group has assessed carrying value and the recoverability of its assets comprising property, plant and equipment. intangible assets,
right of use assets. inventory, advances, trade receivables, other financial and non financial assets ete. and hased on current Indicators of
future economic conditions, the group expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets on the consolidated financial statement,
The situation is changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertainty around the extent and timing of the potential future impact of the
COVID-19 which may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements. The group
will continue to closely monitor any matcrial changes to future economic conditions.

Change in sharcholding pattern

Subsequent 1o year ended March 31. 2021, Pursuant to the approval of the Board on May 07, 2021 and approval of shareholders through
special resolution passed in extra ordinary general Meeting dated May 08. 2021, The buyback offer of 51,00.000 equity shares was
made to all existing sharcholders of the holding company as on May 08. 2021, being the record date for the purpose in accordance with
the Articles 15 of the Articles ol Association of the holding company, Section 68, 69 and 70 of the Companies Act 2013, The holding
company concluded buyback of 50.84.891 tendered equity shares of face value of Rs 10/- each at a price of Rs 99/- per equity share, for
an aggregate amount ol Rs 5.034.04 lacs on May 17.2021.

The Code on Social Security. 2020 (‘Code”) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-cmployment benefits received
Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will
come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/ interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of
the Code when it comes into efteet and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes efTective.

Tax rate change

Pursuant to introduction of new tax regime as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act. 2019 which provided an option to the
holding company for paying Income Tax at reduced rates as per the provisions/ conditions defined in the newly inserted Section
TISBAA in the Income-tax Act, 1961,
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44. Dividend Distribution made and proposed

y As at © Asat
——— 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Paid Dividend on Equity Shareholders of holding Company
Final dividend for the year ended March 31,2020: Nil Per Share (March 31, 78.46
2019 :Rs 0.50 Per Share) &
Dividend Distribution tax on dividend - 16.13
Total - 94.59

43. The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever considered necessary, to make them comparable with current year
classification,

As per our report of even date
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